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DEAR CUSTOMERS EMPLOYEES SHAREHOLDERS AND FRIENDS

Fiscal Year 201 Sun Bancorp continued to execute successfully on our core strategies to strengthen the balance

sheet fortify our capital position and grow the Companys specialty businesses Although slow economy continued to

challenge our market we focused on what we could control and with thoughtful deliberation patience and an eye toward

the future advanced our goals Our decisions and achievements in 2010 position us well for future growth and the regions

economic recovery

Sun has been diligent in building concrete scalable business model that has served as source of strength and will

support our growth going forward We are well-capitalized and we possess the professional acumen and foresight to use

our capital wisely Sun banking professionals combine the best of big bank experience and talent with local personal

approach that honors relationships We have strong investor support and comprehensive suite of products and services

and we are entrepreneurial responsive and accessible

THE ECONOMY

In our market and in the country overall the economy has begun to stabilize but consumers are still cautious Loan

demand among both businesses and consumers continues to be weak the housing market remains fragile and

unemployment is high At Sun we understand how to adapt to the economic realities affecting the financial services

industry and remain commiffed and successful in our roles as financial counselors for our customers Our team has

been insightful in identifying niche business opportunities created by both the dislocation among competitor banks

and the current economic environment We have successfully filled that void through focused business models in Asset

Based Lending Healthcare Finance select fee-based initiatives and targeted deposit-generating campaigns We will

continue to persist in identifying and pursuing opportunities to enhance our leadership position and focus on growth

STRENGTHEN

In 2010 we succeeded in further strengthening our core organization our balance sheet and our capital position

Most notable was the investment of $106 million by private equity funds led by WL Ross Co LLC our founding

Brown Family shareholders Siguler Gull and other institutional investors The high degree of interest and support by

these experienced investors underscores their confidence in Sun our corporate strategy and our potential for future

success

This capital investment together with capital raised through 2011 public offering enabled us to strengthen and

expand our current operations and seek future growth opportunities

We also maintained vigilant focus on asset qualify We put forth specific strategies to distance ourselves from our

legacy real estate portfolio by proactively reducing classified and criticized loans that based on our assessment of the

type of loan and the economy we felt would not return to performing status in reasonable timeframe Our capital

position remains strong Our efforts to eliminate troubled and non-performing assets and restore the strength of Sun

have been successful to date

We have refocused our approach to commercial real estate lending and continued to work to diversify our revenue

sources through continued growth in our specialty businesses Healthcare and Asset Based Lending Cash

Management Sun Financial Services and Sun Home Loans while also enhancing our commercial and industrial

lending focus Additionally our leaders and employees worked to optimize our franchise and streamline operations
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Over the last year we consolidated or closed six non-strategic branches During the third quarter we broke ground on

Suns new flagship branch in Glendora Camden County the branch showcases new prototype design and earned

designation as Leadership in Energy Environmental Design LEED certified building

We also continued to control non-revenue related expenses and increase efficiencies through our bank-wide cost

savings initiative We are continuing to make solid progress in asset quality our core business our margin and our team

of professionals by focusing on what we can influence and control

2010 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Despite ongoing challenges in the banking industry and the economy we are motivated by the positive results we have

achieved through the execution of our thoughtful and deliberate corporate strategy Achievements include

We increased our net interest margin from 3.18% in 2009 to 3.50% in 2010 primarily through significantly

reduced interest expense on deposits

Sun Home Loans mortgage origination income grew by 71 franchise best

Sun Financial Services our investment business achieved 6.2% year-over-year revenue improvement

marking the second strongest year in its history

Cash Management posted record year of $4 million in revenue

Suns Healthcare Finance team in its second year closed $46 million in new loans and generated total

portfolio
of $62 million

Our Asset Based lending team captured $1 8.5 million in commitments with significant related fee income

streams

Results from our 2010 financial performance include

For the year ended December 31 2010 the Company reported net loss available to common shareholders of

$1 85.4 million or loss of $6.56 per diluted share as compared to net loss available to common shareholders

of $22.5 million or loss of $0.97 per diluted share for December 31 2009

Total assets were $3.42 billion at December 31 2010 as compared to $3.58 billion at December 31 2009

During 2010 the Company recorded non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $89.7 million as well as

$49.9 million write-down of our net deferred tax asset of $49.9 million

Total loans before allowance for loan losses were $2.54 billion at December 31 2010 as compared to $2.72

billion at December 31 2009

In the fourth quarter the Company sold $76.6 million of criticized and classified commercial real estate loans

to strengthen Suns balance sheet

Total deposits increased from $2.91 billion at December 31 2009 to $2.94 billion at December 31 2010

Stockholders equity totaled $268.2 million at December 31 2010 as compared to $356.6 million at

December 31 2009
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INDUSTRY LEADERSHIP

In 2010 Sun continued to identify and pursue people and processes that enable us to provide the latest and most

comprehensive products and services for our customers and advance as an industry leader Sun was proud to be the

first New Jersey-headquartered bank to offer mobile banking Providing an advanced mobile banking solution reaffirms

our commitment to giving our customers choice and convenience for their banking needs We also launched targeted

strategic marketing campaigns to enhance awareness of Sun and promote our innovative products and services to key

customer segments

Staying ahead of the competition also means hiring talented and experienced professionals who can contribute to Suns

growth and success In 2010 we continued to make strategic new hires in commercial lending retail special assets finance

and other areas Growing our team also contributes to the regions job creation and economic expansion To better penetrate

market opportunities in the Sun branch network we aligned our small business sales force with the retail team We also

invested in customized sales and leadership training to enhance the skill set of our sales professionals and managers

Also in 2010 and for the fifth consecutive year Sun Bancorp was recognized by Forbes magazine as one of Americas most

trusted companies While many financial institutions struggle to gain and keep the trust of the public Sun has consistently

shown its ability to build and maintain strong relationships with customers and employees who trust the Bank not only with

their money but also with their businesses and livelihood

COMMUNITY COMMITMENT

Sun Bancorps community commitment extends far and wide in New Jersey In 2010 the Company contributed to more

than 400 organizations that support education health and social services arts and culture civic and community affairs

economic development and the environment

Again this year Sun employees donated their personal time and energy during Banking on Our Communities Day held

on October 11 2010 More than 500 employee volunteers worked on various projects at more than 65 organizations in

57 towns throughout New Jersey That one day alone Sun dedicated more than 2000 hours of service to give back to the

communities in which we live and work

In 2010 Sun also earned Community Service Award from the New Jersey Bankers Association The award recognized

Suns role in facilitating civic and charitable activities that benefit New Jersey communities

FUTURE GROWTH

Building on what we accomplished in 2010 Sun has strong business model that enables us to stay competitive grow

and capitalize on opportunities to expand customer relationships throughout the state We will continue to follow the strong

strategy and focused course of action that has served us well and will fuel our future growth and success No doubt there

will be challenges ahead but if we commit our time and energy to influencing those things that we can in fact control we

can flourish and grow Working togethe we can reach our goal of becoming the dominant New Jersey based bank in all

the markets we serve

Thank you to our employees customers and shareholders for their faith energy and teamwork Our collective commitment

and contribution enable us to succeed every day and will ensure bright future for all of us

Bernard Brown Thomas Geisel

Chairman of the Board President Chief Executive Officer
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Sun Bancorp Inc and Subsidiaries

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

At or for the Years Ended December31 2010 2009 2008 2007

Selected Balance sheet Data

Total assets $3417546 $3578905 $3622126 $3338392 $3325563

Cash and investments 680719 516312 512017 548152 695222

Loans receivable net of allowance for loan losses 2453457 2657694 2702516 2482917 2339584

Total deposits 2940460 2909268 2896364 2699091 2667997

Borrowings 33417 146193 154097 154213 160622

Junior subordinated debentures 92786 92786 92786 97941 108250

Shareholders equity 268242 356593 358508 362177 342227

Selected Results of Operations

Interest income 145603 150999 174634 197823 183950

Net interest income 110962 100157 99661 98836 99078

Provision for loan losses 101518 46666 20000 8403 3807

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 9444 53491 79661 90433 95271

Non-interest income 15512 17070 32299 26155 19746

Non-interest expense 201052 104067 92640 88963 89393

Net loss income 185418 17131 14894 19352 17274

Net loss income available to common shareholders 185418 22482 14894 19352 17274

Per Share Data

Loss earnings per common share

Basic 6.56 0.97 0.63 0.81 0.74

Diluted 6.56 0.97 0.62 0.78 0.70

Book Value 5.33 15.29 15.57 15.13 14.42

Selected Ratios

Return on average assets 5.20% 0.47% 0.44% 0.58% 0.53%

Return on average equity 56.93 4.44 4.09 5.45 5.28

Ratio of average equity to average assets 9.13 10.69 10.72 10.72 10.09

11 Oata is adjusted tor 5% stock dividend issued in May 2009
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Sun Bancorp Inc and Subsidiaries

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AND RESULtS OF OPERATIONS

All
dollar amounts presented in the tables are in thousands

The Company is bank holding company headquartered in Vineland

New Jersey and has an executive office in Mt Laurel New Jersey

with its principal subsidiary being Sun National Bank the Bank At

December 31 2010 the Company Mad total assets of $3.42 billion total

liabilities of $3.15 billion and total shareholders equity of $268.2 million

The Companys principal business is to serve as holding company

for the Bank As registered bank holding company the Company is

subject to the supervision and regulation of the Board of Governors of

the Federal Reserve System

Through the Bank the Company provides commercial and consumer

banking services As of December 31 2010 the Company had 66

locations throughout New Jersey

The Company offers comprehensive array of lending depository and

financial services to its commercial and consumer customers throughout

the marketplace The Companys lending services to businesses include

term loans and lines of credit mortgage loans construction loans and

equipment leasing The Company is Preferred Lender with both the

Small Business Administration SBA and the New Jersey Economic

Development Authority The Companys commercial deposit services

indlude business checking accounts and cash management services

such as electronic banking sweep accounts lockbox services online

banking remote deposit and controlled disbursement services The

Companys lending services to consumers include residential mortgage

loans residential construction loans second mortgage loans home equity

loans and installment loans The Companys consumer deposit services

include checking accounts savings accounts money market deposits

certificates of deposit and individual retirement accounts In addition

the Company offers mutual funds securities brokerage annuities and

investment advisory services through third-party arrangement

The Company funds its lending activities primarily through retail and

brokered deposits the scheduled maturities of its investment portfolio

and other wholesale funding sources

As financial institution with primary focus on traditional banking

activities the Company generates the majority of its revenue through

net interest income which is defined as the difference between interest

income earned on loans and investments and interest paid ondeposits

and borrowings Growth in net interest income is dependent upon the

Companys ability
to prudently manage the balance sheet for growth

combined with how successfully it maintains or increases net interest

margin which net interest income as percentage of average interest-

earning assets

The Company also generates revenue through fees earned on the

various services and products offered to its customers and through

sales of loans primarily SBA loans and residential mortgages Offsetting

these revenue sources are provisions for credit losses on loans operating

expenses and ihcome taxes

Market Overview

The economy has experienced improvement throughout 2010

and continued stability
is anticipated into 2011 Household spending

continues to increase and business spending has also been
rising

throughout 2010 However the housing sector continues to be

depressed According to recent estimates released the U.S gross

domestic product GOP for the fourth quarter of 2010 increased at an

annual rate of 3.2% as compared to 2.6% in the third quarter of 2010

The unemployment rate in the U.S fell to 9.4% in December 2010 from

9.8% in November 2010 which was the largest monthly drop in over

decade and the lowest level since May 2009 It is anticipated that

unemployment will continue to decline slowly as economists believe that

sustained GOP growth of 3.5% is required to create significant declines

in unemployment

At the state level according to the latest South Jersey Business

Survey produced by the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia there

was an increase in business
activity during the fourth quarter of 2010

In addition many firms are optimistic about growth prospects for the

region However employment among the firms in the region showed

little to no improvement in the fourth quarter

ORGANIZATION OF INFORMATION

Managements Discussion and Analysis provides narrative on the

financial condition and results of operations of Sun Bancorp Inc the

Company that should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

consolidated financial statements It includes the following sections

OVERVIEW

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCFS

FINANCIAL CONDITION

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

OVERVIEW

General Overview
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At its latest meeting in January 2011 the Federal Reserve decided

to keep the Federal Funds target rate unchanged in continued effort

to help stimulate economic growth Since December 2008 the Federal

Reserve has kept the Federal Funds rate key indicator of short-

term rates such as credit card rates and HELOC rates at range of

0.D0%-D.25% with the intent of encouraging consumers and businesses

to borrow and spend to help jump start the economy However Federal

Reserve policymakers are increasingly focused on when and how to

start boosting rates once the recovery is firmly entrenched In addition

to keeping the Federal Funds rate at historically low levels the Federal

Reserve provided liquidity to the financial system through purchases of

Treasury Agency and Mortgage Backed Securities In an article by the

Associated Press it noted that the Federal Reserve is also cautiously

considering what to do with its vast holdings of mortgage-backed

securities The challenge being to sell those assets to drain liquidity from

the financial system in such way that will not significantly increase

mortgage rates and depreciate home prices In February 2010 the

Federal Reserve increased its discount window rate to 0.75% from

0.50% which is where it had been since December2008 The discount

window rate is the rate charged on borrowings to member banks

The housing market continues to languish with indicators of housing

activity such as New Home Sales Housing Starts and Existing Home

Sales stabilizing but at levels significantly below their peaks in 2005 and

2006 However the supply of homes is still believed to be in excess of

year in parts of New Jersey according to the New Jersey Real Estate

Report And according to an analysis from LPS Applied Analytics as

reported in November 2010 by the Wall Street Journal the average

nationwide borrower whose home is in the foreclosure process has not

made payment in 16 months

The commercial real estate markets are expected to continue to

be challenge for banks during 2011 and beyond Over the next four

years analysts project that approximately $1.4 trillion in commercial

real estate loans will reach the end of their terms and will require new

financing with nearly half of these loans to borrowers who owe more

than the property is worth Commercial property values have fallen

more than 40% nationally since their 2007 peak and with vacancy rates

increasing and rents decreasing further declines in these values are

expected Analysts believe the pressure on property values will continue

as loans that were made during the height of the commercial real estate

boom between 2005 and 2007 based on higher appraised values are

now coming up on the end of their terms

The continued uncertainty with the economy together with the

challenging regulatory environment will continue to affect the Company

and the markets in which it does business and may adversely impact

the Companys results in the future The following discussion provides

further detail on the financial condition and results of operations of the

Company at and for the year ended December 31 2010

Executive Summary

The Companys net loss available to common shareholders for 2010

was $185.4 million or $6.56 per diluted share compared to net loss

of $22.5 million or $0.97 per diluted share in 2009 The following is an

overview of key factors affecting the Companys results for 2010

Net interest income on tax-equivalent basis for 2010 was

$112.8 million compared to $102.2 million in 2009 Due to

historically low interest rates on interest-bearing deposits the

Companys net interest margin improved to 3.50% for 2010 as

compared to 318% in 2009 The interest rate spread was 3.28%

for the year ended December 31 2010 as compared to 2.87% for

the year ended December 31 2009

goodwill impairment charge of $89.7 million during the three

months ended June 30 2010

$49.9 million write-down of the Companys net deferred tax

asset during the three months ended September 30 2010

During the fourth quarter of 2010 the Company completed multiple

loan sales totaling $76.6 million of book balance of criticized and

classified commercial real estate loans to strengthen the balance

sheet The Company recognized net loss of $25.1 million on these

sales

The provision for loan losses increased $54.9 million over the

prior year to $101.5 million in 2010 The 2010 loan loss provision

included $21.3 million in losses related to the aforementioned loan

sales The allowance for loan losses to total loans was 3.22% at

December 31 2010 compared to 2.21% at December 31 2009

Total non-performing assets were $177.7 million at December 31

2010 or 7.01% of total loans and real estate owned compared to

$105.4 million nr 3.86% of total loans and real estate owned at

December31 2009 Net charge-offs for 2010 were $79.8 million

or 2.95% of average loans outstanding compared to $24.0 million

or 0.88% of average loans outstanding in 2009

Other-than-temporary impairment charges totaling $1.3 million on

one pooled trust preferred security and one private label mortgage

backed security included in the Companys investment portfolio

due to credit deterioration of the underlying collateral
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results

of operations are based on the Consolidated Financial Statements

which are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles in the United States of America GAAP The preparation of

these financial statements requires management to make estimates and

assumptions affecting the reported amounts of assets and liabilities

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts

of income and expenses Management evaluates these estimates

and assumptions on an ongoing basis including those related to the

allowance for loan losses goodwill intangible assets income taxes

stock-based compensation and the fair value of financial instruments

Management bases its estimates on historical experience and various

other factors and assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under

the circumstances These form the basis for making judgments on the

carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from

other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates under

different assumptions or conditions

Allowance for Loan Losses Through the Bank the Company

originates loans that it intends to hold for the foreseeable future or until

maturity or repayment The Company may not be able to collect all

principal and interest due on these loans The allowance for loan losses

represents managements estimate of probable credit losses inherent

in the loan portfolio as of the balance sheet date The determination of

the allowance for loan losses requires management to make significant

estimates with respect to the amounts and timing of losses and market

and economic conditions The allowance for loan losses is maintained

at level that management considers adequate to provide for estimated

losses and impairment based upon an evaluation of known and inherent

risk in the loan portfolio Loan impairment is evaluated based on the

fair value of collateral or estimated net realizable value provision for

loan losses is charged to operations based on managements evaluation

of the estimated losses that have been incurred in the Companys

loan portfolio It is the policy ot management to provide for losses on

unidentified loans in its portfolio in addition to classified loans

Management monitors its allowance for loan losses on monthly

basis and makes adjustments to the allowance through the provision

for loan losses as economic conditions and other pertinent factors

indicate The quarterly review and adjustment of the qualitative factors

employed in the allowance methodology and the updating of historic loss

experience allow for timely reaction to emerging conditions and trends

In this context series of qualitative factors are used in methodology

as measurement of how current circumstances are affecting the loan

portfolio Included in these qualitative factors are

Levels of past due classified and non accrual loans troubled debt

restructurings and modifications

Nature and volume of loans

Changes in lending policies and procedures underwriting standards

collections charge offs and recoveries and for commercial loans

the level of loans being approved with exceptions to policy

Experience ability and depth of management and staff

National and local economic and business conditions including

various market segments

Quality of the Companys loan review system and degree of Board

oversight

Concentrations of credit by industry geography and collateral type

with specific emphasis on real estate and changes in levels of

such concentrations

Effect of external factors including the deterioration of collateral

values on the level of estimated credit losses in the current portfolio

Additionally historic loss experience over three-year loss horizon

based on rolling 12-quarter migration analysis is taken into account for

commercial loans and historic loss experience over the more conservative

of either the
trailing

four or eight quarters is calculated for non-commercial

loans In determining the allowance for loan losses management

has established both specific and general pooled allowances Values

assigned to the qualitative factors and those developed from historic loss

experience provide dynamic basis for the calculation of reserve factors

for both pass-rated loans general pooled allowance and those criticized

and classified loans without reserves specific allowance specific

allowance is calculated on individually
identified impaired loans Loans

not individually reviewed are evaluated as group using reserve factor

percentages based on historic loss experience and the qualitative factors

described above In determining the appropriate level of the general

pooled allowance management makes estimates based on internal risk

ratings which take into account such factors as debt service coverage

loan-to-value ratios and external factors Estimates are periodically

measured against actual loss experience

As changes in the Companys operating environment occur and as

recent loss experience fluctuates the factors for each category of loan

based on type and risk rating will change to reflect current circumstances

and the quality of the loan portfolio Given that the components of the

allowance are based partially on historical losses and on risk rating

changes in response to recent events required reserves may trail the

emergence of any unforeseen deterioration in credit quality

Although the Company maintains its allowance for loan losses at levels

considered adequate to provide for the inherent risk of loss in its loan

portfolio if economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions

used in making the evaluations there can be no assurance that future

losses will not exceed estimated amounts or that additional provisions

for loan losses will not be required in future periods Accordingly the

current state of the national economy and local economies of the areas in

which the loans are concentrated and their slow recovery from severe

recession could result in an increase in loan delinquencies foreclosures

or repossessions resulting in increased charge off amounts and the

need for additional loan loss allowances in future periods In addition

the Companys determination as to the amount of its allowance for loan

losses is subject to review by the Banks primary regulator the Office of

the Comptroller of the Currency the 0CC as part of its examination

process which may result in the establishment of an additional allowance

based upon the judgment of the 0CC after review of the information

available at the time of the 0CC examination
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Accounting for Income Taxes The Company accounts for income

taxes in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
Accounting Standards CodificationlM the Codification or ASC 740

Income Taxes FASB ASC 740 requires the recording of deferred income

taxes that reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between

the carrying amounts of assets and liahilities for financial reporting

purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes Management

exercises significant judgment in the evaluation of the amount and

timing of the recognition of the resulting tax assets and liabilities The

judgments and estimates required for the evaluation are updated based

upon changes in business factors and the tax laws If actual results

differ from the assumptions and other considerations used in estimating

the amount and timing of tax recognized there can be no assurance

that additional expenses will not be required in future periods The

Company recognizes when applicable interest and penalties related

to unrecognized tax benefits in the provision for income taxes in the

Consolidated Statement of Operations Assessment of uncertain tax

positions under FASB ASC 740 requires careful consideration of the

technical merits of position based on managements analysis of tax

regulations and interpretations Significant judgment may be involved in

applying the requirements of FASB ASC 740

Management expects that the Companys adherence to FASB ASC

740 may result in increased volatility in quarterly and annual effective

income tax rates as FASB ASC 740 requires that any change in judgment

or change in measurement of tax position taken in prior period be

recognized as discrete event in the period in which it occurs Factors

that could impact managements judgment include changes in income

tax laws and regulations and tax planning strategies

Fair Value Measurement The Company accounts for fair

value measurement in accordance with FASB ASC 820 Fair Value

Measurements and Disclosures FASB ASC 820 establishes framework

for measuring fair value FASB ASC 820 defines fair value as the price

that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
liability

in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement

date emphasizing that fair value is market-based measurement and not

an entity-specific measurement FASB ASC 820 clarifies the application

of fair value measurement in market that is not active FASB ASC 820

also includes additional factors for determining whether there has been

significant decrease in market activity affirms the objective of fair

value when market is not active eliminates the presumption that all

transactions are not orderly unless proven otherwise and requires an

entity to disclose inputs and valuation techniques and changes therein

used to measure fair value FASB ASC 820 addresses the valuation

techniques used to measure fair value These valuation techniques

include the market approach income approach and cost approach

The market approach uses prices or relevant information generated

by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or

liabilities The income approach involves converting future amounts to

single present amount The measurement is valued based on current

market expectations about those future amounts The cost approach

is based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the

service capacity of the asset

FASB ASC 820 establishes fair value hierarchy which
prioritizes

the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into

three broad levels The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level

and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs Level financial

instruments categorization within the fair value hierarchy is based

upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the instruments fair

value measurement The three levels within the fair value hierarchy are

described as follows

Level 1Quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities

Level 2Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level that

are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly

Level inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities

in active markets quoted prices for identical or similar assets or

liabilities in markets that are not active inputs other than quoted

prices that are observable for the asset or liability
and inputs that

are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market

data by correlation or other means

Level 3Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no

market
activity

and that are significant to the fair value of the

assets or liabilities Level assets and liabilities include financial

instruments whose value is determined using pricing models

discounted cash flow methodologies or similar techniques as well

as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires

significant management judgment or estimation

The Company measures financial assets and liabilities at fair value

in accordance with FASB ASC 820 These measurements involve

various valuation techniques and models which involve inputs that

are observable when available and include the following significant

financial instruments investment securities available for sale and

derivative financial instruments The following is summary of valuation

techniques utilized by the Company for its significant financial assets

and liabilities which are valued on recurring basis

Investment secudties available for sale Where quoted prices are

available in an active market securities are classified within Level of

the valuation hierarchy If quoted market prices are not available then

fair values are estimated using quoted prices of securities with similar

characteristics or discounted cash flows based on observable market

inputs and are classified within Level of the fair value hierarchy In

certain cases where there is limited activity or less transparency around

inputs to the valuation securities are classified within Level of the

valuation hierarchy Level market value measurements include an

internally developed discounted cash flow model combined with using

market data points of similar securities with comparable credit ratings in

addition to market yield curves with similar maturities in determining the

discount rate In addition significant estimates and unobservable inputs

are required in the determination of Level market value measurements

If actual results differ significantly from the estimates and inputs applied

it could have material effect on the Companys Consolidated Financial

Statements
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Defivative financial instruments The Companys derivative financial

instruments are not exchange-traded and therefore are valued utilizing

models that use as their basis readily observable market parameters

specifically the London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR swap curve

and are classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy

In addition certain assets are measured at fair value on nonrecurring

basis that is the instruments are not measured atfairvalue on an ongoing

basis but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances

for example when there is evidence of impairment The Company

measures loans held for sale impaired loans SBA servicing assets

restricted equity investments and loans or bank properties transferred

into other real estate owned at fair value on non-recurring basis

Valuation techniques and models utilized for measuring financial

assets and liabilities are reviewed and validated by the Company at least

quarterly

Goodwill Goodwill is the excess of the fair value of liabilities

assumed over the fair value of tangible and identifiable intangible assets

acquired in business combination Goodwill is not amortized but is

tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired Generally the

Company tests goodwill for impairment annually FASB ASC 350-20-35

outlines two-step goodwill impairment test Significant judgment is

applied when goodwill is assessed for impairment Step one which is

used t9 identify potential impairment compares the fair value of the

reporting unit with its carrying amount including goodwill As defined

in FASB ASC 280 reporting unit is an operating segment or one

level below an operating segment The Company has one reportable

operating segment Community Banking as defined in Note of

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements If the fair value of

reporting unit exceeds its carrying value goodwill of the reporting unit

is considered not impaired and step two is therefore unnecessary If the

carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value the second

step is performed to measure the amount of the impairment loss if any

An implied loss is recorded to the extent that the carrying amount of

goodwill exceeds its implied fair value

The Company performed an interim goodwill impairment analysis at

June 30 2010 In performing step one and step two of the impairment

analysis at that time the Company estimated the fair value of the

Company through the consideration of its quoted market valuation

market earnings multiples of peer companies market earnings

multiples of peer companies adjusted to include market observed

control premium i.e its acquisition value relative to its peers and

discounted economic value i.e income approach which is based on

internal forecasts recent financials and the projected outlook for the

industry The considerations above are sensitive to both the fluctuation

of the Companys stock price and those of peer companies The interim

step one impairment test completed at June 30 2010 indicated that

the Companys fair value was less than its carrying value and therefore

the Company performed step two analysis In performing the second

step of the analysis to determine the implied fair value of goodwill the

estimated fair value of the Company was allocated to all assets and

liabilities including any recognized or unrecognized intangible assets

The allocation is done as if the Company had been acquired in

business combination and the fair value was the price paid to acquire

the Company hypothetical purchase price allocation involves among

other things the assessment of core deposit intangibles the fair value of

outstanding advances and other borrowings and assessing the fair value

of our loan portfolio These assessments involve valuation techniques

that require the use of among other things Level and Level market

inputs For example the fair value adjustment on our outstanding

advances and borrowings is based upon observable trades or modeled

prices using current yield curves and market spreads The valuation of

our loan portfolio included consideration of discounts that we believe

were consistent with transactions occurring in the marketplace

The results of this analysis at June 30 2010 indicated the Companys

carrying amount of goodwill exceeded the implied fair value of the

goodwill and therefore goodwill was impaired As result the

Company recorded non-cash impairment charge of $89.7 million of

goodwill associated with previous acquisitions included in non-interest

expense in the consolidated statements of operations At December 31

2010 the Company performed its annual goodwill impairment test and

step one of the analysis indicated that the Companys implied fair value

was greater than its carrying value therefore the Companys goodwill

was not impaired at December 31 2010 However given the continued

turmoil in the capital markets and with bank stocks in general it is

possible that our assumptions and conclusions regarding the valuation

of our Company could change adversely in the future and could result

in impairment of our goodwill While any charge resulting from partial

or full impairment of goodwill would be non-cash charge and have

no impact on the Companys regulatory capital the charge could

have material adverse impact on our financial position and results of

operations For more information on goodwill see Notes and 10 of the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

In January 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-01 Receivables Topic

310 Deferal of the Effective Date of Disclosures about Troubled Debt

Restructurings in Update No 2010-20 This guidance temporarily delays

the effective date of the disclosures about troubled debt restructurings

in Update 2010-20 for public entities This guidance will have no impact

on the Companys financial condition or results of operations However

it is anticipated that this guidance will have an impact on the Companys

financial statement disclosures The Company is continuing to evaluate

the impact of the new guidance to its financial statements
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In July 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-20 Receivables Topic 310
Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the

Allowance for Credit Losses This guidance requires disclosure on

disaggregated basis at two levels portfolio segments and classes of

financing receivables This guidance also requires roll forward schedule

of the allowance for loan losses on portfolio segment basis with the

ending balance further disaggregated on the basis of the impairment

method the related recorded investment in financing receivables the

non-accrual status of financing receivables by class and impaired

financing receivables by class Additional disclosures are required that

relate to the credit quality indicators ot financing receivables at the end

of the reporting period by class of financing receivables the aging of

past due financing receivables the nature and extent of troubled debt

restructurings and their effect on the allowance for loan losses the

nature and extent of financing receivables modified as troubled debt

restructurings within the previous 12 months that defaulted during the

reporting period by class of financing receivables and their effect on

the allowance for credit losses and significant purchases and sales

of financing receivables during the period disaggregated by portfolio

segment The new guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting

periods ending on or after December 15 2010 The Company adopted

the new guidance with the exception of the disclosures related to

troubled debt restructurings on December 31 2010 and the guidance

did not have an impact on the Companys financial condition or results of

operations See Notes and of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for more information on the Companys loan portfolio and

allowance for loan losses

In February 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-09 Subsequent

Events Topic 855 Amendments to Certain Recognition and Disclosure

Requirements This guidance removes the requirement for SEC filer to

disclose date through which subsequent events have been evaluated in

both issued and revised financial statements Revised financial statements

include financial statements revised as result of either correction of

an error or retrospective application of GAAP FASB ASU 2010 09 is

intended to remove potential conflicts with the SECs literature and all of

the amendments were effective upon issuance except for the use of the

issued date for conduit debt obligors which was effective for interim or

annual periods ending after June 15 2010 The Company adopted the

new guidance upon issuance and the guidance did not have an impact on

the Companys financial condition or results of operations

In January 2010 the FASB issued FASB ASU 2010-06 Fair Value

Measurements and Disclosures Topic 820 Improving Disclosures

about Fair Value Measurements This guidance requires disclosure

of the significant amounts transferred in and out of Level and

Level fair value measurements and the reasons for the transfers and

separate presentation of purchases sales issuances and settlements

in the reconciliation for fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs Level In addition FASB ASU 2010-06 clarifies

the requirements of the following existing disclosures set forth in FASB

ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures for purposes of

reporting fair value measurement for each class of assets and liabilities

reporting entity needs to use judgment in determining the appropriate

classes of assets and liabilities and reporting entity should provide

disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure

fair value for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements

This guidance was effective for interim and annual reporting periods

beginning January 2010 except for disclosures about purchases sale

issuances and settlements in the roll forward of
activity

in Level fair value

measurements which are effective for fiscal years beginning January

2011 and for interim periods within those fiscal years The Company

adopted the guidance on January 2010 and the guidance did not have

an impact on the Companys financial condition or results of operations

See Note 25 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for

more information on the Companys fair value measurements

In June 2009 the FASB issued new guidance that impacted

FASB ASC 810 The new guidance significantly changes the criteria

for determining whether the consolidation of variable interest
entity

is

required The new guidance also addresses the effect of changes required

by FASB ASC 860 Transfers and Senicing and addresses concerns that

the accounting and disclosures do not always provide timely and useful

information about an entitys involvement in variable interest entity The

guidance was effective January 2010 and did not have an impact on

the Companys financial condition or results of operations

In June 2009 the FASB issued new guidance that impacted FASB

ASC 860 The new guidance eliminates the concept of qualifying

special purpose entity QSPE modifies the criteria for applying sale

accounting to transfers of financial assets or portions of financial assets

differentiates between the initial measurement of an interest held in

connection with the transfer of an entire financial asset recognized as

sale and participating interests recognized as sale and removes the

provision allowing classification of interests received in guaranteed

mortgage.securitization transaction that does not qualify as sale as

available for sale or trading securities The new guidance will improve

the relevance and comparability of the information that reporting entity

provides in its financial statements about transfer of financial assets

the effects of transfer on its financial position financial performance

and cash flows and the transferors continuing involvement if any in

transferred financial assets The guidance was effective for January

2010 and did not have an impact on the Companys financial condition

or results of operations
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion focuses on the major components of the

Companys operations and presents an overview of the significant

changes in the results of operations during the past three fiscal years

This discussion should be reviewed in conjunction with the Consolidated

Financial Statements and notes thereto presented elsewhere in

this Annual Report All earnings per share amounts are presented

assuming dilution

Net Interest Income Net interest income is the most significant

component of the Companys income from operations Net interest

income is the difterence between interest earned on total interest

earning assets primarily loans and investment securities on fully

taxable equivalent basis where appropriate and interest paid on total

interest bearing liabilities primarily deposits and borrowed funds Fully

taxable equivalent basis represents income on total interest-earning

assets that is either tax-exempt or taxed at reduced rate adjusted to

give effect to the prevailing incremental federal tax rate and adjusted for

nondeductible carrying costs and state income taxes where applicable

Yield calculations where appropriate include these adjustments

Net interest income depends on the volume and interest rate earned

on interest-earning assets and the volume and interest rate paid on

interest-bearing liabilities

The Companys net interest margin and interest rate spread in 2010

were 3.50% and 3.28% respectively as compared to 318% and

2.87% respectively for 2009 and 3.30% and 2.83% respectively for

2008 The increase in the margin during 2010 was primarily the result

of the decrease in the Companys costs of interest-bearing liabilities

During 2008 the Federal Reserve Board aggressively dropped the

target federal funds rate 400 basis points in response to concerns over

weakening economy and continuing problems in the credit markets

For the entire year of 2009 the Federal Reserve Board maintained this

target rate at historically low range of 0.0% to 0.25% Although the yield

curve was positive throughout 2009 the slope of the curve steepened

significantly in 2010 as longer term rates increased significantly from

December 31 2008 to December 31 2010 while short term rates

remained relatively stable

As result of gradual improvement in the economy and conditions

in the credit markets there is an anticipation that the Federal Reserve

Board will begin to remove excess liquidity from the financial system In

February 2010 the Federal Reserve Board began this liquidity reduction

by increasing the primary credit discount window rate 25 basis points

to 0.75% Further Federal Reserve Board rate increases could result in

compression of the Companys margin Part of the compression could

result from the floating-rate loan floors which provided an income

benefit as rates declined but will initially limit loan rate increases until

open market rates adjust sufficiently causing the loans to float above

the floor rate In addition the Company expects liability rates will be

under upward pressure due to open market conditions and competitive

pressures

Net interest income on tax-equivalent basis increased $10.6 million

or 10.4% to $112.8 million for 2010 compared to $102.2 million for

2009 Interest income on tax-equivalent basis decreased $5.6 million

from 2009 to $147.4 million for 2010 while interest expense decreased

$16.2 million from 2009 to $34.6 million for 2010 Net interest income on

tax-equivalent basis increased $753000 or 0.7% to $102.2 million

for 2009 compared to $101.4 million for 2008 Interest income on tax-

equivalent basis decreased $23.4 million from 2008 to $153.0 million

for 2009 while interest expense decreased $24.2 million from 2008 to

$50.8 million for 2009

Table provides detail regarding the Companys average daily

balances with corresponding interest income on tax-equivalent basis

and interest expense as well as yield and cost information for the years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 Average balances are

derived from daily balances Table further provides certain information

regarding changes in interest income and interest expense of the

Company for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008
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TABLE STATEMENTS OF AVERAGE BALANCES INCOME OR EXPENSE YIELD OR COST

Years Ended December31 2010 2009 2008

Average Income Yield Average Income Yield Average Income Yield

Balance Expense Cost Balance Expense Cost Balance Expense Cost

$2245118

251599

62349

79547

60874

2699487

452365

69803

$105210

11714

3889

4415

4163

129391

17846

166

3221655 147403

4.69%

4.66

6.24

5.55

6.84

4.79

3.95

0.24

4.58

0.81

0.77

1.76

1.15

$104713

13219

4845

4235

4799

131811

21114

83

153008

10672

2937

30748

44357

4.68%

4.98

6.45

5.66

6.58

4.84

4.77

0.21

4.77

0.99

0.99

2.75

1.78

47393

52944

95010

150558

345905

$3567560

$1312871

295121

899038

2507030

16907

16069

$123693

15574

5433

3509

5945

154154

21707

260

265

176386

14355

7632

43865

65852

Interest-earning assets

Loans receivable 1t
Commercial and industrial

Home
equity

Second mortgage

Residential real estate

Other

Total loans receivable

Investment securities

Interest-earning deposits with banks

Federal funds sold

Total
interest-earning

assets

Non-interest-earning assets

Cash and due from banks

Bank properties and equipment

Goodwill and intangible assets

Other assets

Total non-interest earning assets

Total assets

Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing deposit accounts

Interest-bearing demand deposits

Savings deposits

Time deposits

Total
interest-bearing deposit accounts

Short-term borrowings

Federal tunds purchased

Repurchase agreements with customers

Long-term borrowings

FHLBNY advances

Obligation under capital lease

Junior subordinated debentures

Total borrocNings

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Non-interest-bearing liabilities

Non-interest-bearing demand deposits

Other liabilities

Total non-interest-bearing liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders equity

Total liabilifles and shareholders equity

Net interest income

Interest rate spread

Net interest margin

Ratio ot average interest-

earning assets to average

interest-bearino liabilities

5.84%

5.78

6.52

6.31

7.03

5.90

5.01

1.63

1.73

5.73

1.64

1.93

3.95

2.77

10692

2283

15805

28780

$2237940

265240

75084

74823

72946

2726033

442868

40029

94

3209024

60687

50522

144461

145015

400685

$3609709

$1073337

297820

1118120

2489277

39607

17997

32178

6788

92786

189356

2678633

446713

98339

545052

3223685

386024

$3609709

$2119795

269336

83348

55598

84575

2612652

433226

15967

15279

3077124

56104

48179

149150

69855

323288

$3400412

874463

395288

1110941

2380692

18370

34976

50582

5221

92871

202020

2582712

422388

30919

453307

3036019

364393

$3400412

89 0.53

29 0.18

114 0.29

42 0.23

421 2.29

478 1.37

22710 1076

8212 550

92786 4117

156684 5861

2663714 34641

481757

96420

578177

3241 891

325669

$3567560

$112762

1439

466

4424

6485

50842

$102166

4.74

6.70

4.44

3.74

1.30

3.28%

3.50%

120.95%

2127

381

5714

9121

74973

$101413

4.47

6.87

4.77

3.42

1.90

2.87%

3.18%

119.80%

4.21

7.30

6.15

4.51

2.90

2.83%

3.30%

119.14%

Average balances include non-accrual loans see Non-Performing and Problem Assets

Loan fees are included in interest income and the amount is not material for this analysis

Interest earned on non taxable investment securities is shown on tax equivalent basis assuming 35% marginal federal tax rate for all periods The fully taxable equivalent adjustment

for the years ended December31 2010 2009 and 2008 was $1.8 million $2.0 million and $1.8 million respectively

Amounts include Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York FHLBNY and Securities sold under agreements to repurchase FHLBNY

Interest rate spread represents the difference between the average yield on interest earning assets and the average cost of interest bearing liabilities

Net interest margin represents net interest income as percentage ot average interest earning assets
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Interest income on tax-equivalent basis decreased $5.6 million or

3.7% to $147.4 million for 2010 compared to $153.0 million in 2009

primarily due to decrease in interest income earned on investments

of $3.3 million Yields earned on investments declined 82 basis points

due primarily to the sale of $170.6 million in available for sale securities

Interest income on loans decreased $2.4 million as average loans

receivable declined $26.5 million or 1.0% over the prior year The

Company relied primarily on core deposit growth supplemented with

wholesale borrowings to support its loan funding during 2010

Interest income on tax-equivalent basis decreased $23.4 million

or 13.3% to $153.0 million for 2009 compared to $176.4 million in

2008 primarily due to decrease in interest income earned on loans of

$22.3 million Yields earned on average loans receivable declined 106 basis

points which resulted in decrease in interest income of $28.5 million as

approximately 52% of the Companys loan portfolio is priced at variable

rate tied to an index such as Prime or LIBOR This decrease was offset by

an increase in interest income on loans of $6.2 million as average loans

receivable grew $113.4 million or 4.3% over the prior year The Company

relied primarily on core deposit growth supplemented with wholesale

borrowings to support its loan funding during 2009

TABLE RATE-VOLUME VARIANCE ANALYSIS

Years Ended December 31 2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

Increase Decrease Due To Increase Decrease Due To

Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

Interest income

Loans receivable

Commercial and industrial 336 161 497 $6617 $25597 $18980
Home equity 659 846 1505 233 2122 2355
Second mortgage 798 158 956 531 57 588
Residential real estate 263 83 180 1116 390 726

Other 820 184 636 782 364 1146

Total loans receivable 1678 742 2420 6187 28530 22343

Investment securities 443 3711 3268 472 1065 593

Interest-earning deposits with banks 69 14 83 175 352 177
Federal funds sold

Total interest-earning assets 1166 4439 5605 6702 30080 23378

Interest expense

Interest-bearing deposit accounts

Interest-bearing demand deposits 2141 2121 20 2802 6485 3683
Savings deposits 26 628 654 1578 3117 4695
Time deposits 5250 9693 14943 282 13399 13117

Total interest-bearing deposit accounts 3135 12442 15577 1506 23001 21495

Short-term borrowings

Federal funds purchased 91 66 25 244 551 307

Repurchase agreements with customers 13 161 275 436

Long-term borrowings

FHLBNY advances 436 73 363 813 125 688

Obligation under capital lease 96 12 84 109 24 85

Junior subordinated debentures 307 307 1285 1290

Total borrowings 436 188 624 626 2010 2636

Total interest-bearing liabilities 3571 12630 16201 880 25011 24131

Net change in net interest income 2405 8191 10596 5822 5069 753

For each
category of interest earning assets and interest bearing lab flUes information is provided on changes attributable to changes in volume changes in average volume

mulUpted by the prior year rate and changes in rate changes in rate multiphed by the prior year average volume The combined effect of changes in both volume and rate has been

allocated to volume or rate changes in proportion to the absolute dollar amounts ot the change in each

Amounts include Advances from the FHLBNY and securities sold under agreements to repurchase FHLaNY
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Interest expense decreased $16.2 million 0131.9% to $34.6 million

for 2010 compared to $50.6 million in 2009 primarily due to decrease

in the cost of interest bearing deposits of $15.6 million or 63 basis

points The Company continued to lower interest rates on its deposit

products during 2010

Interest expense decreased $24.2 million or 32.2% to $50.8 million

for 2009 compared to $75.0 million in 2008 primarily due to decrease in

the cost of interest bearing deposits of $21.5 million The cost of average

interest-bearing deposits decreased 99 basis points as the Company

aggressively lowered interest rates on deposits during 2009 which

resulted in shift from higher cost deposit products particularly from

certificates of deposit to lower cost core deposit products The costs of

borrowings decreased 109 basis points due primarily to decreased interest

rates on federal funds purchased and customer repurchase agreements

Provision for Loan Losses The Company recorded provision for

loan losses of $101.5 million during 2010 as compared to $46.7 million

during 2009 and $20.0 million during 2008 The Companys total loans

before allowance for loan losses were $2.54 billion at December 31

2010 as compared to $2.72 billion and $2.74 billion at December 31

2009 and 2008 respectively The ratio of allowance for loan losses to

loans receivable was 3.22% at December 31 2010 compared to 2.21%

and 1.36% at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively Net charge

ofts were $79.8 million or 2.95% of average loans outstanding for the

year ended December 31 2010 as compared to $24.0 million or 0.88%

of average loans outstanding and $9.7 million or 0.37% of average

loans outstanding at December 31 200w and 2008 respectively The

charge offs in 2010 included $21.7 million in losses recorded on the sale

of $76.6 million in book balance of criticized and classified commercial

real estate loans during three month period ended December31 2010

Excluding the charge-offs related to the loan sale total commercial

charge ofts were $51.8 million in 2010 Charge offs were primarily driven

by six commercial relationships for $23.2 million of which $9.2 million

related to multi-bank borrower fraud The Company continues to

provide for higher provision levels based on continuing elevated level of

delinquencies non-accrual loans and criticized and classified loans as

well as continued pressure on collateral values which reflect in part the

impact of the recent recession on many of the Companys commercial

customers specifically those in the hospitality industry

The increase in 2009 net charge offs as compared to 2008 was

primarily due to $13.1 million of charge-offs associated with four

commercial relationships including an $8.0 million charge down in

loans to distributor of heavy construction equipment $3.0 million in

subsequent charge-downs in resort-oriented residential construction

project $1.1 million charge-down of loan to manufacturer of

consumer products and $1.0 million charge-down of loan to

wholesaler/retailer of golf course greens

At least quarterly management performs an analysis to identify the

inherent risk of loss in the Companys loan portfolio This analysis includes

qualitative evaluation of concentrations of credit past loss experience

current economic conditions amount and composition of the loan

portfolio including loans being specifically monitored by management

estimated fair value of underlying collateral delinquencies and other

factors Additionally management updates the migration analysis and

historic loss experience on quarterly basis

Non-Interest Income Non-interest income decreased $1.6 million

or 9.1% to $15.5 million for 2010 as compared to $17.1 million for 2009

The primary drivers of this change are $12.2 million increase in the

loss on derivative credit valuations as compared to the prior year period

offset by $5.8 million reduction in other-than-temporary impairment

on investment securities from 2009 to 2010 and $4.8 million increase

on gains on the sale of available for sale securities included in other

income in the consolidated statements of operations

Non-interest income decreased $15.2 million or 47.2% to

$17.1 million for 2009 as compared to $32.3 million for 2008 The

decrease for 2009 was primarily due to the recognition of net gain

on the sale of the Companys six branch offices located in Delaware of

$11.5 million in 2008 In addition the Company experienced decrease

in gains on derivative instruments of $2.3 million due to planned

decline in transaction volume and decrease in service charges on

deposits accounts such as overdraft fees of $1.5 million also the result

of lower transaction volume

Non-Interest Expense Non-interest expense increased $97.0 million

or 93.2% to $201.1 million for 2910 as compared to $104.1 million for

2009 The primary driver of this increase was the goodwill impairment

charge of $89.7 million recorded in the quarter ended June 30 2010

Salaries and benefits increased $3.4 million or 6.7% from the prior year

primarily due to the addition of several key management and business

line staff severance and other related charges and an increase in health

benef it costs Problem loan expenses increased $3.2 million 01163.6%

from 2009 to 2010 due to credit deterioration in the commercial real

estate loan portfolio

Non-interest expense increased $11.4 million or 12.3% to

$104.1 million for 2009 as compared to $92.6 million for 2008

Salaries and benefits increased $4.1 million primarily due to the

addition of several key management and business line staff severance

and other related charges and an increase in health benefit costs

Insurance expense increased $4.8 million or 156.5% primarily due to

higher FDIC assessment rates special FDIC insurance assessment

of $1.6 million full year of additional coverage under the Temporary

Liquidity Guarantee Program TLGP and an overall increase in

assessable deposits In addition non-interest expense increased as the

cost of real estate owned increased $1.8 million primarily as result of

the write-down of two properties for total of $950000 during 2009

and an overall net gain of $589000 recognized in 2008 on the sale of

four real estate properties

Income Tax Expense Income tax expense increased $25.7 million

from tax benefit position of $16.4 million for the year ended

December 31 2009 to income tax expense of $9.3 million for 2910

This increase is the result of $49.9 million deferred tax valuation

allowance recorded in the quarter ended September 30 2010 This

increase was partially offset by the income tax benefit the Company

was able to realize through the carry back of its losses created by net

loss of $176.1 million for the year ended December 31 2010 net of the

non-taxable goodwill impairment charge of $89.7 million Income taxes

decreased $20.8 million to tax benefit position of $16.4 million for the

year ended December 31 2009 as compared to income tax expense

of $4.4 million for 2008 primarily as the result of the recognition of

pre-tax loss of $33.5 million
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The liquidity of the Company is the ability to maintain cash flows that

are adequate to fund operations and meet its other obligations on

timely and cost-effective basis in various market conditions The ability

of the Company to meet its current financial obligations is function of

balance sheet structure the ability to liquidate assets and the availability

of alternative sources of funds To meet the needs of the clients and

manage the risk of the Company the Company engages in liquidity

planning and management

The major source of the Companys funding is deposits which

management believes will be sufficient to meet the Companys daily

and long-term operating liquidity needs The ability of the Company

to retain and attract new deposits is dependent upon the variety and

effectiveness of ith customer account products customer service and

convenience and rates paid to customers The Company also obtains

funds from the repayment and maturities of loans maturities or calls

of investment securities as well as from variety of wholesale funding

sources including but not limited to brokered deposits federal funds

purchased FHLBNY advances securities sold under agreements to

repurChase and other secured and unsecured borrowings Additional

liquidity can be obtained from loan sales or participations In continued

effort to balance deposit growth and net interest margin especially in

the current interest rate environment and with highly competitive local

deposit pricing the Company continually evaluates these other funding

sources for funding cost efficiencies During the year the Company

aggressively lowered interest rates on deposits while managing overall

funding and
liquidity

As result of this planned reduction in deposit

rates the Company has recognized shift from higher cost deposit

products particularly from certificates of deposit to lower cost core

deposit products Core deposits which exclude all certificates of

deposit increased $170.5 million to $2.14 billion or 72.8% of total

deposits at December 31 2010 as compared to $1.97 billion or

67.8% of total deposits at December 31 2009 The Company has

additional secured borrowing capacity with the Federal Reserve Bank

of approximately $256.3 million and the FHLBNY of approximately

$32.2 million At December 31 2010 $0 and $19.0 million of the

Companys secured borrowing capacity through the Federal Reserve

Bank and the FHLBNY was utilized respectively The Company has

additional unsecured borrowing capacity through lines of credit with

other financial institutions of approximately $45.0 million Management

continues to monitor the Companys liquidity
and has taken measures to

increase its borrowing capacity by providing additional collateral through

the pledging of loans As of December 31 2010 the Company had

par value of $421.5 million and $23.8 million in loans and securities

respectively pledged as collateral on secured borrowings

The Cumpanys primary uses of funds are the origination of loans

the funding of the Companys maturing certificates of deposit deposit

withdrawals the repayment of borrowings and general operating

expenses Certificates of deposit scheduled to mature during the

12 months ending December 31 2011 total $579.2 million or

approximately 72.5% of total certificates of deposit The Company

continues to operate with core deposit relationship strategy that

values long-term stable customer relationship This strategy employs

pricing strategy that rewards customers that establish core accounts

and maintain certain minimum threshold account balance Based on

market conditions and other liquidity considerations the Company may

also avail itself to the secondary borrowings discussed above

Total loans receivable decreased $204.2 million or 7.7% during 2010

The Company anticipates that deposits cash and cash equivalents on

hand the cash flow from assets as well as other sources of funds will

provide adequate liquidity for the Companys future operating investing

and financing needs

Management currently operates under capital plan for the Company

and the Bank that is expected to allow the Company and the Bank to

grow capital internally at levels sufficient for achieving its internal growth

projections while managing its operating and financial risks The principal

components of the capital plan are to generate additional capital through

retained earnings from internal growth access the capital markets for

external sources of capital such as common equity and capital securities

when necessary or appropriate redeem existing capital instruments and

refinance such instruments at lower rates when conditions permit and

maintain sufficient capital for safe and sound operations The Company

continues to assess its plan for contingency capital needs and when

appropriate the Companys Board of Directors may consider various

capital raising alternatives As part of its assessment the Company

performs stress tests on select balance sheet components deemed to

have inherent risk given relevant economic and regulatory conditions in

an effort to gauge potential exposure on its capital position

On July 2010 the Company entered into Securities Purchase

Agreements with WLR 581 Acquisition Co an affiliate of WL Ross

Co WL Ross members and affiliates of the Banks founding

Brown Family the Brown Family certain affiliates of Siguler Guff

Company LP the Siguler Guff Shareholders and certain other

institutional and accredited investors the Other Investors collectively

fhe Investors On September 22 2010 the Company completed

the sale of 4672750 shares of the Companys common stock

$1.00 par value per share the Common Stock and 88009 shares

of its Mandatorily Convertible Cumulative Non-Voting Perpetual Stock

Series the Series Preferred Stock for aggregate consideration

of $106.7 million in cash and resulted in approximately $98.5 million in

net proceeds to the Company affer expenses At the Annual Meeting of

Shareholders held on November 2010 the Companys shareholders

approved the amendment to the Companys Amended and Restated

Certificate of Incorporation allowing for the conversion of 88009 shares

of Series Preferred Stock to 22002250 shares of the Companys

common stock at conversion price of $4.00 exclusive of certain anti

dilution adjustments Upon conversion WL Ross beneficially owned

approximately 24.8% of the Companys outstanding common stock the

Brown Family beneficially owned approximately 29.0% of the Companys

outstanding common stock and Siguler Guff beneficially owned 9.9% of

the Companys outstanding common stock None of the Other Investors

beneficially own more than 2% of the Companys voting securities

The Company is subject to regulatory capital requirements adopted

by the Federal Reserve Board for bank holding companies The Bank is

also subject to similar
capital requirements adopted by the 0CC Under

the requirements the federal bank regulatory agencies have established

quantitative measures to ensure that minimum thresholds for Total Capital

Tier Capital and Leverage Tier Capital divided by average assets
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ratios are maintained Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can

initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by

regulators that if undertaken could have direct material effect on the

Companys and the Banks consolidated financial statements Under capital

adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective

action the Cumpany and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines

that involve quantitative measures of their assets and certain off-balance

sheet items as calculated under regulatory practices The Companys and

the Banks
capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative

judgments by the federal bank regulators about components risk weightings

and other factors The Companys and the Banks risk-based capital ratios

have been computed in accordance with regulatory practices The Company

and the Bank were in compliance with these regulatory capital requirements

of the Federal Reserve Board and the 0CC as of December 31 2010 As

discussed below and elsewhere herein additional
capital requirements have

been imposed on the Bank by the 0CC which the Bank was also in full

compliance with as of December 31 2010

On April 15 2010 the Bank entered into an Agreement with the

0CC the 0CC Agreement which contained requirements to develop

and implement profitability and capital plan which will provide for the

maintenance of adequate capital to support the Banks risk
profile

in

the current economic environment The capital plan was also required

to contain dividend policy allowing dividends only if the Bank is in

compliance with the capital plan and obtains prior approval from the

0CC During the second quarter of 2010 the Company delivered its

profit and capital plans to the 0CC

The Bank also agreed to implement program to protect the

Banks interest in criticized or classified assets review and revise

the Banks loan review program implement program for the

maintenance of an adequate allowance for loan losses and revise

the Banks credit administration policies During the second quarter of

2010 the Company revised and implemented changes to policies and

procedures pursuant to the 0CC Agreement As noted earlier in this

section the Bank also agreed that its brokered deposits will not exceed

3.5% of its total liabilities unless ap3roved by the 0CC Management

does not expect this restriction will limit its access to
liquidity as the

Bank does not rely on brokered deposits as major source of funding

At December 31 2010 the Banks brokered deposits represented 2.8%

of its total liabilities

The Bank is also subject to individual minimum capital ratios

established by the 0CC for the Bank requiring the Bank to continue

to maintaih Leverage ratio at least equal to 8.50% of adjusted total

assets to continue to maintain Tier Capital ratio at least equal to

9.50% of risk-weighted assets and to achieve by June 30 2010 and

thereeffer maintain Total Capital ratio at least equal to 11.50% of

risk-weighted assets At December 31 2010 the Bank exceeded all

of the three capital ratio requirements established by the 0CC as its

Leverage ratio waa 8.57% its Tier Capital ratio was 10.98% and its

Total Capital ratio was 12.25%

Management is.taking all of the necessary actions to ensure the Bank

becomes fully compliant with all requirements of the 0CC Agreement

For Capital

Adequacy Purposes

Amount Ratio

To Be Well-Capitalized

Under Prompt Corrective

Action Provisions

Amount Ratio

Not applicable to bank holding companies

The Companys ratio of tangible equity to tangible assets which is

non-GAAP financial measure of risk was 6.51% at December31 2010

compared with 6.24% at December 31 2009 Tangible equity and

tangible assets are calculated by subtracting identifiable intangible assets

and goodwill from shareholders equity and total assets respectively

and may be used by investors to assist them in understanding how much

loss exclusive of intangible assets and goodwill can be absorbed before

shareholders equity is depleted The Companys and Banks regulators

also exclude intangible assets and goodwill from shareholders equity

when assessing capital adequacy of each
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TABLE REGULATORY CAPITAL LEVELS

December Si 2010 Actual

Amount Ratio

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Sun Bancorp Inc $350697 12.68% $221242 B.D0% N/A

Sun National Bank 338196 12.25 220904 8.D0 $276131 10.00%

Tier Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets

Sun Bancorp Inc 315523 11 .41 110621 4.00 N/A

Sun National Bank 303074 10.98 110452 4.00 165678 6.00

Leverage Ratio

Sun Bancorp Inc 315523 8.93 141351 4.00 N/A

Sun National Bank 303074 8.57 141407 4.00 176759 5.00



The Companys capital securities are deconsolidated in accordance

with GAAP and qualify as Tier capital under federal regulatory

guidelines These instruments are subject to 25% capital limitation

under risk-based capital guidelines developed by the Federal Reserve

Board In March 2005 the Federal Reserve Board amended its risk-

based capital standards to expressly allow the continued limited inclusion

of outstanding and prospective issuances of capital securities in bank

holding companys Tier capital subject to tightened quantitative

limits The Federal Reserves amended rule was to become effective

March 31 2009 and would have limited capital securities and other

restricted core capital elements to 25% of all core capital elements

net of goodwill less any associated deferred tax
liability

On March 16

2009 the Federal Reserve Board extended for two years the
ability

for

bank holding companies to include restricted core capital elements as

Tier capital up to 25% of all core capital elements including goodwill

The portion that exceeds the 25% capital limitation qualifies as Tier

or supplementary capital of the Company At December 31 2010 the

entire $90.0 million in capital securities qualify as Tier

The Banks deposits are insured to applicable limits by the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC As part of the Dodd-Frank

Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 the Dodd-

Frank Act which was signed into law on July 21 2010 the maximum

deposit insurance limit is $250000 In April 2010 the FDIC adopted

an interim rule providing six-month extension of the Transaction

Account Guarantee TAG program for insured depository institutions

until December 31 2010 Insured institutions that were participating

in the TAG program that wanted to opt out of the extension had until

April 30 2010 to submit their request For institutions that chose to

remain in the TAG program after July 2010 the basis for calculating

the current assessments as well as the interest rates on negotiable

order of withdrawal NOW accounts guaranteed under the program

were modified The Bank opted to participate in the extension which

expired on December 31 2010

In addition the Dodd-Frank Act amended the Federal Deposit

Insurance Act to provide for full deposit insurance coverage for non

interest-bearing transaction accounts for two year period beginning

December 31 2010 This will apply to all insured depository institutions

with no opt in or opt out requirements

The ability of the Bank to pay dividends to the Company is controlled

by certain regulatory restrictions Generally dividends declared in

given year by national bank are limited to its net profit as defined by

regulatory agencies for that year combined with its retained net income

for the preceding two years less any required transfer to surplus or to

fund for the retirement of any preferred stock In addition national

bank may not pay any dividends in an amount greater than its undivided

profits and national bank may not declare any dividends if such

declaration would leave the bank inadequately capitalized Therefore

the ability of the Bank to declare dividends will depend on its future

net income and capital requirements Also banking regulators have

indicated that national banks should generally pay dividends only out of

current operating earnings Further per the 0CC Agreement dividend

may only be declared if it is in accordance with the approved capital

plan the Bank remains in compliance with the capital plan following the

payment of the dividend and the dividend is approved by the DCC As

result of these restrictions the amount available for payment of dividends

to the Company by the Bank totaled $0 at December 31 2010

During 2008 the economic environment caused higher levels of

bank failures which dramatically increased FDIC resolution costs and

led to significant reduction in the Deposit Insurance Fund DIF To

ensure that the deposit insurance system remains sound and in an effort

to restore the reserve ratio of the DIF to at least 115% of estimated

insured deposits as required under the FDICs Restoration Plan the

FDIC voted on December 16 2008 to increase initial base assessment

rates uniformly by basis points cents for every $100 of deposits

beginning with the first quarter of 2009 On February 27 2009 the

FDIC adopted final rule to modify the risk-based assessment system

and to reset initial base assessment rates Effective April 2009 initial

base assessment rates range from 12 basis points to 45 basis points

across all risk categories with possible adjustments to these rates based

on certain debt-related components The FDIC also extended the period

of the Restoration Plan from five years to seven years

In May 2009 the FDIC imposed special assessment equal to basis

points of assets less Tier capital as of June 30 2009 payable on

September 30 2009 and reserved the
right to impose additional

special assessments In November 2009 instead of imposing additional

special assessments the FDIC amended the assessment regulations to

require all insured depository institutions to prepay their estimated risk-

based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010

2011 and 2012 on December 30 2009 For purposes of estimating the

future assessments each institutions base assessment rate in effect

on September 30 2009 was used assuming 5% annual growth rate

in the assessment base and basis point increase in the assessment

rate in 2011 and 2012 The prepaid assessment will be applied against

actual quarterly assessments until exhausted Any funds remaining after

June 30 2013 will be returned to the institution If the prepayment

impairs an institutions
liquidity or otherwise creates significant hardship

it was able to apply for an exemption Requiring this prepaid assessment

does not preclude the FDIC from changing assessment rates or from

further revising the risk-based assessment system On December 30

2009 the Company paid the FDIC prepaid assessment of $18.3 million

which will be recognized as expense for three-year period from that

date At December 31 2010 the remaining balance of the FDIC prepaid

assessment was $11.1 million with $6.1 million being recognized in

expense during 2010

The Dodd-Frank Act requires changes to number of components

of the FDIC insurance assessment with an implementation date of

April
2011 The changes amend the current methodology used to

determine the assessments paid by institutions with assets greater

than $10 billion including changing the assessment base from deposits

to total average assets less tier capital Additionally the FDIC has
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developed scorecard approach to determine separate assessment

rate for each institution with assets greater than $10 billion

In addition to risk-based deposit insurance premiums additional

assessments may be imposed by the Financing Corporation separate

U.S government agency affiliated with the FDIC on insured deposits

to pay for the interest cost of Financing Corporation bonds Financing

Corporation assessment rates for 2010 ranged from $0102 to $0104

for each $100 of deposits These premiums and assessments are not

expected to have material impact on the Companys financial condition

or results of operations

Under federal law deposits and certain claims for administrative

expenses and employee compensation against an insured depository

institution are afforded priority over other general unsecured claims

against such an institution including federal funds and letters of credit

in the liquidation or other resolution of such an institution by any receiver

appointed by regulatory authorities Such
priority creditors would include

the FDIC

See Note 24 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for

additional information regarding regulatory matters

Asset and Liability Management Interest rate credit and

operational risks are among the most significant market risks impacting

the performance of the Company The Company has an Asset Liability

Committee ALCO composed of senior management representatives

from variety of areas within the Company ALCO which meets

monthly devises strategies and tactics to maintain the net interest

income of the Company within acceptable ranges over variety of

interest rate scenarios Should the Companys risk modeling indicate an

undesired exposure to changes in interest rates there are number of

remedial options available including changing the investment portfolio

characteristics and changing loan and deposit pricing strategies Two

of the tools used in monitoring the Companys sensitivity to interest rate

changes are gap analysis and net interest income simulation

GapAnalysis Banks are concerned with the extent to which they are

able to match maturities or re-pricing characteristics of interest-earning

assets and interest-bearing liabilities Such matching is facilitated by

examining the extent to which such assets and liabilities are interest-

rate sensitive and by monitoring the banks interest rate sensitivity

gap Gap analysis measures the volume of interest-earning assets that

will mature or re-price within specific time period compared to the

interest-bearing liabilities maturing or re-pricing within that same time

period On monthly basis the Company and the Bank monitor their gap

primarily cumulative through both six months and one year maturities

Table provides the maturity and re-pricing characteristics of the

Companys interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities at

December 31 2010 All amounts are categorized by their actual maturity

or re-pricing date wfth the exception of interest-bearing demand deposits

and savings deposits As result of
prior experience during periods of rate

volatility and managements estimate of future rate sensitivities the Company

allocates the interest-bearing demand deposits and savings deposits into

categories noted below based on the estimated duration of those deposits

TABLE INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY SCHEDULE

December 31 2010 Maturity/Re-pricing Time Periods

0-3 Months 4-12 Months 1-5 Years Over Years Total

Interest-earning assets

Interest-earning deposits with banks 150704 150704

Loans receivable 1366733 277826 668079 71265 2383903

Investmentsecurities 121320 116627 154190 109978 502115

Total interest-earning assets 1638757 394453 822269 181243 3036722

Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing demand deposits 366564 436945 397381 163968 1364858

Savings deposits 30574 91733 117317 39462 279086

Time certificates 237906 341 345 218513 670 798434

FHLBNY advances 267 813 1855 1064 3999

Securities sold under agreements

to repurchase FHLBNY 15000 15000

Securities sold under agreements

to repurchase customer 6307 6307

Junior subordinated debentures 82580 10206 92786

Obligation under capital lease 59 184 1170 6698 8111

Total interest-bearing liabilities 724257 871020 761442 211862 2568581

Periodic gap 914500 $476567 60827 30619 468141

Cumulative gap 914500 $437933 $498760 $468141

Cumulative gap as of total assets 26.8% 12.8% 14.6% 13.7%
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At December 31 2010 the Compenys gap analysis showed an

asset-sensitive position with total interest-bearing assets maturing or

re pricing within one year exceeding interest-earning liabilities maturing

or re-pricing during the same time period by $437.9 million representing

positive one-year gap ratio of 12.8% All amounts are categorized

by their actual maturity anticipated call or re-pricing date with the

exception of interest bearing demand deposits and savings deposits

Though the rates on interest-bearing demand and savings deposits

generally trend with open market rates they often do not fully adjust

to open market rates and frequently adjust with time lag As result

of prior experience during periods of rate volatility
and managements

estimate of future rate sensitivities the Company allocates the interest-

bearing demand deposits and savings deposits based on an estimated

decay rate for those deposits

Net Interest Income Simulation Due to the inherent limitations

of gap analysis the Company also uses simulation models to measure

the impact of changing interest rates on its operations The simulation

model attempts to capture the cash flow and re-pricing characteristics

of the current assets and liabilities on the Companys balance sheet

Assumptions regarding such things as prepayments rate change

behaviors level and composition of new balance sheet activity and new

product lines are incorporated into the simulation model Net interest

income is simulated over 12-month horizon under variety of linear

yield curve shifts subject to certain limits agreed to by ALC0

Net interest income simulation analysis at December 31 2010

shows position that is slightly liability
sensitive as rates increase The

net income simulation results are impacted by an expected continuation

of deposit pricing competition which may limit deposit pricing flexibility

in both increasing and decreasing rate environments floating-rate loan

floors
initially limiting loan rate increases and

relatively
short

liability

maturity structure including retail certificates of deposit

Actual results may differ from the simulated results due to such

factors as the timing magnitude and frequency of interest rate

changes changes in market conditions management strategies and

differences in actual versus forecasted balance sheet composition and

activity Table provides the Companys estimated earnings sensitivity

profile versus the most likely rate forecast as of December 31 2010

TABLE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

December 31 2010

The Company anticipates that strong deposit pricing competition

will continue to limit deposit pricing flexibility in an increasing and

decreasing rate environment

200 4.2%

100 1.4%

-100 -2.3%

-200 -5.0%

Derivative Financial Instruments The Company utilizes certain

derivative financial instruments to enhance its ability to manage interest

rate risk that exists as part of its ongoing business operations In general

the derivative transactions entered into by the Company fall into one of

two types fair value hedge of specific fixed-rate loan agreement

and an economic hedge of derivative offering to Bank customer

Derivative financial instruments involve to varying degrees interest rate

market and credit risk The Company manages these risks as part of its

asset and
liability management process and through credit policies and

procedures The Company seeks to minimize counterparty credit risk by

establishing credit limits and collateral agreements The Company does

not use derivative financial instruments for trading purposes For more

information on the Companys financial derivative instruments please

see Note 19 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Disclosures about Contractual Obligations and Commercial

Commitments Purchase obligations include significant contractual

cash obligations Table provides the Companys contractual cash

obligations at December 31 2010 Included in Table are the minimum

contractual obligations under
legally enforceable contracts with contract

terms that are both fixed and determinable The majority of these

amounts are primarily for services including core processing systems

and telecommunications maintenance

TABLE SENSITIVITY PROFILE

Change in Interest Rates

Basis Points

Percentage Change in Net

Interest Income Year

Payments Due by Period

LessThan to3 4to5 After5

Total Year Years Years Years

Time deposits 798434 $579190 $206946 $11628 670

Long-term debt 168479 5.179 24393 4817 134.090

Leases 39268 4700 8200 6385 19983

Purchase obligations off-balance sheet 14144 5210 7092 1842

Total contractual cash obligations $1020325 $594279 $246631 $24672 $1 54743

Amount represents the book value ot time deposits including brokered time deposits
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The Compeny maintains reserve for unfunded loan commitments

and letters of credit which is reported in other liabilities in the

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition consistent with

FASB ASC 825 Financial Instruments As of the balance sheet date

the Company records estimated losses inherent with unfunded loan

commitments in accordance with FASB ASC Contingencies and

estimated future obligations under letters of credit in accordance with

FASB ASC 460 Guarantees The methodology used to determine the

adequacy of this reserve is integrated in the Companys process for

establishing the allowance for loan losses and considers the probability

of future losses and obligations that may be incurred under these off-

balance sheet agreements The reserve for unfunded loan commitments

and letters of credit at December 31 2010 and December 31 2009

was $1.5 million and $965000 respectively Management believes this

reserve level is sufficient to absorb estimated probable losses related to

these commitments

In October 2007 Visa Inc Visa announced that it had completed

restructuring in preparation of its initial public offering planned for the

first quarter of 2008 At the time of the announcement the Company

was member of the Visa USA network As part of Visas restructuring

the Company received 13325 shares of restricted Class USA stock

in Visa in exchange for the Companys membership interests The

Table provides the Companys off balance sheet commitments see

information at December 31 2010

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by

the Company to guarantee the performance of customer to third

party The guarantees are primarily issued to support private borrowing

arrangements The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is

essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to

customers In the event of draw by the beneficiary that complies with

the terms of the letter of credit the Company would be required to

honor the commitment The Company takes various forms of collateral

such as real estate assets and customer business assets to secure

the commitment Additionally all letters of credit are supported by

indemnification agreements executed by the customer The maximum

Company did not recognize gain or loss upon receipt of Class USA

shares in October 2007 In November 2007 Visa announced that it

had reached an agreement with American Express related to its claim

that Visa and its member banks had illegally blocked American Express

from the bank-issued card business in the U.S The Company was not

named defendant in the lawsuit and therefore was not directly
liable for

any amount of the settlement However in accordance with Visas by

laws the Company and other Visa USA Inc wholly-owned subsidiary

of Visa members were obligated to indemnify Visa for certain losses

including the settlement of the American Express matter On May 28

2010 Visa deposited an additional $500 million into the
litigation escrow

account previously established to satisfy specific settlement obligations

Visa funded the additional amount into the escrow account by reducing

each Class shareholders conversion ratio to Visa Class shares from

0.5824 to 0.5550 Furthermore on October 2010 Visa deposited

another $800 million into the
litigation escrow account further reducing

the conversion ratio from 0.5550 to 0.51 02 The Company currently

has 7672 Class shares with zero cost basis The Companys

indemnification obligation is limited to its proportionate interest in Visa

USA Inc The Company determined that its potential indemnification

obligations based on its proportionate share of ownership in Visa USA

was not material at December 31 2010

Note 18 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional

undiscounted exposure related to these commitments at December 31

2010 was $57.5 million and the portion of the exposure not covered by

collateral was approximately $846000 We believe that the utilization

rate of these letters of credit will continue to be substantially less than the

amount of these commitments as has been our experience to date

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices The consolidated

financial statements of the Company and notes thereto presented

elsewhere herein have been prepared in accordance with GAAP which

require the measurement of financial condition and operating results

without considering the change in the relative purchasing power of

money over time and due to inflation The impact of inflation is reflected

TABLE OFF BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS

December 312010 Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Unfunded Less Than to to After

Commitments Year Years Years Years

Linesof credit $297369 $145404 $18403 $1765 $131797

Commercial standby letters of credit 57503 51949 5554

Construction funding 55602 45760 9842

Other commitments 27806 27806

Total off balance sheet commitments $438280 $270919 $33799 $1765 $131797
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in the increased cost of the Companys operations Nearly all the assets

and liabilities of the Company are monetary As result interest rates

have greater impact on the Companys performance than do the

effects of general levels of inflation Interest rates do not necessarily

move in the same direction or to the same extent as the price of goods

and services

FINANCIAL CONDITION

The Companys assets were $3.42 billion at December 31 2010

compared to $3.58 billion at December31 2009 Gross loans receivable

decreased $182.5 million or 6.7% to $2.54 billion at December 31

2010 as compared to $2.72 million at December 31 2009 The

investment portfolio increased $36.3 million or 7.9% to $493.5 million

at December 31 2010 from $457.2 million at December 31 2009

Deposits increased li% to $2.94 billion at December 31 2010 as

compared to $2.91 billion at December 31 2009 Excluding federal

funds purchased and junior subordinated debentures borrowings

decreased $23.6 million or 48.2% to $25.3 million at December 31

2010 Federal funds purchased decreased to $0 at December31 2010

from $89.0 million at December 31 2019

Loans Loans receivable decreased $182.5 million from the
prior

year end to $2.54 billion at December 31 2010 as the Company sold

$76.6 million of book balance of criticized and classified commercial

TABLE SUMMARY OF LOAN PORTFOLIO

real estate loans The Companys home equity portfolio which includes

second mortgages decreased $33.5 million in comparison to the prior

year end The Company continues to see competition for loans across

all products and market segments During 2010 competitive pressures

have been somewhat muted by lessening in loan demand brought on

by the impact of the recent recession

The trend of the Companys lending continues to reflect the geographic

and borrower diversification of the commercial loan portfolio As the

Companys marketplace has expanded within the State of New Jersey

commercial lending activities have grown especially in the central and

northern parts of the state The recent recession which impacted all

aspects of the national and regional economy and the slow pace of

recovery have created increased stress in our loan portfolios and have

had an adverse effect on the Companys financial condition and results

of operation At December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company did not

have more than 10% of its total loans outstanding concentrated in

any one industry category including but not limited to the hospitality

entertainment and leisure industries and general office space The loan

categories are based upon borrowers engaged in similar activities who

would be similarly impacted by economic or other conditions

Table provides selected data
relating

to the composition of the

Companys loan portfolio by type of loan and type of collateral at

December 31 2010 2009 2008 2007 and 2006

December31 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

Type of Loan

Commercial and industrial $2103492 85.74% $2249365 84.64% $2234202 82.67% $2O2472a el.55% $1925103 e2.2e%

Home equity 239729 9.77 258592 9.73 274360 10.15 264965 10.67 232321 9.93

Second mortgage 53912 2.20 68592 2.58 84388 312 elo63 3.27 77337 331

Residential real estate 79074 3.22 75322 2.83 67473 2.50 49750 2.00 38418 1.64

Other 58963 2.40 65776 2.47 79402 2.94 89413 3.60 92063 3.94

Less Loan loss allowance 81713 3.33 59953 2.25 37309 1.38 27002 1.09 2565e 1.10

Net loans receivaIe $2453457 100.00% $2657694 100.00% $2702516 lOftOO% $24e2917 100.00% $2339584 100.00%

Type of Collateral

Residential real estate

4family 426488 17.38% 460106 17.31% 494828 18.31% 479701 19.32% 426748 18.24%

Other 19835 0.81 22992 0.87 24692 0.91 22472 0.91 23006 0.98

Construction and land development

4tamily 28816 1.17 43803 1.65 64646 2.39 70899 2.85 90782 3.88

Other 147909 6.03 187624 7.06 153205 5.67 102044 4.11 89746 3.84

Commercial real estate 1385210 56.46 1503301 56.56 1495398 55.34 1366281 55.03 1257441 53.75

Commercial business loans 466870 19.03 425.541 16.01 434097 16.06 394.779 15.90 403869 17.26

Consumer 43835 1.79 50827 1.91 56312 2.08 56301 2.27 54127 2.31

Other 16207 0.66 23453 0.88 16647 0.62 17442 0.70 19523 0.84

Less Loan loss allowance 81713 3.33 59953 2.25 37309 1.38 27002 1.09 25658 .10

Net loans receivable $2453457 100.00% $2657694 100.00% $2702516 100.00% $2482917 100.00% $2339584 100.00%
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Many of the Companys commercial and industrial loans have real

estate component as part of the collateral securing the accommodation

Additionally the Company makes commercial real estate loans for the

acquisition refinance improvement and construction of real property

Loans secured by owner occupied properties are dependent upon

the successful operation of the borrowers business If the operating

company experiences difficulties in terms of sales volume and/or

profitability the borrowers ability to repay the loan may be impaired

Loans secured by properties where repayment is dependent upon

payment of rent by third-party tenants or the sale of the property may

be impacted by loss of tenants lower lease rates needed to attract new

TABLE ESTIMATED MATURITY OF LOAN PORTFOLIO

tenants or the inability to sell completed project in timely fashion

and ata profit At December 31 2010 commercial and industrial loans

secured by commercial real estate properties totaled $1.40 billion of

which $713.6 million or 51.0% were classified as owner occupied

and $685.6 million or 49.0% were classified as non owner occupied

Management considers these loans to be well diversified across

multiple industries

Table provides the estimated maturity of the Companys loan

portfolio at December 31 2010 The table does not include potential

prepayments or scheduled principal payments Adjustable rate mortgage

loans are shown based on contractual maturities

December 31 2010

Due Within

Year

Due After

Through

Years

Due After

Years

Allowance for

Loan Loss Total

Commercial and industrial $519434 $818636 765422 $76759 $2026733

Home equity 11670 9796 272175 3084 290557

Residential real estate 2865 232 75977 661 78413

Other 428 3577 54958 1209 57754

Total $534397 $832241 1168532 $81713 $2453457

Amount includes both home equity and second mortgages

Table 10 provides the dollar amount of all loans due one year or more

after December31 2010 which have pre-determined interest rates and

which have floating or adjustable interest rates

TABLE 10 LOANS GREATER THAN 12 MONTHS

December 31 2010 Fixed-Rates

Floating or

Adjustable

Rates Total

Commercial and industrial $564833 $101 9225 $1 584058

Home equity 986 227502 228488

Second mortgage 48959 4524 53483

Residential real estate 39648 36741 76389

Other 57087 1448 58535

Total $711513 $1289440 $2000953

See Notes and of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for additional information on loans

Non-Performing and Problem Assets

Loan Dellnquencies The Companys collection procedures provide for

late charge assessment after commercial loan is 10 days past due or

residential mortgage loan is 15 days past due The Company contacts

the borrower and payment is requested If the delinquency continues

subsequent efforts are made to contact the borrower If the loan continues

to be delinquent for 90 days or more the Company usually declares the

loan to be in default and payment in full is demanded The Company will

initiate collection and foreclosure proceedings and steps will be taken

to liquidate any collateral taken as security for the loan unless other

repayment arrangements are made Delinquent loans are reviewed on

case-by-case basis in accordance with the lending policy

Interest accruals are generally discontinued when loan becomes

90 days past due or when collection of principal or interest is considered

doubtful When interest accruals are discontinued interest credited to

income in the current year is reversed and interest accrued in the prior

year is charged to the allowance for loan losses Generally commercial

loans are charged-off no later than 180 days delinquent and residential

real estate loans are typically charged off at 90 days delinquent

unless the loan is well secured and in the process of collection or other

extenuating circumstances support collection In all cases loans must

be placed on non-accrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection

of principal or interest is considered doubtful

Non-Performing Assets Total non performing assets increased

$72.3 million from $105.4 million at December31 2009 to $1717 million

at December 31 2010 This increase was primarily result of an

increase in non-accrual loans of $83.3 million of which $11.8 million

was troubled debt restructuring TDR Commercial non-accrual

SUN BANcOAP INC



loans were $160.3 million at December 31 2010 During 2010 the

Company sold $67.9 million of non-performing loans however the

continued migration of credits in the commercial portfolio continued to

keep the level of non-accrual loans elevated Interest income that would

have been recorded on non-accrual loans as of December 31 2010

TABLE 11 SUMMARY OF NON-PERFORMING ASSETS

Total non-performing loans to net loans receivable

Total non-performing loans to total assets

Total non-performing assets to net loans receivable

Total non-performing assets to total assets

Total allowance for loan losses to total non-performing loans

Potential Problem Loans At December 31 2010 there were 16 loan

relationships aggregating $62.0 million for which known information

exists as to the potential inability of the borrowers to comply with

present loan repayment terms and have therefore caused management

to place them on its internally monitored loan list The classification

of these loans however does not imply that management expects

losses but that it believes higher level of scrutiny is prudent under

the circumstances These loans were not classified as non-accrual and

under the original terms of such loans would have totaled approximately

$5.4 million for 2010 The ratio of non-performing assets to net loans

increased to 7.24% at December 31 2010 compared to 3.96% at

December 31 2009

7.08% 3.61% 1.73% 1.14% 0.62%

5.08% 2.68% 1.29% 0.84% 0.44%

7.24% 3.96% 1.81% 1.19% 0.65%

5.20% 2.94% .35% 0.89% 0.46%

47.02% 62.56% 79.69% 95.77% 175.50%

were not considered non-performing Depending upon the state of the

economy future events and their impact on these borrowers these

loans and others not currently so identified could be classified as non-

performing assets in the future At December 31 2010 these loans

were current and well collateralized

Real Estate Owned Real estate acquired by the Company as result

of foreclosure or in lieu of deed and bank property that is not in use is

classified as real estate owned until such time as it is sold The property

Table 11 provides summary of non-performing assets at December 31 2010 2009 2008 2007 and 2006

December 31 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Non-performing loans

Loans accounted for on non-accrual basis

Commercial and industrial $148517 73596 $37528 $23965 $12453

Home equity lines of credit 4616 4737 1682 1322 1170

Home equity term loans 1134 938 130 73 109

Residential real estate 4243 7443 2225 574 273

Other 916 1168 668 919 317

Total non-accruing loans 159426 87882 42233 26853 14322

TDR non-accruing 11796

Accruing loans that are contractually past due 90 days or more

Commercial and industrial 1167 6457 4014 855 250

Home equity lines of credit 379 286 12

Home equity term loans 891

Residential real estate 72 49 162 330

Other 936 561 125 158 36

Total loans 90-days past due 2554 7958 4587 1343 298

Total non-performing loans 173776 95840 46820 28196 14620

Real estate owned 3913 9527 1962 1449 600

Total non-performing assets $177689 $105367 $48782 $29645 $15220
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acquired through foreclosure or in lieu of deed is carried at the lower of

the related loan balance or fair value of the property based on current

appraisal less esU mated cost to dispose Losses arising from foreclosure

are charged against the allowance for loan losses Bank property is

carried at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated cost to dispose

Costs to maintain real estate owned and any subsequent gains or losses

are included in the Companys results of operations Table 12 provides

summary of real estate owned at December 31 2010 and 2009

Insurance proceeds received and applied as cost
recovery

ot the carrying value of the property

Real estate owned decreased $5.6 million to $3.9 million at

December 31 2010 as compared to December 31 2009 During

2010 the Company transferred $3.3 million in book value of loans into

real estate owned including four commercial properties aggregating

$3.1 million and one residential property for $201000 In addition

four bank properties aggregating $1.3 million in book value were closed

during 2010 and the balances transferred into real estate owned The

Company moved one commercial property with an estimated fair

value of $1.9 million into operations In 2010 the Company recorded

$154000 of write-downs of real estate owned including $130000 on

the carrying value of two bank properties and $24000 on the carrying

value of two residential properties There was one commercial property

and two residential properties with carrying amounts of $8.0 million and

$57000 respectively sold during the year ended December 31 2010

resulting in combined gain of $18000 which is included in non-

interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations The

Company received insurance proceeds on one residential property and

recognized reduction of carrying value of $154000 See Note of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information

on real estate owned

TABLE 12 SUMMARY OF REAL ESTATE OWNED

December 31 2010 2009

Commercial properties $1261 $8007

Residential properties 497 531

Bank properties 2155 989

Total $3913 $9527

Underlying Property

Commercial Residential

8007 531

3128 201

Allowances for Losses on Loans The Companys allowance

for losses on loans was $81.7 million or 3.22% of loans receivable

at December 31 2010 compared to $59.9 million or 2.21% of loans

receivable at December 31 2009 The provision for loan losses was

$101.5 million for 2010 $46.7 million for 2009 and $20.0 million for

2008 The increase in the provision for loan losses is partially due to

$21.3 million in losses recorded on the sale of $76.6 million in book

balance of criticized and classified commercial real estate loans in

December 2010 The remainder of the increase can be attributed to

continued uncertainty in the economic environment increased trends

in delinquency and non-accruals and higher level of net charge-

oils due to diminished operating cash flows of our borrowers and

depreciated collateral values Net charge-offs were $79.8 million for

the year ended December 31 2010 as compared to $24.0 million for

the year ended December 31 2009 The increase in net charge-offs

during 2010 was primarily due to $21.7 million of losses recorded on

the sale of commercial real estate loans six commercial relationships

of $23.0 million of which $9.2 million related to borrower fraud For

the credit related charge-offs management has been monitoring the

performance economic climate and future cash flow potential nf these

Table 13 provides summary of real estate owned activity for the year ended December 31 2010

TABLE 13 SUMMARY OF REAL ESTATE OWNED ACTIVITY

At or for year-ended December 312010 Bank Total

Balance beginning of year 989 9527

Transfers into real estate owned 1296 4625

Transfers into operations 1900 1900
Sale of real estate owned 7974 57 8031
Write down of real estate owned 24 130 154

Othe1 154 154

Balance end of year $1261 $497 $2155 $3913
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relationships for some time and strongly believes all of these borrowers

have been profoundly impacted by the severity of the recession and the

seemingly prolonged return to stable economic conditions The increase

in 2010 net charge-offs resulted in an increase in net charge-offs to

average outstanding loans to 2.95% for 2010 as compared to 0.88%

for 2009 and 0.37% for 2008 Non-performing loans also increased

$71.5 million to $159.4 million at December 31 2010 as compared

to $87.9 million at December 31 2009 During 2010 the Company

entered into its first TDR agreements two of which were on non-accrual

Table 15 provides the allocation of the Companys allowance for loan

losses by loan category and the percent of loans in each category to

loans receivable at December 31 2010 2008 2007 2006 and 2005

The portion of the allowance for loan losses allocated to each loan

status and had carryihg amounts of $11.8 million The third TDR was

on accrual status due to sustained payment performance and had

carrying value of $20.3 million at December 31 2010 Throughout

2010 the Company experienced continued higher levels of delinquency

across majority of its loan portfolios The continuing stress of the

economic downturn impacted in particular number of the Companys

pans to the hospitality self-storage and construction land and

development relationships

category does not represent the total available for future losses that

may occur within the loan category since the allowance for loan losses

is valuation reserve applicable to the entire loan portfolio

SUN BANCORP Iwc

Table 14 provides information with respect to changes in the Companys allowance for loan losses for the years ended December31 2010 2009

2008 200L and 2006

TABLE 14 ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

At or for the Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Allowance for loan losses beginning of year 59953 37309 27002 $25658 $22463

Charge-offs

Commercial and industrial 74014 19898 6520 5044
Home equity 3435 1795 1012 513

Second mortgage 761 81 81 45
Residential real estate 1085 360 346

Other 1507

80802

2614

24748

2769

10728

2116

7718

1311

22

11 77

2513Total charge-offs

Recoveries

Commercial and industrial 482 334 619 274 319

Homeequity 60 67 24 13

Second mortgage 26 11

Residential real estate 199

Other 277 316 386 383 299

Total recoveries 1044 726 1035 659 642

Net charge-offs 79758 24022 9693 7059 1871
Purchased allowance resulting from bank acquisition 1259

Provision for loan losses 101518 46666 20000 8403 3807

Allowance for loan losses end of year 81713 59953 37309 $27002 $25658

Net loans charged-off as percent of average loans outstanding 2.95% 0.88% 0.37% 0.29% 0.08%

Allowance for loan losses as percent of total gross loans outstanding 3.22% 2.21% .36% .08% .08%



TABLE 15 ALLOCATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Total allowance for loan

losses $81713 100.0% $59953 100.00% $37309 100.00% $27002 100.00% $25658 100.00%

Amount includes both home equity and second mortgages

See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on the allowance for loan losses

InvestmuntSecurities Investment securities available fur sale and

held to maturity increased $34.2 million or 7.7% from $441.7 million

at December 31 2009 to $475.9 million at December 31 2Db

During 2010 the Company realized OTTI charges of $950D00 on

single issuer trust preferred security with par value of $5.0 million

and $379000 on private label mortgage-backed security with

par value of $7.9 million The cumulative UTTI on the private label

mortgage-backed security is $730000 The estimated average life of

the investment portfolio at December 31 2010 was 6.9 years with an

estimated modified duration of 4.6 years The reinvestment strategy for

2011 is expected to maintain the average life duration and portfolio size

at approximately the same levels as December 31 2010

The Companys investment policy is established by senior management

and approved by the Board of Directors It is based on asset and liability

management goals and is designed to provide portfolio of high quality

investments that optimizes interest income within acceptable limits of

risk and liquidity

Table 16 provides the estimated fair value and amortized cost of the

Companys portfolio of investment securities at December 31 2010

2009 and 2008 For all debt securities classified as available for sale

the carrying value is the estimated fair value

December31 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

Allowance for loan losses

commercial and industrial $76759 82.97% $55359 82.77% $33342 81.55% $23170 80.67% $22384 81.34%

Residential real estate 661 3.12 494 2.77 375 2.46 290 1.98 174 1.62

Homeequity1 3084 11.58 3034 12.04 2738 13.09 2175 13.79 1937 13.08

Other 1209 2.33 1066 2.42 854 2.90 1367 3.56 1163 3.95

TABLE 16 SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES

December31 2010 2009 2008

Net Net Net

Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated

Amortized Gains Fair Amortized Gains Fair Amortized Gains Fair

Cost Losses Value Cost Losses Value Cost Losses Value

Available for sale

U.S.Treasuryobligations 47017 47019 2003 2007 1988 11 1999

U.S Government agencies 47537 737 48274 61273 330 60943

U.S Government agency

mortgage-backed securities 329973 1486 328487 240966 7628 248594 258448 2573 261021

Other mortgage backed securities 7472 1335 6137 9222 2342 6880 10863 4308 6555

State and municipal obligations 82744 347 82397 104305 1384 105689 80304 3228 77076

Trust preferred securities 12867 7225 5642 28814 7940 20874 30315 15833 14482

Other 3182 3182 2420 2420 1437 1437

Total available for sale

investmentsecurities $483255 $10391 $472864 $435267 529 $434738 $444628 $21115 $423513

Held to maturity

U.S Government agency

mortgage backed securities 2887 116 3003 5123 186 5309 7762 22 7784

Other mortgage-backed securities 152 152 1832 20 1812 6003 186 5817

Total held to maturity

investment securities 3039 166 3155 6955 166 7121 $13765 164 $13601
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The Company determines whether the unrealized losses are temporary

in accordance with FASB ASC 325-40 when applicable and FASB ASC

320-10 The evaluation is based upon factors such as the creditworthiness

of the underlying borrowers performance of the underlying collateral

if applicable and the level of credit support in the security structure

Management also evaluates other facts and circumstances that may

be indicative of an 0111 condition This includes but is not limited to an

evaluation of the type of security length of time and extent to which the

fair value has been less than cost and near-term prospects of the issuer

For the year ended December 31 2010 the Company reviewed its

unrealized losses on securities to determine whether such losses were

considered to be 0TTI As previously discussed this review indicated

$1.3 million of such unrealized losses were due to deterioration in credit

of the underlying securities Based on such the $1.3 million decline was

recorded as an OTTI charge during the year ended December 31 2010

Application of the guidance did not have an impact on any other securities

in unrealized loss position

U.S Government Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities At

December 312010 the gross unrealized loss in the category of less than

12 months of $4.3 million consisted of 17 mortgage-backed securities

with an estimated fair value of $158.4 million issued and guaranteed

by U.S Government sponsored agency The Company believes the

unrealized losses are due to increases in market interest rates since the

time the underlying securities were purchased The Company monitors

key credit metrics such as delinquencies defaults cumulative losses

and credit support levels to determine if an 0111 exists As of December

31 2010 management concluded that an 0111 did not exist on any of

the aforementioned securities based upon its assessment Management

also concluded that it does not intend to sell the securities and that it is

not more likely than not it will be required to sell the securities before

their recovery which may be maturity and management expects to

recover the entire amortized cost basis of these securities

Other Mortgage-Backed Securities At December 31 2010 the

gross unrealized loss in the category of 12 months or longer of $1 .3 million

consisted of three non-agency mortgage backed securities with an

estimated fair value of $6.3 million Of these securities two were rated

AM by at least one nationally recognized rating agency and the remaining

security was rated as non-investment grade The Company monitors key

credit metrics such as delinquencies defaults cumulative losses and credit

support levels to determine if an 0111 exists As of December 31 2010

management concluded that an 0111 did not exist on the two securities rated

AM and believes the unrealized losses are due to increases in market

interest rates since the Ume the underlying securities were purchased

An 0111 charge of $379000 was recorded on the non investment grade

security as previously mentioned Management also concluded that it does

not intend to sell the securities and that it is not more likely than not it

will be required to sell the securities before their recovery which may be

maturity and management expects to recover the entire amortized cost

basis of these securities adjusted for any 0111 charges

State and Municipal Obligations At December 31 2010 the

gross unrealized loss in the category of less than 12 months of $940000

consisted of 75 municipal securities with an estimated fair value of

$34.1 million The category consisted of 74 securities rated investment

grade by at least one nationally recognized rating agency with fair market

value of $32.7 million and one non-rated municipal security with an

estimated fair value of $1 .4 million The Company believes the unrealized

losses are due to increases in market interest rates since the time the

underlying securities were purchased The Company monitors
rating

changes in those issues rated by nationally recognized rating agency and

performs in-house credit reviews on those non rated issues The Company

believes recovery of fair value is expected as the securities approach their

maturity date or as valuations for such securities improve as market yields

change As of December 31 2010 management concluded that an 0111

did not exist on any of the aforementioned securities based upon its

Table 17 provides the gross unrealized losses and fair value at December 31 2010 aggregated by investment category and length of time the

individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position

TABLE 17 ANALYSIS OF GROSS UNREALIZED LOSSES BY INVESTMENT CATEGORY

December 312010 Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

Gross Gross Gross

Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

U.S Government agency

mortgage-backed securities $158432 $4348 $158432 4348
Other mortgage-backed securities 6289 1335 6289 1335
State and municipal obligations 34135 940 34135 940

Trust preferred securities 5642 7225 5642 7225

Total $192567 $5288 $11931 $856O $204498 $13848
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assessment Management also concluded that it does not intend to sell the

securities and that it is not more likely than not it will be required to sell the

securities before their recovery which may be maturity and management

expects to recover the entire amortized cost basis of these securities

Trust Preferred Securities At December 31 2010 the gross

unrealized loss in the category of 12 months or longer of $7.2 million

consisted of two trust preferred securities The trust preferred securities

are comprised of one non-rated single issuer security with an amortized

cost of $4.1 million and an estimated fair value of $1.3 million and one

non-investment grade rated pooled security with an amortized cost of

$8.8 million and estimated fair value of $4.4 million The non-investment

grade pooled security is senior position in the capital structure with

approximately 128 times principal coverage as of the last reporting

date adjusted for any OTTI charges

In August 2009 the issuer of the single issuer trust preferred security

elected to defer its normal quarterly dividend payment As contractually

permitted the issuer may defer dividend payments up to five years

with accumulated dividends and interest on those deferred dividends

payable upon the resumption of its scheduled dividend payments The

issuer is currently operating under an agreement with its regulators

The agreement stipulates the issuer must receive permission from its

regulators prior to resuming its scheduled dividend payments

During the year ended December 31 2010 the Company recorded

an OTTI charge of $4.0 million related to this deferring single issuer

trust preferred security The $4.0 million OTTI charge was comprised

of credit related charge of $950000 and market valuation charge

of $3.1 million Based on the Companys most recent evaluation the

Company does not expect the issuer to default on the security based

primarily on the issuers subsidiary bank reporting that it meets the

minimum regulatory requirements to be considered well capitalized

institution However the Company recognizes the length of time the

issue has been in deferral the difficult economic environment and some

weakened performance measures increased the probability that full

recovery of principal and anticipated dividends may not be realized In

recognition of that increased probability the Company concluded that

the decline in the security was other than temporary

Expected maturities of individual securities will differ from contractual

maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay

obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties Table 18 provides

an estimated maturity summary with the carrying values and weighted

average yields on the Companys portfolio of investment securities at

December 31 2010 The investment securities are presented in the

table based on current prepayment assumptions Yields on tax-exempt

obligations have been calculated on tax-equivalent basis

TABLE 18 MATURITY DISTRIBUTION OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES

December 312010 Year or Less ito Years to 10 Years More than 10 Years Total

Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying

Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Vatue Yield

Available for sale

U.S.Treasuryobligations $45000 0.09% $2019 0.65% 47019 0.11%

U.S Government agencies

U.S Government agency

mortgage-backed securities 51462 3.45 277025 2.59 328487 2.72

Other mortgage-backed

securities 6137 2.98 6137 2.98

State and municipal

obligations 21086 .77 606 5.08 3423 4.21 57282 4.29 82397 3.65

Trust preferred securities 5642 1.49 5642 1.49

Othersecurities 3182 0.20 3182 0.20

Total available for sale

investment securities $69268 0.55% $2625 1.18% $54885 3.50% $346086 2.86% $472864 2.58%

Held to maturity

U.S Government agency

mortgage-backed securities 2887 4.43% 2887 4.43%

Other mortgage-backed

securities 152 2.14 152 2.14

Total held to maturity

investment securities 2887 4.43% 152 2.14% 3039 4.20%

See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on investment securities
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Restricted Equity Investments During 2010 restricted equity

investments increased $2.1 million to $17.6 million at December 31

2010 from $15.5 million at December31 2009 The Company through

the Bank is member of the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia

FRB the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York FHLBNY and

Atlantic Central Bankers Bank and is required to maintain an investment

in the capital stock of each The FRB FHLBNY and other bank stock

are restricted in that they can only be redeemed by the issuer at par

value These securities are carried at cost and the Company did not

identify any events or changes in circumstances that may have had an

adverse effect on the value of the investment in accordance with FASB

ASC 942 Financial Services Depositoiy and Lending As of December

31 2010 management does not believe that an OTTI of these holdings

exists and expects to recover the entire cost of these securities

BOLl During 2010 BOLl decreased $3.1 million to $74.7 million at

December31 2010 as result of decrease in the cash surrender value

of the policies as result of the death of an executive officer insured

under the policy This decrease is included in non interest income in the

consolidated statements of operations Of the $74.7 million BOLl cash

surrender value the Company had $24.2 million invested in general

account and $50.5 million in separate account at December 31

2010 The BOLl separate account is invested in mortgage-backed

securities fund which is managed by an independent investment firm

Pricing volatility of these underlying investments may have an impact

Table 19 provides summary of deposits at December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Consumer and commercial deposits are attracted principally from

within the Companys primary market area through wide complement

of deposit products that include checking savings money market

certificates of deposits and individual retirement accounts The Company

continues to operate with core deposit relationship strategy that values

the importance of building long-term stable relationship with each and

on investment income however these fluctuations would be partially

mitigated by stable value wrap agreement which is component of the

separate account While generally protected by the stable value wrap

significant declines in fair value may result in charges in future periods

for values outside the wrap coverage

Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents increased

$128.1 million to $187.2 million at December 31 2010 from $59.1

million at December31 2009 This increase is primarily due to principal

pay downs in the loan portfolio as well as $54.8 million in proceeds

from commercial real estate sales in 2010

Goodwill Goodwill decreased $89.7 million from $127.9 million at

December 31 2009 to $38.2 million at December 31 2010 due to an

impairment charge recorded as ofJune 302010 See Critical Accounting

Policies Judgments and Estimates section for additional detail

Deferred Taxes net Deferred taxes net decreased $16.5 million

to $4.2 million at December 31 2010 from $20.7 million at

December 31 2009 due to valuation allowance recorded as of

September 30 2010

Deposits Deposits at December 31 2010 totaled $2.94 billion

an increase of $31.2 million or 1.1% from December 31 2009

Core deposits which exclude all certificates of deposit increased

$170.5 million to $2.14 billion or 72.8% of total deposits at

December 31 2010 as compared to $1.97 billion or 67.8% of total

deposits at December 31 2009

every customer The relationship pricing strategy rewards customers

that establish core accounts and maintain certain minimum threshold

account balance Management regularly meets to evaluate internal cost

of funds to analyze the competition to review the Companys cash flow

requirements for lending and liquidity and executes any appropriate

pricing changes when necessary

TABLE 19 SUMMARY OF DEPOSITS

December 31 2010 2009 2008

Demand deposits $1862940 $1672233 $1401009

Savings deposits 279086 299322 301278

Time deposits under $1 00000 480993 500467 639354

Time deposits $100000 or more 228121 372497 367679

Brokered time deposits 89320 64749 187044

Total $2940460 $2909268 $2896364
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Table 20 provides the distribution ot total deposits between core and non core at December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

TABLE 20 DISTRIBUTION OF DEPOSITS

December 31 2010 2009 2008

Amount Amount Amount

Core deposits $2142026 72.8% $1971555 67.8% $1702287 58.8%

Non-core deposits 798434 27.2 937713 32.2 1194077 41.2

Total deposits $2940460 100.0% $2909268 100.0% $2896364 100.0%

Table 21 provides summary of certificates of deposit of $100000

or more by remaining maturity at December 31 2010

TABLE 21 CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT OF $100000 OR MORE

December 312010 Amount

Three months or less 76740

Over three through six months 62144

Over six through twelve months 45272

Over twelve months 43963

Total $228120

Borrowings Borrowed funds excluding federal funds purchased

and debentures held by trusts decreased $23.8 million to $33.4 million

at December 31 2010 from $57.2 million at December 31 2009

Table 22 provides the maximum month end amount of borrowings by

type during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

TABLE 22 SUMMARY OF MAXIMUM MONTH END BORROWINGS

See Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for

additional information on deposits

Years Ended December31 2010 2009

FHLBNY advances $15116 16288

FHLBNY repurchase agreements 15000 15000

FHLBNY overnight line of credit

Federal funds purchased 80500 226000

Repurchase agreements with customers 20249 21867

Table 23 provides information regarding FHLBNY advances and FHLBNY repurchase agreements interest rates approximate weighted average

amounts outstanding and their approximate weighted average rates at or for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

TABLE 23 SUMMARY OF FHLBNY BORROWINGS

At or for the Years Ended December 31

FHLBNY term amortizing advances outstanding at year end

Weighted average interest rate at year end

Approximate average amount outstanding during the year

Approximate weighted average rate during the year

FHLBNY term non-amortizing advances outstanding at year end

Weighted average interest rate at year end

Approximate average amount outstanding during the year

Approximate weighted average rate during the year

FHLBNY repurchase agreements outstanding at year end

Weighted average interest rate at year end

Approximate average amount outstanding during the year

Approximate weighted average rate during the year

2010 2009

3999 5215

4.51% 4.39%

4561 5808

4.45% 4.41%

$10000

-% 4.59%

2500 $11370

5.80% 4.04%

2008

7081

4.37%

$1 0385

4.48%

$35000

4.81%

$23667

4.00%

$1 5000

4.84%

$16530

4.69%

$15000

4.84%

$15000

4.91%

$15000

4.84%

$15000

4.98%
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At or for the Years Ended December 31

Balance at year end

Weighted average interest rate at year end

Approximate average amount outstanding during the year

Approximate weighted average rate during the year

Deposits are the primary source of funds for the Companys lending

activities investment activities and general business purposes Should

the need arise the Company has the ability to access lines of credit

from various sources including the Federal Reserve Bank the FHLBNY

and various other correspondent banks In addition on an overnight

basis the Company has the
ability

to sell securities under agreements

to repurchase

On January 23 2009 and December 30 2008 the capital securities

of Sun Capital Trust VI and Sun Capital Trust respectively became

eligible for redemption As result of the current interest environment

the Company has elected not to call these securities however the

Company maintains the right to call these securities in the future on the

respective payment anniversary dates

The Company has customarily relied on dividend payments from the

Bank to fund junior subordinated debenture interest obligations The

amount available for payment of dividends to the Company by the Bank

was $0 as of December 31 2010 and no dividends may be paid by the

Bank without 0CC approval Per the DCC Agreement dividend may

only be declared if it is in accordance with the approved capital plan the

Bank remains in compliance with the capital plan following the payment

of the dividend and the dividend is approved by the 0CC The Company

believes it is capable of funding its junior subordinated debenture

See Notes 12 and 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for additional information on borrowings

Junior Subordinated Debentures Held by Trusts that Issued

Capital Debt Table 25 provides summary of the outstanding capital

securities issued by each Issuer Trust and the junior subordinated

debenture issued by the Company to each Issuer Trust as of

December 31 2010

interest obligations through available cash balances maintained at the

bank holding company for the period of time necessary until earnings

are expected to support dividend from the Bank See Note 24 of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on

dividend limitations

Other Liabilities Other liabilities increased $8.5 million to $82.6

million at December 31 2010 from $74.1 million at December 31

2009 The increase was primarily due to the increase in the fair value

of interest rate swaps entered into with third party of $6.7 million

The increase in the fair value of the interest rate swaps was partially

offset with an increase in the fair value of related interest rate swap

positions entered into with commercial customers recognized in other

assets of the consolidated statements of financial condition See Note

19 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional

information on derivative instruments

Table 24 provides information regarding securities sold under agreements to repurchase with customers interest rates approximate average

amounts outstanding and their approximate weighted average rates at December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

TABLE 24 SUMMARY OF SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE WITH CUSTOMERS

2010

6307

0.21%

$15243

0.19%

2009

$18677

0.11%

$1 7997

0.23%

2008

$20327

0.25%

$34976

1.37%

December 31 2010

TABLE 25 SUMMARY OF CAPITAL SECURITIES AND JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

Capital Securities

Stated

Value

Junior Subordinated Debentures

Issuer Trust

Issuance

Date Distribution Rate

Principal

Amount Maturity

Redeemable

Beginning

Sun Capital Trust December 18 2003 $15000 mo LIBOR pIus 2.80% $1 5464 December 30 2033 December 30 2008

Sun Capital Trust VI

Sun StatutoryTrustVll

Sun Capital Trust VII

December 19 2003

January 17 2006

April 19 2007

25000

30000

10000

3-mo LIBOR plus 2.80%

6.24% Fixed

6.428% Fixed

25774

30928

10310

January 23 2034

March 15 2036

June 30 2037

January 23 2009

March 15 2011

June 30 2012

Sun Capital Trust VIII July 2007 10000

$90000

3-mo LIBOR plus .39% 10310

$92786

October 2037 October 2012
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Sun Bancorp Inc the Company may from time to time make

written or oral forward looking statements including statements

contained in the companys filings
with the securities and exchange

commission in its reports to shareholders and in other communications

by the Company which are made in good faith by the company pursuant

to the safe harbor provisions of the private securities litigation reform

act of 1995 Forward looking statements often include the words

believes expects anticipates estimates forecasts intends

plans targets potentially probably projects outlook or

similar expressions or future or conditional verbs such as may will

should would could

statements and assumptions relating to financial performance

statements relating to the anticipated effects on results of

operations or financial condition from recent or future developments

or events

statements relating to our business and growth strategies and our

regulatory capital levels

statements relating to potential sales of our criticized and classified

assets and

any other statements projections or assumptions that are not

historical facts

Actual future results may differ materially from our forward-looking

statements and we qualify all forward-looking statements by various

risks and uncertainties we face some of which are beyond our control

as well as the assumptions underlying the statements including among

others the following factors

the strength of the United States economy in general and the

strength of the local economies in which we conduct operations

market volatility

the credit risks of lending activities including changes in the level

and trend of loan delinquencies and write-offs

the overall quality of the composition of our loan and

securities portfolios

the market for criticized and classified assets that we may sell

legislative and regulatory changes including the Dodd Frank Wall

Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act the Dodd Frank

Act and impending regulations changes in banking securities

and tax laws and regulations and their application by our regulators

and changes in the scope and cost of Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation FDIC insurance and other coverages

the effects of and changes in monetary and fiscal policies and

laws including interest rate policies of the Board of Governors of

the Federal Reserve System the Federal Reserve

inflation interest rate market and monetary fluctuations

fluctuations in the demand for loans the number of unsold homes

and other properties and fluctuations in real estate values in our

market areas

the effect of and our compliance with the terms of the Agreement

by and between our wholly owned subsidiary Sun National Bank

the Bank and the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency the

0CC dated
April 15 2010 the DCC Agreement as well as

compliance with the individual minimum capital ratios established

for the Bank by the 0CC

the results of examinations of us by the Federal Reserve and of

the Bank by the 0CC including the
possibility

that the 0CC may

among other things require the Bank to increase its allowance for

loan losses or to write down assets

our ability to control operating costs and expenses

our ability to manage delinquency rates

our ability to retain key members of our senior management team

the costs of litigation including settlements and judgments

the increased competitive pressures among financial

services companies

the timely development of and acceptance of new products and

services and the perceived overall value of these products and

services by businesses and consumers including the features

pricing and quality compared to our competitors products

and services

technological changes

acquisitions

changes in consumer and business spending borrowing and saving

habits and demand for financial services in our market area

adverse changes in securities markets

the
inability

of key third-party providers to perform their obligations

to us

changes in accounting policies and practices as may be adopted

by the financial institution regulatory agencies the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board or the Financial Accounting

Standards Board

war or terrorist activities

other economic competitive governmental regulatory and

technological factors affecting our operations pricing products

and services and the other risks described elsewhere herein or

in the documents incorporated by reference herein and our other

filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC and

our success at managing the risks involved in the foregoing

The development of any or all of these factors could have an adverse

impact on our financial position and results of operations

Any forward-loohing statements are based upon managements beliefs

and assumptions at the time they are made We undertake no obligation

to publicly update or revise any forward looking statements included or

incorporated by reference herein or to update the reasons why actual

results could differ from those contained in such statements whether as

result of new information future events or othenNise unless otherwise

required to do so by law or regulation In
light of these risks uncertainties

and assumptions the forward-looking statements discussed herein or in

the documents incorporated by reference herein might not occur and

you should not put undue reliance on any forward looking statements

SUN eANCORP INC



MANAGEMENTS ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as such term is

defined in Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a-i 5f The Companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance

with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Management including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Companys

internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission Because managements assessment was also conducted to meet the reporting requirements of Section

112

of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act FDICIA managements assessment of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting also included controls over the preparation of the schedules equivalent to the basic financial statements in accordance with the

instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income for Schedules RC RI RI-A Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal

Control Integrated Framework we concluded that the Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2010

SUN BANCOAP INC



Deloitte

01 1700 Market Street

Philadelphia PA 19103

USA

Tel 215 246 2300

Fax 215 569 2442

www.deloitte.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Sun Bancorp Inc

Vineland New Jersey

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Sun Bancorp Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2010

based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission Because managements assessment and our audit were conducted to meet the reporting requirements of Section 112 of the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act FDICIA managements assessment and our audit of the Companys internal control over financial

reporting included controls over the preparation of the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council Instructions for Consolidated Reports of

Condition and Income for Schedules RC RI RI-A The Companys management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Annual

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial

reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was

maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that

material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing

such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of the companys principal executive

and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and effected by the companys board of directors management and other

personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions

of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely

detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of collusion or improper management override

of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on timely basis Also projections of any evaluation of the

effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because

of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010

based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the consolidated

financial statements as of and for the year ended December31 2010 of the Company and our report dated March 14 2011 expressed an unqualified

opinion on those financial statements and included an explanatory paragraph regarding the adoption on January 2009 of the Financial Accounting

Standards Boards revised authoritative guidance related to determining whether the impairment of debt securities is other than temporary

7Zctc

Philadelphia PA

March 14 2011
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Deloitte

01 1700 Market Street

Philadelphia PA 19103

USA

Tel 215 246 2300

Fax 215 569 2442

www.deloitte.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board ot Directors and Shareholders of

Sun Bancorp Inc

Vineland New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Sun Bancorp Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related statements of operations shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the

period ended December 31 2010 These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express

an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement

An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly
in all material respects the financial position of Sun Bancorp Inc and

subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

As discussed in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements on January 2009 the Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards

Boards revised authoritative guidance related to determining whether the impairment of debt securities is other than temporary

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the Companys internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on the criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 14 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on the

Companys internal control over financial reporting

22C/0aE 7Z4a i.e

Philadelphia PA

March 142011
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Sun Bancorp Inc and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

Dollars in thousands except par value amounts

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUN BAN0ORP INc

December 31 2010 2009

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks 36522 53857

Interest-earning bank balances 150704 5263

Cash and cash equivalents 187226 59120

Investment securities available for sale amortized cost of $483255 and $435267 at

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively 472864 434738

Investment securities held to maturity estimated fair value of $3155 and $7121 at

December 31 2W and 2009 respectively 3039 6955

Loans receivable net of allowance for loan losses of $81 713 and

$59953 at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively 2453457 2657694

Restricted equity investments 17590 15499

Bank properties and equipment net 53428 53246

Real estate owned net 3913 -- 9527

Accrued interest receivable 10004 12235

Goodwill 38188 127894

Intangible assets net 10631 14316

Deferred taxes net 4245 20721

Bank owned life insurance BOLl 74656 77753

Other assets 88305 89207

Total assets $3417546 $3578905

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Deposits

Federal funds purchased

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase customer

$2940460 $2909268

6307

89000

18677

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York FHLBNY 3999 15215

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase FHLBNY 15000 15000

Obligation under capital lease 8111 8301

Junior subordinated debentures 92786 92786

Other liabilities 82641 74065

Total liabilities 3149304 3222312

Commitments and contingencies see Note 18

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Preferred stock $1 par value 1000000 shares authorized none issued

Common stock $1 par value 100000000 shares authorized 50463594 shares issued and

50356871 shares outstanding at December 31 2010 25435994 shares issued and

23329271 shares outstanding at December 31 2009 52464 25436

Additional paid-in capital 438335 362189

Retained deficit 190015 4597
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 6146 049

Deferred compensation plan trust 234 124

Treasury stock at cost 21 06723 shares at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively 26162 26162

Total shareholders equity 268242 356593

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $3417546 $3578905



Sun Bancorp Inc and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

SUN BANc0AP INC

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

INTEREST INCOME

Interest and fees on loans 129391 $131811 $154154

Interest on taxable investment securities 11993 14627 15976

Interest on non taxable investment securities 3344 3729 3256

Dividends on restricted equity investments 875 832 983

Interest on federal funds sold 265

Total interest income 145603 150999 174634

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest on deposits 28780 44357 65852

Interest on funds borrowed 1744 2061 3407

Interest on junior subordinated debentures 4117 4424 5714

Total interest expense 34641 50842 74973

Net interest income 110962 100157 99661

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 101518 46666 20000

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 9444 53491 79661

NON-INTEREST INCOME

Service charges on deposit accounts 11572 12440 13918

Other service charges 364 331 317

Gain on sale of loans 3560 2352 1325

Net gain on sale of available for sale securities 4751

Gain on derivative instruments 262 2578

Investment products income 2831 2669 3041

BOLl income 2074 2249 3017

Net gain on sale of branches 11454

Net impairment losses on available for sale securities

Total impairment losses $4944 $9379 7497
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive income before taxes 3.615 2264

Net impairment losses recognized in operations 1329 7115 7497
Derivative credit adjustment 12214 53 152
Other 3903 3935 4298

Total non-interest income 15512 17070 32299

NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

Salaries and employee benefits 55219 51773 47623

Occupancyexpense 12508 11517 11683

Equipment expense 6783 6574 6421

Data processing expense 4359 4063 4459

Amortization of intangible assets 3685 4453 4710

Goodwill impairment 89706

Insurance expense 7696 7804 3043

Professional fees 2724 2193 2335

Advertising expense 2335 2453 2368

Problem loan expense 5162 1958 1111

Real estate owned expense income net 801 1155 628
Office supplies expense 1501 1702 1942

Other 8573 8422 7573

Total non interest expense 201052 104067 92640

LOSS INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 176096 33506 19320

INCOME TAX EXPENSE BENEFIT 9322 16375 4426

NET LOSS INCOME 185418 17131 14894

Preferred stock dividends and discount accretion 5351

NET LOSS INCOME AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS $185418 22482 14894

Basic loss earnings per common share 6.56 0.97 0.63

Diluted loss earnings per common share 6.56 0.97 0.62

Weighted average common shares basic 28258953 23134424 23647009

Weighted average common shares diluted 28258953 23134424 23958224

See Notes to consolidated Financial Statements



BALANCE JANUARY 12008

Comprehensive income

Net income

Unrealized gains on available for sale

securities net of classification adjustment

net of tax See Note

Comprehensive income

Exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefit related to stock options

Issuance of common stock

Stock-based compensation

Stock dividend

Cash paid for fractional shares

resulting from stock dividend

Treasury shares purchased

Accumulated

Other Deferred

Comprehensive Compensation Treasury

Loss Gain Plan Trust Stock Total

1027 $16525 362177

14894

12350 12350

2544

716

90

1305

1325

12

9637 9637

Sun BanCorp Inc and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Dollars in thousands

Additional

Paid-In

Capital

$336668

Retained

Earnings

Deficit

20338

Preferred Common

Stock Stock

$22723

84

134

13

1083

14894

632

90

1171

1312

11557 12640

12

BALANCE DECEMBER 312008 $24037 $351430 22580 13377 26162 358508

Adjustment to adopt FASB ASC 320 10

netoftaxof $2.1 million 3110 3110

Comprehensive income

Net loss 17131 17131

Unrealized losses on available for sale

securities net of reclassitication

adjustment net of tax See Note 13228 13228

Portion ot impairment loss transferred to

earnings netof tax See Note 3110 3110

Comprehensive income 793

Issuance of preferred stock net of original

issuance discount ot $4.1 million 85175 85175

Redemption of
preferred

stock 89310 89310

Preferred stock dividends 1104 1104
Discount accretion 4135 4135
Pref erred stock issuance cost 112 112

Issuance of warrant 4135 4135

Redemption of warrant 2100 2100
Issuance ot common stock 282 1049 124 1207

Stock-based compensation 18 972 990

Stock dividend 1099 6703 7802
Cash paid for fractional shares

resulting from stock dividend

BALANCE DECEMBER 312009 $25436 $362189 4597 149 124 26162 356593

Comprehensive loss

Net loss 185418 185418

Unrealized losses on available for sale

securities net of reclassification

adjustment net ot tax See Note 5997 5997

Comprehensive loss 191415

Issuance of preferred stock see Note 22 88009 88009

Redemption of preferred stock see Note 22 88009 88009
Issuance of common stock 26983 81074 110 107947

Preferred and common stock issuance costs

see Note 22 7495 7495

Stock based compensation 45 2567 2612

BALANCE DECEMBER 312010 $52484 438335 $1 9001 6146 234 $26162 268242

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2010 2009 2008

Sun Bancorp Inc and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Dollars in thousands

Years Ended December 31

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net loss income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

$185418 17131 14894

Provision for loan losses 101518 46666 20000

Depreciation amortization and accretion 11574 10659 10767
Goodwill impairment 89706

Impairment ot bank properties and equipment and real estate omned 277 1007 128

Impairment charge on available for sale securities 1329 7115 7497
Net gain on sales and calls ot investment securities available tor sale 4673 18 47
Net gain on sale ot branches 11454

Gain loss on real estate omned 18 66 727
Gain on sale of loans 3560 2352 1325
Increase in cash surrender value of BOLl 2074 2249 3017
Deterred income taxes

Stock based compensation

20342

2612

13520
990

6346
1325

Excess tax benefits related to stock options 90
Shartw .ontributed to mpluyee benetit plans 644 675 609

Credit valuation adjustment 12214

Smap termination payments 10266

Mortgage loans originated for sale 189077 142351 50322
Proceeds from the sale ot mortgage loans 185520 141597 53496

Change in assets and liabilities mhich provided used cash

Accrued interest receivable 2231 19 2763

Other assets 5898 21273 786

Other liabilities 1169 7994 5254
kIt I- -.kiine 37.610 1906 44 191

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of investment securities available for sale

Net purchase redemption of restricted equity securities

Redemption of investment in capital securities

Proceeds from maturities prepayments or calls of investment securities available for sale

Proceeds from maturities prepayments or calls of investment securities held to maturity

Proceeds from sale of investment securities available for sale

Proceeds from the sale ot commercial real estate loans

Net decrease increase in loans

Purchases of bank properties and equipment

Return of surrender value of BOLl

Proceeds trom sale ot real estate owned

Insurance proceeds from real estate owned

Net decrease in cash realized from acquisitions or sales

465629

2091

246278

3911

175381

54808

51794

5090
5171

8049
154

105425
807

111706

6803

7890
6294

505

3051 82
563

155

280387

5181

244786
6736

3348

83844

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 72736 212 35Q9j4

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase in deposits

Net repayments borrowings of federal funds purchased

Net repayments of securities sold under agreements to repurchase customer

Advanuus frum FHLBNY

Repayment of advances trom FHLBNY

Repayment of obligation under capital lease

Net proceeds from exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefits related to stock options

Redemption of junior subordinated debt

Proceeds from the issuance ot preferred stock and warrant

Proceeds from the issuance of preferred stock see Note 22

Redemption of preferred stock

Redemption of warrant

Payment of preferred stock dividend

Preterred stock issuance costs

Proceeds trom issuance ot common stock

Payments tor tractional interests resulting from stock dividend

Treasury stock purchased

31192

89000
12370

11216
190

88009

88009

7495
106839

12904

17500

1650

26866
118

89310

89310
2100
1104

112
118

292624

41500

20145
33000

54402
69

716

90

5155

133

12
9637

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 17760 1431 274
NET INCREASE DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEGINNING OF YEAR

128106

59120

687

58433

28080
86513

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS END OF YEAR 187226 59120 58433

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Interest paid

Income taxes paid

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH ITEMS

Transfer ot real estate owned to bank property

Transfer of loans or bank properties to real estate owned

Commitments to purchase investment securities

New obligation under capital lease

32766
110

1900

4625

2500

55027

3065

9086

3230

75924

7681

3134

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Sun Bancorp Inc the Company is registered as bank holding

company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended

The Company is the parent company of Sun National Bank the Bank
national bank and the Companys principal wholly owned subsidiary

The Banks wholly owned subsidiaries are Sun Financial Services

L.L.C 2020 Properties L.L.C Sun Home Loans Inc The Banks former

subsidiary Med-Vine Inc was dissolved in December 2010

The Companys principal business is to serve as holding company

for the Bank The Bank is in the business of attracting customer

deposits through its Community Banking Centers and investing these

funds together with borrowed funds and cash from operations in loans

primarily commercial real estate small business and non real estate

loans as well as mortgage-backed and investment securities The

principal business of Sun Financial Services L.L.C is to offer mutual

funds securities brokerage annuities and investment advisory services

through the Banks Community Banking Centers The principal business

of 2020 Properties L.L.C is to acquire certain loans judgments real

estate and other assets in satisfaction of debts previously contracted by

the Company Sun Home Loans Inc originates residential mortgages

through dedicated loan originators utilizing
the Companys existing

Community Banking Centers as well as generating business through

non customers Med Vine Inc Delaware holding company which

was liquidated in December 2010 invested in securities and held

portion of the Companys investment portfolio The Companys various

capital trusts Sun Capital Trust Sun Capital Trust VI Sun Capital Trust

VII Sun Statutory Trust VII and Sun Capital Trust VIII collectively the

Issuing Trusts are presented on deconsolidated basis The Issuing

Trusts consisting of Delaware business trusts and one business trust

operating in Connecticut hold junior subordinated debentures issued

by the Company

Through the Bank the Company provides commercial and consurier

banking services As of December 31 2010 the Company had more

than 66 locations throughout New Jersey

The Companys outstanding common stock is traded on the NASDAO

Global Select Market under the symbol SNBC The Company is

subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities and Exchange

Commission SEC The Banks primary federal regulator is the Office

of the Comptroller of the Currency the 0CC

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation The accounting and reporting policies

conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the United States

of America GAAP and to general practices in the banking industry

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity

with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements

and the reporting period The significant estimates include the allowance

for loan losses goodwill intangible assets income taxes stock-based

compensation and the fair value of financial instruments Actual

results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions

or conditions

Basis of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements

include after all intercompany balances and transactions have been

eliminated the accounts of the Company its principal wholly owned

subsidiary the Bank and the Banks wholly owned subsidiaries Sun

Financial Services L.L.C 2020 Properties L.L.C and Sun Home Loans

Inc In accordance with FASB ASC 81 0-1 Consolidation the Issuing

Trusts are deconsolidated See Note 14 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements for additional information on the Companys

participation in the Issuing Trusts

Segment Information In accordance with FASB ASC 280

Segment Reporting the Company has one reportable operating

segment Community Banking All of the Companys activities are

interrelated and each activity is dependent and assessed based on how

each of the activities of the Company supports the others For example

lending is dependent upon the ability of the Company to fund itself with

deposits and other borrowings and manage interest rate and credit risk

Accordingly all significant operating decisions are based upon analysis

of the Company as one segment or unit

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include

cash and amounts due from banks interest earning bank balances and

federal funds sold all of which have
original maturity dates of 90 days or

less The Company is required to maintain an average reserve balance

with the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia FRB The amount of

the average reserve balance for the years ended December 31 2010

and 2009 was $1 00000

Investment Securities The Companys investment securities

include both held to maturity and available for sale The purchase

and sale of the Cnmpanys investment securities are recorded based

on trade date accounting At December 31 2010 the Company had

$2.5 million payable for the purchase of an available for sale security

included in Other Liabilities on the consolidated statements of financial

condition as the transaction was unsettled at year end At December31

2009 the Company had no unsettled purchases of investment securities

The following provides further information on the Companys accounting

for debt securities

Held to Maturity Investment securities that management has the

positive intent and
ability to hold until maturity are classified as held

to maturity and carried at their remaining unpaid principal balance

net of unamortized premiums or unaccreted discounts Premiums are

amortized and discounts are accreted using the interest method over the

estimated remaining term of the underlying security

Available for Sale Investment securities that will be held for indefinite

periods of time including securities that may be sold in response to

changes to market interest or prepayment rates needs for liquidity

and changes in the availability and the yield of alternative investments

are classified as available for sale These assets are carried at their

Sun Bancorp Inc and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All dollar amounts presented in the tables except share and per share amounts are in thousands
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estimated fair value Fair values are based on quoted prices for identical

assets in active markets quoted prices for similar assets in markets

that are either actively or not actively traded or in some cases where

there is limited activity or less transparency around inputs internally

developed discounted cash flow models Unrealized gains and losses

are excluded from earnings and are reported net of tax in accumulated

other comprehensive income or loss on the consolidated statements

of financial condition until realized including those recognized through

the non credit component of an other-than temporary impairment

0111 charge

In
April 2009 the FASB issued guidance that impacted FASB ASC

320 10 which amends existing guidance for determining whether an

impairment is other-than temporary to debt securities and replaces the

existing requirement that the entitys management assert it has both

the intent and
ability

to hold an impaired security until recovery with

requirement that management assert it does not have the intent

to sell the security it is more likely
than not it will not have to sell

the security before recovery of its cost basis and it does expect to

recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security Under this new

guidance declines in the fair value of held to maturity and available

for-sale securities below their cost that are deemed to be other than

temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses to the extent

the impairment is related to credit losses The amount of impairment

related to other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income

For debt securities held at the beginning of the period the new guidance

requires the Company to recognize cumulative effect adjustment net

of tax to the opening balance of retained earnings with corresponding

adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income for the amount

of the 0111 which should have been recognized in other comprehensive

income had the guidance been in effect atthe beginning of the period.The

Company elected to early adopt this guidance on January 2009 and

recorded cumulative-effect adjustment net ot tax to retained earnings

of $3.1 million with the corresponding offset to other comprehensive

income in the consolidated statements of financial condition See Note

for more information on credit losses recognized in earnings pertaining

to the Companys investment portfolio

In accordance with FASB ASC 325-40 Beneficial Interests in

SecuritizedFinancialAssets and FASB ASC 320 10 Investments Debt

and Equity Securities FASB ASC 320-1 the Company evaluates its

securities portfolio for 0111 throughout the year Each investment which

has fair value less than the book value is reviewed on quarterly basis

by management Management considers at minimum whether the

following factors exist that both individually or in combination could

indicate that the decline is other-than temporary the Company has

the intent to sell the security it is more likely than not that it will be

required to sell the security betore recovery and the Company does not

expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security Among

the factors that are considered in determining the Companys intent is

review of capital adequacy interest rate risk
profile

and
liquidity at the

Company An impairment charge is recorded against individual securities

if the review described above concludes that the decline in value is other

than-temporary During 2010 it was determined that two available-for

sale securities were other than temporarily impaired investments As

result the Company recorded $1 .3 million of credit related 0111 charges

through earnings during the year ended December31 2010 as compared

to $7.1 million for the year ended December31 2009 and $7.5 million for

the year ended December 31 2008

Loans Held for Sale Included in Loans Receivable on the

consolidated statements of financial condition is approximately

$1 3.9 million and $7.1 million of loans held for sale at December 31

201 and 2009 respectively These loans represented residential

mortgages which were carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair

value on an aggregate basis

Deferred Loan Fees Loan fees on loans held for investment net

of certain direct loan origination costs are deterred and the balance is

amortized to income as yield adjustment over the life of the loan using

the interest method Loan fees on loans held for sale net of certain

direct loan origination costs are deferred until the related loans are

sold and are included in the determination of the gains or losses upon

sale which are reported in gain on sale of loans in the consolidated

statements of operations

Allowance for Loan Losses The allowance for loan losses is

determined by management based upon past experience evaluation of

estimated loss and impairment in the loan portfolio current economic

conditions and other pertinent factors The allowance for loan losses is

maintained at level that management considers adequate to provide

for estimated losses and impairment based upon an evaluation of known

and inherent risk in the loan portfolio Loan impairment is evaluated

based on the fair value of collateral While management uses the best

information available to make such evaluations future adjustments to the

allowance may be necessary if economic conditions differ substantially

from the assumptions used in making the evaluations

The provision for loan losses is based upon historical loan loss

experience series of qualitative factors and an evaluation of estimated

losses in the current commercial loan portfolio including the evaluation

of impaired loans under FASB ASC 310 Receivables FASB ASC 310
Values assigned to the qualitative factors and those developed from

historic loss experience provide dynamic basis for the calculabon of

reserve fauturs fur buth pass-rated loans general puoled allowance

and those criticized and classified loans that continue to perform loan

is considered to be impaired when based upon current information

and events it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect

all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan An

insignificant delay or insignificant shortfall in amount of payments does

not necessarily result in the loan being identified as impaired For this

purpose delays less than 90 days are considered to be insignificant

Impairment losses are included in the provision for loan losses Loans

not individually reviewed are evaluated as group using reserve factor

percentages based on historic loss experience qualitative factors

Included in these qualitative factors are

Levels of past due classified and non accrual loans troubled debt

restructurings and modifications

Nature and volume of loans

Changes in lending policies and procedures underwriting standards

collections charge offs and recoveries and for commercial loans

the level of loans being approved with exceptions to policy

Experience ability and depth of management and staff
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National and local economic and business conditions including

various market segments

Quality of the Companys loan review system and degree of Board

oversight

Concentrations of credit by industry geography and collateral type

with specific emphasis on real estate and changes in levels of

such concentrations

Effect of external factors including the deterioration of collateral values

on the level of estimated credit losses in the current portfolio

Commercial loans including commercial real estate loans are placed

on non-accrual atthe time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the credit

is well secured and in the process of collection Generally commercial

loans and commercial real estate loans are charged-off no later than

180 days delinquent unless the loan is well secured and in the process

of collection or other extenuating circumstances support collection

Residential real estate loans are typically placed on non accrual at the

time the loan is 90 days delinquent Other consumer loans are typically

charged-off at 180 days delinquent In all cases loans must be placed

on non-accrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal

or interest is considered doubiful

Restricted Equity Securities Certain securities are classified as

restricted equity securities because ownership is restricted and there is

not an established market for their resale These securities are carried at

cost and are evaluated for impairment on quarterly basis

Bank Properties and Equipment Land is carried at cost Bank

properties and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

Depreciation which is recoded in Equipment expense on the consolidated

statements of operations is computed by the straight-line method based

on the estimated useful lives of the assets generally as follows

Asset Type Estimated Useful Life

Buildings 40 years

Leasehold improvements Lesser of the useful life or the remaining

lease term including renewals if applicable

Equipment 2.5 to 10 years

Real Estate Owned Real estate owned is comprised of property

acquired through foreclosure deed in lieu and bank property that is

not in use Property acquired through foreclosure is carried at the lower

cost or fair value of the property based on an appraisal less estimated

costs to dispose Credit losses arising from foreclosure transactions are

charged against the allowance for loan losses Bank property is carried

at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated cost to dispose Costs

to maintain real estate owned and any subsequent gains or losses are

included in Real estate owned expense income on the Companys

consolidated statements of operations

Goodwill and Intangible Assets Goodwill is the excess of the fair

value of liabilities assumed over the fair value of tangible and identifiable

intangible assets acquired in business combination Goodwill is not

amortized but is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be

impaired Generally the Company tests goodwill for impairment annually

as of December 31 2010 However due to concerns about credit quality

performance as it relates to its peers as well as recent events specific to

the Company including the written agreement the Bank entered into with

the 0CC on April 152010 the 0CC Agreement the mandated individual

minimum capital ratios as well as information obtained while taking actions

to raise capital to meet the individual minimum
capital requirements

established by the 0CC management determined it was necessary to

perform goodwill impairment analysis at June 30 2010 FASB ASC 350

Intangibles Goodwill and Other outlines two-step goodwill impairment

test Step one which is used to identify potential impairment compares the

fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount including goodwill

reporting unit is an operating segment or one level below an operating

segment as defined in FASB ASC 280 If the fair value of reporting unit

exceeds its carrying value goodwill of the reporting unit is not considered

impaired and step two is therefore unnecessary If the carrying amount of the

reporting unit exceeds its fair value the second step is performed to measure

the amount of the impairment loss if any At June 30 2010 the Company

determined it had failed step one of the impairment test Accordingly the

Company performed the step-two analysis Results of the step two analysis

indicated that the Companys carrying amount of goodwill exceeded the

implied fair value of goodwill As result the Company recorded non-cash

impairment charge of $89.7 million during the second quarter of 2010

which is included in non-interest expense in the consolidated statements

of operations At December 31 2010 the Company performed its annual

goodwill impairment test and step one of the analysis indicated that the

Companys fair value was greater than its carrying value therefore the

Companys goodwill was not impaired at December 31 2010

Intangible assets net on the consolidated statements of financial

condition consist of core deposit intangibles net of accumulated

amortization from the Banks previous acquisitions Core deposit intangibles

are amortized using the straight-line method based on the characteristics

of the particular deposit type and are evaluated annually for impairment

See Note 10 for further details on goodwill and intangible assets

Bank Owned Life Insurance BOLl The Company has

purchased life insurance policies on certain key employees These policies

are recorded at their cash surrender value or the amount that can be

realized in accordance with FASB ASC 325 30 Investments in Insurance

Contracts At December 312010 the Company had $24.2 million invested

in general account and $50.5 million in separate account for total

BOLl cash surrender value of $74.7 million The BOLl separate account

is invested in mortgage-backed securities fund which is managed by

an independent investment firm Pricing volatility
of these underlying

instruments may have an impact on investment income however the

fluctuations would be partially mitigated by stable value wrap agreement

which is component of the separate account Income from these policies

and changes in the cash surrender value are recorded in BOLl income of

the consolidated statements of operations

Long-Lived Assets Management evaluates the carrying amount

of long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not

be recoverable Measurement of an impaired loss for long lived assets

and intangibles with definite lives would be based on the fair value of

the asset The Company recognized impairment losses of $1 23000

$57000 and $1 28000 for the years ended December 31 2010 2009
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and 2008 respectively Impairment losses on long-lived assets are

recorded to other non-interest expense in the Companys consolidated

statements of operations

Loan Servicing Assets The Company originates certain Small

Business Administration SBA loans for sale to institutional investors

In accordance with FASB ASC 860 Transfers and Servicing FASB ASC

860 the cost of loans sold is allocated between the servicing rights

the retained portion of the loan and the sold portion of the loan based

on the relative fair values of each The fair value of the loan servicing

rights is determined by valuation techniques Valuation adjustments to

the loan servicing assets for the years ended December31 2010 2009

and 2008 were $0 $1 05000 of income and $1 29000 of expense

respecuvely These adjustments are reflected in other income on the

consolidated statements of operations

Loan servicing rights are amortized in proportion to and over the period

of estimated net servicing income In accordance with FASB ASC 860

the Company regularly evaluates the loan servicing asset for impairment

Because loans are sold individually and are not pooled the Company does

not stratify groups of loans based on risk characteristics for purposes of

measuring impairment The Company measures the loan servicing assets

by estimating the present value of expected future cash tlows for each

servicing asset based on their unique characteristics and market-based

assumptions for prepayment speeds and records valuation allowance for

the amount by which the carrying amount of the servicing asset exceeds

the fair value The carrying value of the Companys loan servicing asset was

$463000 and $559000 at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

The valuation allowance for the loan servicing assets at December 31

2010 and 2009 was $23000 respectively

Securities Sold Un derA greements toRepurchase The Company

enters into sales of securities under agreements to repurchase with its

customers and the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York FHLBNY
In accordance with FASB ASC 860 these agreements are treated as

financings and the obligations to repurchase securities sold are reflected

DISCLOSURE OF RECLASSIFICATION AMOUNTS NET OF TAX

as liability in the consolidated statements of financial condition

Securities pledged as collateral under agreements to repurchase are

reflected as assets in the accompanying consolidated statements of

financial condition

Accounting for Derivative Financial lnslnments and Hedging

Activities The Company recognizes all derivative instruments at fair

value as either assets or liabilities in other assets or other liabilities on the

consolidated statements of financial condition The accounting for changes

in the fair value of derivative instrument depends on whether it has been

designated and qualifies as part of hedging relationship For derivatives not

designated as hedges The gain or loss is recognized in current eamings

The Companys derivative financial instruments are not exchange-

traded and therefore are valued utilizing models that use as their basis

readily observable market parameters specifically the LIBOR swap

curve and are classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy

The Company had three derivative financial instruments that had

100% credit valuation adjustments due to credit deterioration based upon

the nonperformance of the corresponding loan Given the unobservable

inputs used to fair value these instruments they are classified within

Level of the valuation hierarchy The fair value of these instruments

was $0 as of December 31 2010

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss The Company classifies

items of accumulated other comprehensive loss by their nature and

displays the accumulated balance of accumulated other comprehensive

loss separately from retained earnings and additional paid-in capital

in the equity section of the consolidated statements of financial

condition Amounts categorized as accumulated other comprehensive

loss represent net unrealized gains or losses on investment securities

available for sale net of tax and the non-credit portion of any 0111 loss

not recorded in earnings Reclassifications are made to avoid double

counting items which are displayed as part of net income for the period

These reclassifications for the years ended December 31 2010 2009

and 2008 are as follows

Years Ended December31 2010 2009 2008

Pre-tax Tax After-tax Pre-tax Tax After-tax Pre-tax Tax After-tax

Unrealized holding loss gain on securities

available for sale during.the year $2903 1138 $1 765 $16483 5833 $10650 sf26991 9933 sf17058

Cumulative effect of adopting FAS ASC 320-10 5258 2148 3110

Less

Reclassification adjustment for net loss gain

included in net income 4673 1831 2842 18 12 48 18 30
Reclassification adjustment for net impairment

loss recognized in eamings 1329 521 808 7115 2887 4228 7497 2759 4738

Reclassification adjustment for portion of impairment

loss recognized in other comprehensive loss 3615 1417 2198 2264 792 1472

Net unrealized gain floss on securities

available for sale $9862 $3865 $5997 $20586 7358 $13228 19542 7192 sf12350

All amounts are included in non-interest income in the consolidated statements of operations
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Treasury Stock Stock held in treasury by the Company is

accounted for using the cost method which treats stock held in treasury

as reduction to total shareholders equity At December 31 2010 and

2009 the Company held 2106723 shares of treasury stock

Stock-Based Compensation The Company accounts for stock-

based compensation issued to employees and non employee directors

in accordance with the fair value recognition provisions of FASB ASC

718 Compensation Stock Compensation FASB ASC 718 Under

the fair value provisions of FASB ASC 718 stock-based compensation

cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award

and is recognized as expense over the appropriate vesting period using

the straight-line method However consistent with FASB ASC 718 the

amount of stock based compensation cost recognized at any date must

at least equal the portion of the grant date value of the award that is

vested at that date and as result it may be necessary to recognize the

expense using ratable method Although the provisions of FASB ASC

718 should generally be applied to non-employees FASB ASC 505-50

Equity-Based Payments to Non Employees is used in determining the

measurement date of the compensation expense for non-employees

Determining the fair value of stock-based awards at measurement date

requires judgment including estimating the expected term of the stock

options and the expected volatility of the Companys stock In addition

judgment is required in estimating the amount of stock-based awards that

are expected to be forfeited If actual results differ significantly from these

estimates or different key assumptions were used it could have material

effect on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In accordance with FASB ASC 718 the fair value of the stock options

granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option

pricing model which uses the assumptions noted in the table below The

expected term of stock option is estimated using historical exercise

behavior of employees at particular level of management who were

granted options with comparable term The stock options have historically

been granted 10 year term The use of an expected term assumption

shorter than the contractual term is not deemed appropriate for non-

employees The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S Treasury yield

curve in effect at the time of the grant The expected volatility is based on

the historical
volatility

of the Companys stock price

Significant weighted average assumptions used to calculate the fair

value of the option awards for the years ended December 31 2010

2009 and 2008 are as follows

WEIGHTED AVERAGE ASSUMPTIONS USED

IN BLACK-SCHOLES OPTION PRICING MODEL

Years Ended December 31
______________________

Fair value of options granted

during the year

Risk-free rate of return

Expected term in months

Expected volatility

Expected dividends

At December 31 2010 the Company had five stock-based employee

compensation plans which are described more fully in Note 15 of the

consolidated financial statements

Interest Income on Loans Interest income on loans is credited

to operations based upon the principal amount outstanding Interest

accruals are generally discontinued when loan becomes 90 days past

due or when principal or interest is considered doubtful of collection

When interest accruals are discontinued interest credited to income

in the current year is reversed and interest accrued in the prior year is

charged to the allowance for loan losses

Income Taxes The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance

with FASB ASC 740 Income Taxes FASB ASC 740 FASB ASC 740

requires the recording of deferred income taxes that reflect the net tax

effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for

income tax purposes Management exercises significant judgment in the

evaluation of the amount and timing of the recognition of the resulting

tax assets and liabilities The judgments and estimates required for the

evaluation are updated based upon changes in business factors and the tax

laws If actual results differ from the assumptions and other considerations

used in estimating the amount and timing of tax recognized there can

be no assurance that additional expenses will not be required in future

periods The Company recognizes when applicable interest and penalties

related to unrecognized tax benefits in the provision for income taxes

in the consolidated statements of operations Assessment of uncertain

tax positions under FASB ASC 740 requires careful consideration of

the technical merits of position based on managements analysis

of tax regulations and interpretations Significant judgment is applied

when addressing the requirements of FASB ASC 740 During 2010 the

Company established valuation allowance of $61 .9 million against the

net deferred tax asset after concluding that it was more likely than not

that the full deferred tax asset would not be realized See Note 20 of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on

the Companys application of FASB ASC 740

Stock Dividend On
April 16 2009 and April 29 2008 the

Companys Board of Directors declared 5% stock dividends which were

issued on May 14 2009 and May 23 2008 respectively to shareholders

of record on April 30 2009 and May 13 2008 respectively Accordingly

share data has been adjusted for all periods presented to reflect the

increased number of shares outstanding All stock dividends are declared

at the discretion of the Board of Directors

Loss Earnings Per Common Share Basic loss earnings per

share is computed by dividing net loss income available to common

shareholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock

outstanding net of any treasury shares during the period Diluted loss

earnings per share is calculated by dividing net loss income available

to common shareholders by the weighted average number of shares of

common stock outstanding net of any treasury shares after consideration

of the potential dilutive effect of common stock equivalents based upon the

treasury stock method using an average market price of common shares

sold during the period Dilution is not considered when the Company is in

net loss position Retroactive recognition has been given to market values

2010 2009 2008 common stock outstanding and potential common shares for periods prior

to the date of the Companys stock dividends noted below

$2.75 $1 .56 $3.41

3.05% 2.91% 3.31%

111 79 79

45% 43% 30%

To date the company has not paid oash dividends on its oomnion stook
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Recent Accounting Principles In January 2011 the FASB issued

ASU 2011-01 Receivables Topic 310 Deferral of the Effective Date of

Disclosures about Troubled Debt Restructurings in Update No 20 10-20

This guidance temporarily delays the effective date of the disclosures

about troubled debt restructurings in Update No 2010-20 for public

entities This guidance will have no impact On the Companys financial

condition or results of operations However it is anticipated that this

guidance will have an impact on the Companys linancial statement

disclosures The Company is continuing to evaluate the impact of the

new guidance to its financial statements

In July 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2W 0-20 Receivables Topic

310 Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and

the Allowance for Credit Losses This guidance requires disclosure on

disaggregated basis at two levels portfolio segments and classes of

financing receivables This guidance also requires roll forward schedule

of the allowance for loan losses on portfolio segment basis with the

ending balance further disaggregated on the basis of the impairment

method the related recorded investment in financing receivables the non-

accrual status of financing receivables by class and impaired financing

receivables by class Additional disclosures are required that relate to the

credit quality indicators of financing receivables at the end of the reporting

period by class of financing receivables the aging of past due financing

receivables the nature and extent of troubled debt restructurings and

their effect on the allowance for loan losses the nature and extent of

financing receivables modified as troubled debt restructurings within the

previous 12 months that defaulted during the reporting period by class of

financing receivables and their effect on the allowance for credit losses

and significant purchases and sales of financing receivables during the

period disaggregated by portfolio segment The new guidance is effective

for interim and annual reporting periods ending on or after December 15

2W0 The Company adopted the new guidance with the exception of

the disclosures related to troubled debt restructurings on December 31
2010 and the guidance did not have an impact on the Companys financial

condition or results of operations See Notes and of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the Companys

loan
portfolio

and allowance for loan losses

In February 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2W 0-09 Subsequent

Events Topic 855 Amendments to Certain Recognition and Disclosure

Requirements This guidance removes the requirement for an SEC filer to

disclose date through which subsequent events have been evaluated in

both issued and revised financial statements Revised financial statements

include financial statements revised as result of either correction of

an error or retrospective application of GAAP FASB ASU 2010-09 is

intended to remove potential conflicts with the SECs literature and all

of the amendments were effective upon issuance except for the use of

the issued date for conduit debt obligors which was effective fur interim

or annual periods ending after June 15 2010 The Company adopted

the new guidance upon issuance and it did not have an impact on the

Companys financial condition or results of operations

In January 2010 the FASB issued FASB ASU 2W 0-06 Fair Value

Measurements and Disclosures Topic 820 Improving Disclosures

about Fair Value Measurements FASB ASU 2W 0-06 This guidance

requires disclosure of the significant amounts transferred in and out

of Level and Level fair value measurements and the reasons for the

transfers and separate presentation of purchases sales issuances

and sefflements in the reconciliation for fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs Level In addition FASBASU 2W 0-06

clarifies the requirements of the following existing disclosures set forth

in FASB ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures for

purposes of reporting fair value measurement for each class of assets

and liabilities reporting entity
needs to use judgment in determining

the appropriate classes of assets and liabilities and reporting entity

should provide disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs

used to measure fair value for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value

measurements This guidance was effective for interim and annual

reporting periods beginning January 2010 except for disclosures

about purchases sale issuances and settlements in the roll forward of

activity
in Level fair value measurements which are effective for fiscal

years beginning January 2011 and for interim periods within those

fiscal years The Company adopted the guidance on January 2010

and the guidance did not have material impact on the Companys

financial condition or results of operations See Note 25 of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the

Companys fair value measurements

In June 2009 the FASB issued new guidance that impacted FASBASC

810 The new guidance significantly changes the criteria for determining

whether the consolidation of variable interest entity is required The

new guidance also addresses the effect of changes required by FASB

ASC 860 Transfers and Servicing and addresses concerns that the

accounting and disclosures do not always provide timely and useful

information about an entitys involvement in variable interest entity

The guidance was effective January 2010 and did not have an impact

on the Companys financial condition or results of operations

In June 2009 the FASB issued new guidance that impacted FASB ASC

860 The new guidance eliminates the concept of qualitying special

purpose entity 0SPE modifies the criteria for applying sale accounting

to transfers of financial assets or portions of financial assets differentiates

between the initial measurement of an interest held in connection

with the transfer of an entire financial asset recognized as sale and

participating interests recognized as sale and removes the provision

allowing classification of interests received in guaranteed mortgage

securitization transaction that does not qualify as sale as available for

sale or trading securiues The new guidOnce will improve the relevance

and comparability of the information that reporting entity provides in its

financial statements about transfer of financial assets the effects of

transfer on its financial position financial performance and cash flows

and the transferors continuing involvement if any in transferred financial

assets The guidance was effective for January 2010 and did not have

an impact on the Companys financial condition or results of operations

BRANCH SALES AND CONSOLIDATIONS

During the third quarter of 2010 the Company consolidated four

owned branch offices and one leased branch office into existing branch

offices As result of these consolidations the Company added the four

owned branch offices to the real estate owned portfolio in the amount of

$1.3 million which included loss on the transfer of $1 30000
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On October 24 2008 the Company completed the sale of its entire

six-branch Delaware retail network to Wilmington Savings Fund Society

FSB WSFS Under the terms of the agreement WSFS purchased all

the retail deposits which totaled approximately $95 million and fixed

assets including one branch property The remaining five branches

which were leased by the Bank were assigned to WSFS All six branches

are located in New Castle County No loans were sold in connection with

this transaction The Company recognized gain $11 .5 million pre-tax

based on 12% deposit premium

During the first quarter of 2008 the Company consolidated one owned

branch office and one leased branch office into new branch office In

addition during the third quarter of 2008 the Company consolidated an

additional owned branch office into an existing branch office As result

of these consolidations the Company added the two owned branch

offices to the real estate owned portfolio in the amount of $1 .1 million

In addition the Company recognized an estimated lease buy-out charge

on the leased branch office of $72000

Amortized

Gross

Unrealized

Gross

Unrealized

Estimated

Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost of investment securities and the approximate fair value at December 31 2010 and 2009 were as follows

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES

December 31 2010

Available for sale

U.S Treasury obligations 47017 47019

U.S Government agency mortgage-backed securities 329973 2862 4348 328487

Other mortgage-backed securities 7472 1335 6137

State and municipal obligations 82744 593 940 82397

Trust preferred securities 12867 7225 5642

Other 3182 3182

Total available for sale 483255 3457 13848 472864

Held to maturity

116U.S Government agency mortgage-backed securities 2887 3003

Other mortgage-backed securities 152 152

Total held.to maturity 3039 116 3155

Total investment securities $486294 3573 $1 3848 $476019

December 31 2009

Available for sale

U.S Treasury obligations 2003 2007

U.S Government agencies 47537 737 48274

U.S Government agency mortgage-backed securities 240966 7946 318 248594

Other mortgage-backed securities 9222 2342 6880

State and municipal obligations 104305 1900 516 105689

Trust preferred securities 28814 7940 20874

Other 2420 2420

Total available for sale 435267 10587 11116 434738

Held to maturity

U.S Government agency mortgage-backed securities 5123 186 5309

Other mortgage-backed securities 1832 20 1812

Total held to maturity 6955 186 20 7121

Total investment securities $442222 $10773 11136 $441859
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During 2010 the Company had 16 securities called prior to maturity

for $49.2 million of proceeds resulting in gross realized gains and losses

of $27000 and $1 04000 respectively 72 available for sale securities

were sold prior to maturity for gross proceeds of $1 75.4 million which

resulted in gross realized gains and losses of $4.7 million and $86000

respectively and 21 securities matured generating $73.3 million of

gross proceeds During 2009 the Company had 11 securities called

prior to maturity of $3.7 million resulted in gross realized gain of

The Company determines whether unrealized losses are temporary

in nature in accordance with FASB ASC 325-40 when applicable

and FASB ASC 320-10 The evaluation is based upon factors such

as the creditworthiness of the underlying borrowers performance of

the underlying collateral if applicable and the level of credit support

in the security structure Management also evaluates other facts and

circumstances that may be indicative of an 0111 condition This includes

but is not limited to an evaluation of the type of security length of time

and extent to which the fair value has been less than cost and near-term

prospects of the issuer

FASB ASC 320-10 requires the Company to assess if 0111 exists

by considering whether the Company has the intent to sell the

security it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell

the security before recovery and it does not expect to recover the

entire amortized cost basis of the security The guidance allows the

Company to bifurcate the identified 0111 into credit loss component

and component representing loss related to other factors The portion

of the fair value decline attributable to credit loss must be recognized

through earnings when identified The Company determines the credit

component by calculating the cash flow expected to be realized from

the security which includes assumptions about interest rates timing

and severity of defaults estimates of potential recoveries the cash flow

$18000 and 14 securities matured at $27.3 million During 2008

the Company had 22 securities called prior to maturity of $20.6 million

resulted in gross realized gains and losses of $72000 and $25000

respectively and 30 securities matured at $1 80.9 million

The following table provides the gross unrealized losses and fair

value aggregated by investment category and length of time the

individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position

at December 31 2010 and 2009

Total

Estimated

Fair

Value

distribution from the bond indenture and other factors discount rate

is applied which equals the effective yield of the security The difference

between the present value of the expected cash flows and the amortized

book value is considered credit loss The market value of the security

is determined using the same expected cash flows the discount rate is

rate the Company determines from open market and other sources

as appropriate for the security The difference between the market

value and the present value of cash flows expected to be collected is

recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss income on the

consolidated statements of financial condition

The new guidance impacting FASB ASC 320-10 was adopted by the

Company during the quarter ended March 31 2009 Upon adoption

$5.3 million before tax or $3.1 million net of tax cumulative effect

adjustment was recorded to beginning retained earnings deficit on the

consolidated statements of financial condition This amount represented

the non-credit related impairment loss related to the pooled trust

preferred securities included in the Companys investment portfolio as

of January 2009 which had previously incurred an 0111 charge

For the year ended December 31 2010 the Companys investment

impairment review identified credit losses of $950000 on single

issuer trust preferred security and $379000 on private label

mortgage-backed security for which the Company had recorded an 0111

GROSS UNREALIZED LOSSES BY INVESTMENT CATEGORY

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer

Estimated Gross Estimated Gross

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses

Gross

Unrealized

Losses

December 31 2010

U.S Government agency mortgage-backed securities $158432 $4348 $158432 4348
Other mortgage-backed securities 6289 1335 6289 1335
State and municipal obligations 34135 940 34135 940
Trust preferred securities 5642 7225 5642 7225

Total $192567 $5288 $11931 8560 $204498 $13848

December 31 2009

U.S Government agency mortgage backed securities 27052 318 27052 318
Other mortgage-backed securities 8692 2362 8692 2362
State and municipal obligations 9365 284 5169 232 14534 516

Trust preferred securities 20874 7940 20874 7940

Total 36417 602 $34735 $10534 71152 $11136
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charge in 2009 For the year ended December 31 2009 the Company

recorded $6.8 million on the two pooled trust preferred securities for

which the Company had previously recorded an 0111 charge in 2008

and $351 000 on the private-label mortgage-backed security referred

to above Application of the guidance did not have an impact on any

other securities in unrealized loss position

The following is roll-forward for the year ended December 31

2010 of 0111 charges recognized in earnings as result of credit losses

on investments

CUMULATIVE 0111 RECOGNIZED IN OPERATIONS

At or for the Year Ended December 31 2010 Amount

Cumulative 0111 beginning of year 9354

Additional increase as result of net impairment losses

recognized on investments 1329

Cumulative 0111 end of year $10683

At or for the Year Ended December 31 2009 Amount

Cumulative 0111 beginning of year $2239

Additional increase as result of net impairment losses

recognized on investments 7115

Cumulative 0111 end of year 9354

U.S GovernmentAgency Mortgage-Backed Securities At December31

2010 the gross unrealized loss in the category of less than 12 months of

$4.3 million consisted of 17 mortgage-backed securities with an estimated

fair value of $1 58.4 million issued and guaranteed by U.S Government

sponsored agency The Company believes the unrealized losses are

due to increases in market interest rates since the time the underlying

securities were purchased The Company monitors key credit metrics such

as delinquencies defaults cumulative losses and credit support levels

to determine if an 0111 exists As of December 31 2010 management

concluded that an 0111 did not exist on any of the aforementioned securities

based upon its assessment Management also concluded that it does not

intend to sell the securities and that it is not more likely
than not it will be

required to sell the securities before their recovery which may be maturity

and management expects to recover the entire amortized cost basis of

these securities

Other Mortgage-Backed Securities At December 312010 the gross

unrealized loss in the category 12 months or longer of $1 .3 million

consisted of three non-agency mortgage-backed securities with an

estimated fair value of $6.3 million Of these securities two were rated

A.AA by at least one nationally recognized rating agency and the

remaining security was rated as non-investment grade The fixed income

markets in particular those segments that include credit spread such

as mortgage-backed issues have been negatively impacted since 2008

as credit spreads widened dramatically The Company monitors key

credit metrics such as delinquencies defaults cumulative losses and

credit support levels to determine if an 0111 exists As of December 31

2010 management concluded that an 0111 did not exist on the securities

rated PAA and believes the unrealized losses are due to increases

in market interest rates since the time the underlying securities were

purchased An 0111 charge of $379000 and $351 000 for the year

ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively was recorded on the

non-investment grade security as previously mentioned Management

also concluded that it does not intend to sell the securities and that

it is not more likely
than not it will be required to sell the securities

before their recovery which may be maturity and management expects

to recover the entire amortized cost basis of these securities

State and Municipal Obligations At December 31 2010 the gross

unrealized loss in the category of less than months of $940000

consisted of 75 municipal securities with an estimated fair value of

$34.1 million Of these municipal securities one was rated AAA

by at least one nationally recognized rating agency 72 were rated

investment grade or better by at least one nationally recognized rating

agency and two were non-rated The Company believes the unrealized

losses are due to increases in market interest rates since the time the

underlying securities were purchased The Company monitors rating

changes in those issues rated by nationally recognized rating agency

and performs in-house credit reviews on those non-rated issues The

Company believes recovery of fair value is expected as the securities

approach their maturity date or as valuations for such securities improve

as market yields change As of December 31 2010 management

concluded that an 0111 did not exist on any of the aforementioned

securities based upon its assessment Management also concluded that

it does not intend to sell the securities and that it is not more likely

than not it will be required to sell the securities before their recovery

which may be maturity and management expects to recover the entire

amortized cost basis of these securities

Trust Preferred Securities At December 31 2010 the gross

unrealized loss in the category of 12 months or longer of $7.2 million

consisted of two trust preferred securities The trust preferred securities

are comprised of one non-rated single issuer security with an amortized

cost of $4.1 million and an estimated fair value of $1.2 million and one

non-investment grade rated pooled security with an amortized cost of

$8.8 million and estimated fair value of $4.4 million

For the pooled security the Company monitors each issuer in the

collateral pool with respect to financial performance using data from

the issuers most recent regulatory reports as well as information on

issuer deferrals and defaults Also the security structure is monitored

with respect to collateral coverage and current levels of subordination

Expected future cash flows are projected assuming additional defaults

and deferrals based on the performance of the collateral pool The

non investment grade pooled security is in senior position in the

capital structure The security had .28 times principal coverage As

of the most recent reporting date interest has been paid in accordance

with the terms of the security The Company reviews projected cash
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flow analysis for adverse changes in the present value of projected

future cash flows that may result in an other-than-temporary credit

impairment to be recognized through earnings The most recent

valuations assumed no recovery on any defaulted collateral no

recovery on any deferring collateral and additional 3.6% defaults or

deferrals every years with no recovery rate As of December 31

2010 management concluded that an 0111 did not exist on the

aforementioned security based upon its assessment Management

also concluded that it does not intend to sell the security and that it is

not more likely
than not it will be required to sell the security before

their recovery which may be maturity and management expects to

recover the entire amortized cost basis of this security

The financial performance of the single issuer trust preferred

security is monitored on quarterly basis using data from the issuers

most recent regulatory reports to assess the probability of cash flow

impairment Expected future cash flows are projected incorporating the

contractual cash flow of the security adjusted if necessary for potential

changes in the amount or timing of cash flows due to the underlying

creditworthiness of the issuer and covenants in the security

In August 2009 the issuer of the single issuer trust preferred security

elected to defer its normal quarterly dividend payment As contractually

permitted the issuer may defer dividend payments up to five years

with accumulated dividends and interest on those deferred dividends

payable upon the resumption of its scheduled dividend payments The

issuer is currently operating under an agreement with its regulators

The agreement stipulates the issuer must receive permission from its

regulators prior to resuming its scheduled dividend payments

During the third quarter 2010 the Company recorded an 0111 charge

of $4.0 million related to this deferring single issuer trust preferred

security The $4.0 million 0111 charge was comprised of credit related

charge through non-interest income on the consolidated statement of

operations of $950000 and market valuation charge of $3.1 million

through accumulated other comprehensive loss on the consolidated

statements of financial condition Based on the Companys most recent

evaluation the Company does not expect the issuer to default on the

security based primarily on the issuers subsidiary bank reporting that

it meets the minimum regulatory requirements to be considered well

capitalized institution However the Company recognizes the length of

time the issue has been in deferral the difficult economic environment

and some weakened performance measures increases the probability

that full recovery of principal and anticipated dividends may not be

realized In recognition of that increased probability the Company

concluded that the decline in the security was other than temporary

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of the investment

securities by contractual maturity at December 31 2010 is shown

below Actual maturities will differ from contractual maturities as

borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without

call or prepayment penalties

CONTRACTUAL MATURITIES OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Available for Sale Held to Maturity

Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated

December 312010 Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less 66245 66268

Due affer one year through five years 5622 5626

Due affer five years through ten years 3379 3423

Due affer ten years 70564 62923

Total investment securities excluding mortgage-backed securities 145810 138240

U.S Government agency mortgage-backed securities 329973 328487 2887 3003

Other mortgage backed securities 7472 6137 152 152

Total investment securities $483255 $472864 $3039 $3155

At December 31 2010 the Company had $237.3 million amortized cost and $235.0 million estimated fair value of investment securities

pledged to secure public deposits At December 31 2010 the Company had $34.3 million amortized cost and $35.1 million estimated fair value

of investment securities pledged as collateral on secured borrowings
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LOAN COMPONENTS

As of December 31 2009

Commercial and industrial

Home equity lines of credit

Home equity term loans

Residential real estate

Other

Total gross loans

Allowance for loan losses

Loans net $2657694

Non-accrual loans 87682

Loans past due 90 days and accruing 7958

Many of the Companys commercial and industrial loans have real

estate component as part of the collateral securing the accommodation

Additionally the Company makes commercial real estate loans for the

acquisition retinance improvement and construction of real property

Loan secured by owner occupied properties are dependent upon the

successfully operation of the borrowers business If the operating

company experiences difficulties in terms of sales volume and/or

profitability the borrowers ability to repay the loan may be impaired

Loans secured by properties where repayment is dependent upon

payment of rent by third party tenants or the sale of the property may

be impacted by loss of tenants lower lease rates needed to attract new

tenants or the inability to sell completed project in timely fashion

and at profit At December 31 2010 commercial and industrial loans

secured by commercial real estate properties totaled $1 .40 billion of

which $71 3.6 million or 51.0% were classified as owner occupied and

$685.6 million or 49.0% were classified as non owner occupied

As of December31 2010 the Company had $81 .1 million outstanding

on 25 residential construction commercial construction and land

development relationships whose agreements included interest

reserves As of December 31 2009 the Company had $1 08.7 million

outstanding on 28 residential construction commercial construction

and land development relationships whose agreements included

interest reserves The total amount available in those reserves to fund

interest payments was $2.4 million and $6.5 million for the periods

ended December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 respectively The

Company had six residential construction relationships with interest

reserves of $3.4 million on non-accrual status as of December31 2010

As these relationships are in technical default no additional funding of

the interest reserves will be made There were no loans with interest

reserves on non-accrual status as uf Deuember 31 2009 Construction

projects are monitored throughout their lives by professional inspectors

engaged by the Company The budgets for loan advances and borrower

equity injections are developed at underwriting time in conjunction

with the review of the plans and specifications for the project being

financed Advances of the Companys funds are based on the prepared

budgets and will not be made unless the project has been inspected by

the Companys professional inspector who must
certify

that the work

related to the advance is in place and properly complete As it relates

As of December 31 2010

$2249365

258592

68592

75322

65776

271 7647

59953

LOANS

The components of loans were as follows

LOAN COMPONENTS

Commercial

Commercial and industrial 530462

CRE owner occupied 713587

CRE non owner occupied 685587

Land and development 173856

Consumer

Home equity lines of credit 239729

Home equity term loans 53912

Residential real estate 79074

Other 58963

Total gross loans 2535170

Allowance for loan losses 81713

Loans net $2453457

Loans past due 90 days and accruing 2554

Troubled debt restructuring accruing 20341

LOANS ON NON-ACCRUAL STATUS

As of December 31 2010

Commercial

Commercial industrial 25178

CRE owner Occupied 30920

CRE non-owner occupied 44295

Land and development 48124

Consumer

Home equity lines of credit 4616

Home equity term loans 1134

Residential real estate 4243

Other 916

Total non accrual loans $159426

Troubled debt restructurings non-accrual 11796
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to construction project financing the Company does nof extend renew

or restructure terms unless its borrower posts cash collateral in an

interest reserve

The Companys home equity loan
portfolio represents 11 .6% of total

loans outstanding at December31 2010 and is the largest component of

the Companys non-commercial portfolio Tha home equity loan portfolio

decreased $33.5 million or 10.3% from December 31 2009 Usage

of home equity lines of credit has remained constant at approximately

50.0% over the past year with approximately 43.6% of the overall home

equity loan
portfolio

balance being in first lien position

Included in the Companys loan portfolio are modified commercial

loans Per FASBASC 310 40 Troubled Debt Restructuring modification

is one in which the creditor for economic or legal reasons related to the

debtors financial difficulties grants concession to the debtor that it

would not otherwise consider such as providing for below market

interest rate and/or forgiving principal or previously accrued interest

this modification may stem from an agreement or be imposed by

law or court and may involve multiple note structure Generally

prior to the modification the loans which are modified as troubled

debt restructuring TDR are already classified as non-performing

These loans may only be returned to performing i.e accrual status

after considering the borrowers sustained repayment performance

for reasonable amount of time generally six months this sustained

repayment performance may include the period of time just prior to the

restructuring During 2010 the Company entered into TDR agreements

with three commercial relationships As of December31 2010 the total

carrying value of the TDRs was $32.1 million of which $20.3 million

was performing The Company granted concessions by lowering the

fixed interest rate on two ot the borrowings to rate below the current

market rate and by extending the term on the third borrowing The

carrying amount of the performing TDR has remained on accrual status

as the borrower has continued to demonstrate sustained payment

performance consistent with the terms of the TDR

There were no irrevocable commitments to lend additional funds on

non accrual loans at December31 2010 Interest income not recognized

as result of the above non-accrual loans was $5.4 million $3.7 million

and $2.6 million for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively The amount of interest included in net income on

these loans for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

was $3.9 million $1 .9 million and $726000 respectively

Under approved lending decisions the Company had commitments

to lend additional funds totaling approximately $438.3 million and

$807.0 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customer

as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the

contract Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other

termination clauses and may require payment of fee Since many of

the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon the

total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash

requirements The Company evaluates each customers creditworthiness

on an individual basis The type and amount of collateral obtained if

deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit is based

on managements credit evaluation of the borrower

Most of the Companys business activity is with customers located

within its local market area Generally commercial real estate residential

real estate and other assets secure loans The ultimate repayment of loans

is dependent to certain degree on the local economy and real estate

market As of December 31 2010 the Company had $421 .5 million in

loans pledged as collateral on secured borrowings

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

An analysis of the change in the allowance for loan losses is as follows

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Balance end of year 81713

The allowance for loan losses was $81 .7 million $60.0 million and

$37.3 million at December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively The

ratio of allowance fur loan losses to giuss loans was 3.22% 2.21% arid

.36% at December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

The provision for loan losses charged to expense is based upon

historical loan loss experience and series of qualitative factors and an

evaluation of estimated losses in the current commercial loan portfolio

including the evaluation of impaired loans under FASB ASC 310 Values

assigned to the qualitative factors and those developed from historic

loss experience provide dynamic basis for the calculation of reserve

factors for both pass-rated loans general pooled allowance and those

criticized and classified loans that continue to perform

loan is considered to be impaired when based upon current

information and events it is probable that the Company will be unable to

collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan

An insignificant delay or insignificant shortfall in amount of payments

does not necessarily result in loan being identified as impaired For

this purpose delays less than 90 days are considered to be insignificant

Impairment losses are included in the provision for loan losses on

the consolidated statements of operations Impaired loans include

accruing and non-accruing TDR loans Loans not individually reviewed

are evaluated as group using reserve factor percentages based on

historic loss experience and qualitative factors which generally include

consumer loans residential real estate loans and small business loans

In determining the appropriate level of the general pooled allowance

management makes estimates based on internal risk ratings which take

into account such factors as debt service coverage loan-to-value ratios

managements abilities and external factors

At or for the Years

Ended December 31

Balance beginning of year

Charge-ofts

Recoveries

Net charge ofts

Provision for loan losses

2010

59953

80802

1044

79758

101518

2009

37309

24748

726

24022

46666

59953

2008

27002

10728

1035

9693

20000

37309
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COMPONENTS OF IMPAIRED LOANS

For the Year Ended December 31 2009

Impaired loans with an allowance recorded

Impaired loans with no related allowance

Total impaired loans

Valuation allowance related to impaired loans

The following table presents the Companys components of impaired loans segregated by class of loans Commercial and consumer loans that

were collectively evaluated for impairment are not included in the data that follows

IMPAIRED LOANS

For the Year Ended December 31 2010

Accrued Cash

Average Interest Interest

Recorded Related Recorded Income Income

Investment UPB Allowance Investment Recognized Recognized

With no related allowance

Commercial

Commercial industrial 8650 9570 5387 58 58

CRE owner occupied 32325 65398 37502 18 18

CRE non-owner occupied 24047 33445 9398

Land and development 21044 33387 12343

Consumer

Residential real estate 23

Other 644

With an allowance recorded

Commercial

Commercial industrial 26938 32365 6109 20959 454 $438

CRE owner occupied 20365 25099 4800 22463 433 420

CRE non-owner occupied 20275 26512 4770 8998

and and rlevelnpment 27085 28460 5401 9209 29 29

Consumer

Other 323

Total commercial $180729 $254236 $21080 $126259 $1001 $972

Totalconsumer $990

ANALYSIS OF IMPAIRED LOANS

$22999

52328

$75327

5561

For the Years Ended December 31 2009 2008

Average impaired loans $54199 $329379

Interest income recognized

on impaired loans 220 161

Cash basis interest income

recognized on impaired loans 220 159
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CREDIT QUALITY INDICATORS

As of December 312010

Credit Risk by Internally Assigned Grade

The Companys primary tool for assessing risk when evaluating

credit in terms of its underwriting structure documentation and eventual

collectibility is risk rating system where the loan is assigned numeric

value Behind each numeric category is defined set of characteristics

reflective of the particular level of risk

The risk rating system is based on nine point grade using two-digit

scale The upper five grades are for pass categories while the lower

four grades represent criticized categories which are equivalent to

the guidelines utilized by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency

0CC
The loan officer is responsible for assigning maintaining and

documenting accurate risk ratings for all commercial loans and

commercial real estate loans The loan officer assigns risk rating at

the inception of the credit reaffirms it at each renewal extension or

modification and adjusts the rating based on the performance of the

credit As part of the credit review process regional credit officer

will review risk ratings for accuracy The loan officers risk rating will

also be reviewed periodically by the loan review department and the

Banks regulators

To calculate risk ratings in consistent fashion the Company uses

Risk Rating Form that provides for numerical grade to be assigned

to up to six characteristics of credit including elements of its financial

condition abilities of management position in the market collateral

support and the impact of changing conditions.When combined an overall

risk rating is provided separate set of risk rating elements are provided

for credits associated with the financing of real estate projects

The following table presents the Companys distribution of risk ratings loan portfolio segregated by class as of December 31 2010

Commercial Consumer

Home Home

CRE CRE equity equity

Commercial owner non-owner Land and lines of term Residential

industrial occupied occupied development credit loans real estate Other

Grade

Pass $470278 $578444 $575713 87576 $232024 $52414 $71782 $56964

Special Mention 12753 21311 14338 6520

Suhstandard 47431 113832 95536 79760 7705 1498 7292 1999

Total $530462 $713587 $685587 $173856 $239729 $53912 $79074 $58963
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REsTRIcTED Eouiw INVESTMENTS

The Company through the Bank is member of the EBB the

FHLBNY and Atlantic Central Bankers Bank and is required to maintain

an investment in the capital stock of each These investments are

restricted in that they can only be redeemed by the issuer at par value

These securities are carried at cost and the Company did not identify

any events or Łhanges in circumstances that may have had an adverse

effect on the value of the investment in accordance with FASB ASC 942

Financial Services Depositoryand Lending As of December31 2010

management does not believe that an impairment of these holdings

exists and expects to recover the entire cost of these securities

The Companys restricted equity investment at December 31 2010

and 2009 were as follows

RESTRICTED EQUITY INVESTMENTS

December 31 2010 2009

ERB stock $12101 9395

FHLBNY stock 5341 5956

Atlantic Central Bankers Bank stock 148 148

Total $17590 $15499

BANK PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT

Bank properties and equipment consist of the following major

classifications

SUMMARY OF BANK PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT

December 31 ________________
Land

Buildings

Capital lease

Leasehold improvements and equipment
___________________

Total bank properties and equipment

Accumulated depreciation
___________________

Bank properties and equipment net

The following table presents the Companys analysis of past due loans segregated by class of loans as of December 31 2010

AGING OF RECEIVABLES

For the Year Ended December 31 2010

30-59 60-89 Loans 90

Days Days Total Days Past

Past Past 90 Days Total Financing Due and

Due Due Past Due Past Due Current Receivables Accruing

Commercial

Commercial industrial 6743 815 25152 32710 497752 530462 558

CRE owner occupied 8478 2072 40063 50613 662974 713587 609

CRE non-owner occupied 8655 13119 18436 40210 645377 685587

Land and development 11748 9797 36359 57904 115952 173856

Consumer

Home equity lines of credit 2667 817 4292 7776 231 953 239729 379

Home equity term loans 340 111 1134 1585 52327 53912

Residential real estate 19W 2870 4242 9013 70061 79074 72

Other 1027 535 1737 3299 55664 58963 936

Total $41559 $30136 $131415 $203110 $2332060 $2535170 $2554

2010

10459

27561

8630

39575

86225

32797

53428

2009

8683

25341

8630

39135

81789

28543

53246
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The Company recognized depreciation expense of $5.4 million

$4.8 million and $4.7 million for the years ended December 31 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively

On occasion the Company engages construction related services

from companies affiliated with certain directors under separate

agreenients with the Company The Company did not engage
in any

construction related services with related parties during 2010 or 2009

The Company incurred $1 34000 in 2008 for these services all of which

were classified as capital expenditures on the Companys consolidated

statements of financial condition Management believes disbursements

made to these related parties were equivalent to those that would have

been paid to unaffiliated companies for similar services

Insurance prcceeds received and applied as cost recovery ot the carrying value of the property

During 2010 the Company transferred $3.3 million in book value

of loans into real estate owned including four commercial properties

aggregating $3.1 million and one residential property for $201000 In

addition four bank properties aggregating $1 .3 million in book value were

closed during 2010 and the balances transferred into real estate owned

The Company moved one commercial property with an estimated fair

value of $1.9 million into operations In 2010 the Company recorded

$1 54000 of write-downs of real estate owned including $1 30000 on

the carrying value of two bank properties and $24000 on the carrying

value of two residential properties There was one commercial property

and two residential properties with carrying amounts of $8.0 million and

$57000 respectively sold during the year ended December 31 2010

which resulted in combined gain of $18000 which is included in

non-interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations The

Company received insurance proceeds on one residential property and

recognized reduction of carrying value of $154000 The Company

currently maintains 12 properties in the real estate owned porttolio six

of which are former bank branches During the third quarter of 2010

four of the bank branches were consolidated into four previously existing

bank branches

REAL ESTATE OWNED

Real estate owned consisted of the following

SUMMARY OF REAL ESTATE OWNED

SUMMARY OF REAL ESTATE OWNED ACTIVITY

December 31 2010 2009

Commercial properties $1261 $8007

Residential properties 497 531

Bank properties 2155 989

Total $3913 $9527

Underlying Property

Commercial Residential Bank

At or for the year ended December 31 2010 Properties Properties Properties Total

Balance beginning of year 8007 531 989 9527

Transfers into real estate owned 3128 2W 1296 4625

Transfers into operations 1900 1900
Sale of real estate owned 7974 57 8031
Write down of real estate owned 24 130 154

Other Ill 154 154

Balance end of year $1261 497 $2155 3913

Expenses applicable to real estate owned include the following

REAL ESTATE OWNED EXPENSES NET

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Net gain loss on sales of real estate 18 66 $727

Write-down of real estate owned 383 950

Operating expenses net of rental income 436 139 99

Total $801 $1155 $628
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101 GoODwILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Generally the Company testg goodwill for impairment annually at year

end However due to concerns about credit quality performance as it

relates to its peers as well as recent events specific to the Company

including the written agreement the Agreement the Bank entered

into with the 0CC on April 15 2010 the mandated individual minimum

capital ratios as well as information obtained while taking actions to raise

capital to meetthe individual minimum capital requirements established

by the 0CC it was deemed appropriate to perform goodwill analysis at

June 30 2010 See Note 15 for more information on the Agreement

In performing step one and step two of the impairment analysis

the market value assigned to the Companys stock was based upon

an acquisition value relative to recent acquisition transactions by

companies in the Companys geographic proximity and comparable

size The acquisition value is sensitive to both the fluctuation of the

Companys stock price and the stocK price of peer companies In

determining the value of the Company Ft was noted that the recent credit

quality trends such as the increase in non-performing assets more

specifically non-accrual loans increased significantly over prior quarter

changes which could impact purchasers outlook on the Companys

loan portfolio especially given the uncertainty with the regulatory

environment In addition the Company deemed it appropriate to take

into consideration information obtained as result of the extensive due

diligence performed by sophisticated investors who carefully reviewed

the Companys fundamentals prospects market credit expectations

and regulatory environment These factors in addition to discounted

cash flow analysis and comparisons of the Company to its peers

resulted in an estimated Company fair value less than its carrying value

and therefore the Company was deemed to have failed step one and

was required to perform step two analysis In performing step two

of the analysis the Company assessed the fair value of its assets and

liabilities not already carried at fair vahieat the respective reporting

date using valuation techniques that require the use of among other

things level and level market values as defined by FASB ASC 820

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures This value was deemed

by management to be reasonable exit price of the Companys stock

and was allocated amongst the Companys fair value of its assets and

liabilities including any recognized and unrecognized intangible assets

The step-two analysis indicated that the Companys carrying amount

of goodwill exceeded the implied fair value of the goodwill As result

the Company recorded non-cash impairment charge of $89.7 million

during the second quarter which is included in non-interest expense

in the Condensed Consolidated statements of operations on goodwill

Goodwill at December 31 2010 and 2009 was $38.2 million and

$1 27.9 million respectively

The Company has core deposit premium intangible asset that

resulted from previous acquisitions The carrying value of this asset was

$1 0.6 million $14.3 million and $1 8.8 million at December 31 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively The Company incurred amortization

expense of $3.7 million $4.5 million and $4.7 million on its core deposit

intangible during the years ended December31 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively

Information regarding the Companys expected amortization expense

is as follows

AMORTIZATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Amount

Expected for Years Ended December 31

2011 3685

2012 3685

2013 2457

2014 804

2015

Thereafter

Total $10631

11 DEPOSITS

Deposits consist of the following major classifications

SUMMARY OF DEPOSITS

December 31 2010 2009

Interest-bearing demand deposits $1364858 $1190709

Non-interest-bearing demand deposits 498082 481524

Savings deposits 279086 299322

Time deposits under $100000 480993 500467

Time deposits $1 00000 or more 228121 372497

Brokered time deposits 89320 64749

Total $2940460 $2909268
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summary of time deposits by year of maturity is as follows

MATURITIES OF TIME DEPOSITS

Years Ended December 31

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Thereafter

Total

Amounts inolude brokered time deposits

summary of interest expense on deposits is as follows

SUMMARY OF INTEREST EXPENSE

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Savings deposits 2283 2937 7632

Time deposits 15805 30748 43865

Interest-bearing

demand deposits 10692 10672 14355

Total $28780 $44357 $65852

12 ADVANCES FROM THE FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

OF NEW YORK

At December31 2010 and 2009 the Company had fixed-rate advances

from the FHLBNY of $4.0 million and $15.2 million respectively which

mature through 2018 At December 31 2010 and 2009 the interest

rates on these fixed-rate advances from the FHLBNY ranged from

3.78% to 5.87% for both periods The weighted average interest rate

at December 31 2010 and 2009 was 4.51% and 4.52% respectively

Interest expense on advances from the FHLBNY was $348000

$71 5000 and $1.4 million for the years ended December 31 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively and are included in interest on funds

borrowed on the consolidated statements of operations

SUMMARY OF REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

At or for the Years Ended December 31

FHLBNY repurchase agreements outstanding at year end

Weighted average interest rate at year end

Approximate average amount outstanding during the year

Approximate weighted average rate during the year

Repurchase agreements with customers outstanding at year end

Weighted average interest rate at year end

Approximate average amount outstanding during the year

Approximate weighted average rate during the year

The contractual maturities of the Companys fixed-rate advances from

the FHLBNY at December 31 2010 are as follows

CONTRACTUAL MATURITIES OF ADVANCES FROM THE FHLBNY

Years Ended December 31 Amount

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Thereafter 1388

Total $3999

13 SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS

TO REPURCHASE

The Company has overnight repurchase agreements with customers

as well as term repurchase agreements with the FHLBNY At December31

2010 and 2009 customer repurchase agreements were $6.3 million

with an interest rate of 0.21% and $18.7 million with interest rate

of 0.11% respectively Interest expense on customer repurchase

agreements was $30000 $42000 and $478000 million for the years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively and are

included in interest on funds borrowed on the consolidated statements

of operations Collateral for customer repurchase agreements consisted

of U.S Treasury notes or securities issued or guaranteed by one of the

U.S Government sponsored agencies The fair value of the collateral

was approximately equal to the amounts outstanding

At December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company had one FHLBNY

repurchase agreement for $1 5.0 million with an interest rate of 4.84%

Interest expense on FHLBNY repurchase agreements was $737000

$748000 and $775000 for the years ended December31 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively and are included in interest on funds borrowed

on the consolidated statements of operations Collateral for the FHLBNY

repurchase agreements consisted of securities issued or guaranteed by

one of the U.S Government sponsored agencies The fair value of the

collateral was approximately equal to the amount outstanding

summary of securities sold under agreements to repurchase

interest rates approximate average amounts outstanding and their

approximate weighted average rates at December 31 2010 2009 and

2008 is as follows

2010 2009 2008

$15000 $15000 $15000

4.84% 4.84% 4.84%

$15000 $15000 $16530

4.91% 4.98% 4.69%

6307 $18677 $20327

0.21% 0.11% 0.25%

$15243 $17997 $34976

0.19% 0.23% 1.37%

Amount

$579190

144551

62395

6582

5046

670

$798434

2611
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The maximum month end amount of securities sold under agreements to

repurchase for the years ended December31 2010 and 2009 is as follows

SUMMARY OF MAXIMUM MONTH END REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

December 31 2010 2009

FHLBNY repurchase agreements $15000 $15000

Repurchase agreements with customers $20249 $21 867

14 JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES HELD BY

TRUSTS THAT ISSUED CAPITAL DEBT

The Company has established Issuer Trusts that have issued

guaranteed preferred beneficial interests in the Companys junior

subordinated debentures These Issuer Trusts are variable interest

entities tinder FASR ASC 810-10 onsolidation FASB ASC 810-10

On January 23 2009 and December 30 2008 the capital securities

of Sun Capital Trust VI and Sun Capital Trust respectively became

eligible for redemption As result of the current interest environment

the Company has elected not to call these securities however the

Company maintains the right to call these securities in the future on the

respective payment anniversary dates

The Companys capital securities are deconsolidated in accordance

with GAAP and qualify as Tier capital under federal regulatory

guidelines These instruments are subject to 25% capital limitation

under risk-based capital guidelines developed by the Federal Reserve

Board In March 2005 the Federal Reserve Board amended its risk-

based capital standards to expressly allow the continued limited inclusion

of outstanding and prospective issuances of capital securities in bank

holding companys Tier capital subject to tightened quantitative

limits The Federal Reserves amended rule was to become effective

March 31 2009 and would have limited capital securities and other

restricted core capital elements to 25% of all core capital elements

net of goodwill less any associated deferred tax liability On March 16

2009 the Federal Reserve Board extended for two years the ability of

bank holding companies to include restricted core capital elements as

Tier capital up to 25% of all core capital elements including goodwill

The portion that exceeds the 25% capital limitation qualifies as Tier or

supplementary capital of the Company Management currently operates

In accordance with FASBASC 810-10 all the lssuerTrusts outstanding

at December 31 2010 and 2009 are deconsolidated The junior

subordinated debentures issued by the Company to the Issuer Trusts at

December 31 2010 and 2009 of $92.8 million are reflected as Junior

subordinated debentures in the Companys Consolidated statements

of financial condition The Company records interest expense on the

corresponding debentures in its consolidated statements of operations

The Company also recorded the common capital securities issued by the

Issuer Trusts in other assets in its consolidated statements of financial

condition at December 31 2010 and 2009

The following is summary of the outstanding capital securities issued

by each Issuer Trust and the junior subordinated debentures issued by

the Company to each Issuer Trust as of December 31 2010

under capital plan for the Company and the Bank that is expected to

allow the Company and the Bank to maintain regulatory capital levels at

or above the levels set for them

The Issuer Trusts are wholly owned unconsolidated subsidiaries of the

Company and have po independent operations The obligations of Issuer

Trusts are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company The

debentures are unsecured and rank subordinate and junior in right of

payment to all indebtedness liabilities and obligations of the Company

Interest on the debentures is cumulative and payable in arrears

Proceeds from any redemption of debentures would cause mandatory

redemption of capital securities having an aggregate liquidation amount

equal to the principal amount of debentures redeemed

Sun Statutory Trust VII has fixed rate of 6.24% for period of five

years from the date of issuance and beginning in year six variable rate

of London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR plus .35% Sun Capital

Trust VII has fixed rate of 6.428% for period of five years from the

date of issuance and beginning in year six variable rate of LIBOR plus

.53% Sun Capital Trust Sun Capital Trust VI Sun Statutory Trust

VII Sun Capital Trust VII and Sun Capital Trust VIII do not have interest

rate caps

The Company has customarily relied on dividend payments from the

Bank to fund junior subordinated debenture interest obligations The

amount available for payment of dividends to the Company by the Bank

SUMMARY OF CAPITAL SECURITIES AND JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

December 312010 Capital Securities Junior Subordinated Debentures

Issuer Trust Issuance Date

Stated

Value Distribution Rate

Principal

Amount Maturity

Redeemable

Beginning

Sun Capital Trust December 18 2003 $15000 3-mo LIBOR pIus 2.80% $1 5464 December 30 2033 December 30 2008

Sun Capital Trust VI December 19 2003 25000 3-mo LIBOR plus 2.80% 25774 January 23 2034 January 23 2009

Sun Statutory Trust VII January 17 2006 30000 6.24% Fixed 30928 March 15 2036 March 15 2011

Sun CapitalTrustVll April 19 2007 10000 6.428% Fixed 10310 June 30 2037 June 30 2012

Sun Capital Trust VIII July 2007 10000

$90000

3-mo LIBOR plus .39% 10310

$92786

October 2037 October 2012
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was $0 as of December 31 2010 end no dividends may be paid by the

Bank without 0CC approval Per the 0CC Agreement dividend may

only be declared if it is in accordance with the approved capital plan the

Bank remains in compliance with the capital plan following the payment

of the dividend and the dividend is approved by the 0CC The Company

believes it is capable of funding its junior subordinated debenture

interest obligations through available cash balances maintained at the

bank holding company for the period of time necessary until earnings

are expected to support dividend from the Bank See Note 24 of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on

dividend limitations

15 STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS

In September 2010 the Board of Directors of the Company adopted

Stock-Based Incentive Plan the 2010 Plan The purpose of the 2010

Plan as is all of the Companys stock-based plans is to attract and

retain personnel for positions of substantial responsibility and to provide

additional incentive to officers employees directors and other persons

providing services to the Company or any present or future parent or

subsidiary of the Company to promote the long-term interests of the

Company and its shareholders The 2010 Plan authorizes the issuance

of 4900000 shares of common stock pursuant to awards that may be

granted in the form of options to purchase common stock Options

and awards of shares of common stock Stock Awards The maximum

number of Stock Awards may not exceed 1400000 shares Under

the 2010 Plan Options expire ten years after the date of grant unless

terminated earlier under the option terms For both Options and Stock

Awards Committee of non employee directors has the authority to

determine the conditions upon which the options granted will vest At

December 31 2010 there were no options or awards granted under

the 2010 Plan

In September 2010 the Board of Directors of the Company adopted

Performance Equity Plan the 2010 Performance Plan The 2010

Performance Plan authorizes the issuance of 2700000 shares of

common stock pursuant to awards that may be granted in the form

of Options at an exercise price which is 110% of the fair market value

ot the Companys common stock on the date of grant The purpose of

the 2010 Performance Plan is to establish an effective link between

incentive compensation and performance for officers and employees with

the Companys stockholders by rewarding actions that result in building

long term shareholder value Underthe 2010 Performance Plan Options

expire ten years after the date of grant unless terminated earlier under

the option terms For Options Committee of non-employee directors

has the authority to determine the conditions upon which the options

granted will vest At December 31 201 there were no options or stock

awards granted under the 2010 Plan

The 2004 Stock Plan as amended in 2009 the 2004 Plan

authorizes the issuance of 2500425 shares of common stock pursuant

to awards that may be granted in the form of options to purchase common

stock Options and awards of shares of common stock Stock

Awards The maximum number of stock awards that may be granted

over time may not exceed 7611 01 shares At December 31 2010 the

amount of shares of common stock available for future grants under the

20D4 Plan as amended was 186587 shares of which 9495 shares

are available for issuance as stock awards Under the 2004 Plan options

expire 10 years after the date of grant unless terminated earlier under the

option terms For both Options and Stock Awards Committee of non-

employee directors has the authority to determine the conditions upon

which the options granted will vest Each director and advisory director

of the Company received compensation in the form of stock awards

which were immediately vested upon issuance There were 220534
241 358 and 135282 stock awards issued from the 2004 Plan for the

years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively The

Company granted 763994 146907 and 371 595 options for the years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively under the

2004 Plan These options were granted at the then fair market value of

the Companys stock During 2010 there were 503300 options granted

under the 2004 Plan which vested 25% immediately and the remaining

75% evenly over three years 94657 options granted which vest evenly

over five years 75000 options granted that vest 100% two years after

the date of grant 47037 options granted which vested immediately and

44ODD options granted which vest evenly over four years beginning two

years after the date of grant During 2009 there were 26907 options

granted which vest over four years at rate of 33.3% over the first two

years and the remaining 66.7% evenly over the remaining two years

and 120000 options granted that vest 100% two years after the date

of grant During 2008 there were 103432 options granted that vest

evenly over five years 203960 opUons that vest over five years at

rate of 25% over first two years and the remaining 75% evenly over the

remaining three years and 64203 options that vest over four years at

rate of 33.3% over the first two years and the remaining 66.7% evenly

over the remaining two years There are 1562232 options outstanding

and 309481 nonvested restricted stock awards under the 2004 Plan at

December 31 2010

In January 2006 as result of the Advantage Bank Advantage

acquisition the Company assumed stock options previously granted

under the Advantage Plans Upon merger all stock options under the

Advantage Plans became
fully

vested and were converted to stock

options of the Company The number of shares of common stock that

may be purchased pursuant to any such option is equal to the number

of shares covered by the option multiplied by the merger exchange ratio

with the exercise price of each converted option equal to the original

exercise price divided by the merger exchange ratio Stock options

previously granted under the Advantage Plans are both incentive and

non-qualified and expire from 2011 through 2014 There are 12362

stock options outstanding under these plans at December 31 2010 No

additional stock options will be granted under these plans

In July 2004 as result of the acquisition of Community Bancorp of New

Jersey Community the Company assumed stock options previously

granted under the Community Plans Upon merge all stock options under

the Community Plans became fully vested and were converted to stock

options of the Company The number of shares of common stock that

may be purchased pursuant to any such option is equal to the number of

shares covered by the option multiplied by the merger exchange ratio with

the exercise price of each converted option equal to the original
exercise

price divided by the merger exchange ratio Stock options previously

granted under the Community Plans are both incentive and non-qualified

and expire from 2011 through 2012 There are 23522 stock options

outstanding under these plans at December 31 2010 No additional stock

options will be granted under these plans
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Options granted under the 2002 Stock Option Plan the 2002 Plan

may be either qualitied incentive options or nonqualified options as

determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

or the Board of Directors The 2002 Plan authorizes the issuance of

1108089 shares of common stock The grant of reload options is

authorized under the 2002 Plan The award of reload option allows the

optionee to receive the grant of an additional stock option at the then

current market price in the event that such optionee exercises all or part

of an option an original option by surrendering already owned shares

of common stock in full or partial payment of the option price under such

original option The exercise of an additional option issued in accordance

with the reload feature will reduce the total number of shares eligible for

award under the Plan Under the 2002 Plan the nonqualified options

expire ten years and ten days after the date of grant unless terminated

earlier under the option terms The qualified incentive options expire

10 years after the date of grant unless terminated earlier under the

option terms The vesting provision of the 2002 Plan generally allows

20% of options granted to employees to vest six months after the date

of grant and 20% for each of the next four anniversaries of the grant

subject to employment and other conditions The vesting provision of

the 2002 Plan generally allows options granted to directors to vest as of

the date of grant At December 31 2010 there were 780038 options

SUMMARY OF STOCK OPTIONS GRANTED AND OUTSTANDING

Incentive Nonqualified Total

Stock options granted and outstanding

December 312010 at prices ranging from $3.51 to $17.49 per share 887319 1840820 2728139
December 31 2009 at prices ranging from $3.54 to $1 7.49 per share 846377 1353234 21 99611

December 31 2008 at prices ranging from $4.30 to $1 7.49 per share 782944 1862925 2645869

Data is adiusted for 5% stock dividend issued in May 2009

Activity in the stock option plans for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively was as follows

SUMMARY OF STOCK OPTION ACTIVITY Ii

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Number of Exercise Number of Exercise Number of Exercise

Options Price Options Price Options Price

Stock options outstanding beginning of year 2199611 $9.51 2645869 9.78 2448402 9.57

Granted 763994 4.77 146907 3.72 371595 11.51

Exercised 88346 8.10

Forfeited 29521 816 21075 15.31 13372 15.79

Expired 205945 8.27 572090 9.04 72410 12.52

Stock options outstanding end of year 2728139 $8.29 21 99611 9.51 2645869 9.78

Stock options exercisable end of year 1750189 $9.37 1602248 9.19 2046654 8.77

Stock options vested or expected to vest 2584682 $8.36

Data is adjusted for 5% stock dividend issued in May 2009

Includes vested shares and nonvested shares after forfeiture rate assumption which is based upon historical data is applied
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outstanding with the reload feature under the 2002 Plan and 14604

shares available for grant

In 2007 the 1997 Stock Option Plan the 1997 Plan expired As

such no additional options are permitted to be granted from this plan

Options granted under the 1997 Plan may be either qualified incentive

options or nonqualified options as determined by the Compensation

Committee of the Board of Directors or the Board of Directors Under

the 1997 Plan the nonqualified options expire 10 years and 10 days

after the date of grant unless terminated earlier under the option terms

The incentive options expire ten years after the date of grant unless

terminated earlier under the option terms The vesting provision of the

1997 Plan generally allows for 50% of options to vest one year after

the date of grant and 50% two years after the date of grant subject to

employment and other conditions At December 31 2010 there were

349985 options outstanding with the reload feature under the 1997

Plan All shares granted under the 1997 Plan were fully vested as of

December 31 2010

There are no equity compensation plans providing for the issuance of

shares of the Company which were not approved by the shareholders

Options outstanding under the 1997 2002 2004 Community Plans

and Advantage Plans are as follows



The weighted average grant date fair value per share of options

granted during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

were $2.75 $1 .56 and $3.41 respectively The aggregate intrinsic

value of options outstanding at December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

was $264000 25000 and $1 89000 respectively

No options were exercised during 2010 or 2009 The amount of

cash received from the exercise of stock options during the year ended

December 31 2008 was $716000 The total tax benefit from the

exercise of stock options for the year ended December 31 2008 was

SUMMARY OF NONVESTED STOCK OPTION ACTIVITY

Data is adjusted for 5% stock dividend issued in May 2009

During 2010 2009 and 2008 the Company issued 176250

116455 and 67863 shares of stock awards respectively that were

valued at $839000 $451000 and $817000 respectively at the

time these awards were granted The value of these shares is based

upon the closing price of the Companys common stock on the date of

grant During 2010 there were 116250 shares issued of which 25%

vested immediately and the remaining 75% will vest evenly over three

years 35000 shares issued that cliff vest after two years and 25000

approximately $90000 The total intrinsic value market value on date of

exercise less exercise price of options exercised during the year ended

December 31 2008 was $240000 The aggregate intrinsic value of

options exercisable at December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 was $0 $0

and $1 88000 respectively

summary of the Companys nonvested options at December 31

2010 2009 and 2008 respectively are presented in the following

table

shares issued that cliff vest after four years Compensation expense

will be recognized on straight-line basis over the service period for all

of the shares issued during 2010 At December 31 2010 there was

$1 .1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to these

stock awards that is expected to be recognized over weighted average

period of 2.1 years The total compensation expense recognized on

stock awards which vested during 2010 was $326000

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Nonvested stockoptions outstanding beginning of year 597363 $15.31 599215 $13.22 355518 $15.99

Granted 763994 4.77 146907 3.72 371595 11 .51

Vested 353886 17.82 027684 15.18 014526 15.97

Forfeited 29521 8.16 21075 15.31 03372 15.79

Nonvested stock options outstanding end of year 977950 6.38 597363 $10.39 599215 $13.22

Data is adiusted for 5% stock dividend issued in May 2009

At December 31 2010 there was $3.8 million of total unrecognized summary of the Companys nonvested stock awards at

compensation cost related to options granted under the stock option December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively are presented

plans That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted average in the following table

period of 2.5 years

SUMMARY OF NONVESTED STOCK AWARD ACTIVITY111

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Nonvested stock awards outstanding beginning of year 182297 $7.67 105976 $13.43 53257 $15.69

Issued 176250 4.76 116455 3.87 67863 12.05

Vested 48066 6.79 24520 14.44 05144 15.15

Forfeited 1000 3.54 05614 7.88

Nonvested stock awards outstanding end of year 309481 $6.16 182297 7.67 105976 $13.43
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16 EMPLOYEE AND DIRECTOR STOCK PURCHASE

PLANS

In 1997 the Company adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan

ESPP and Directors Stock Purchase Plan DSPP collectively

the Purchase Plans Under the ESPP and the DSPP as amended and

restated in 2009 323254 shares and 119216 shares respectively

were reserved for issuance Under the terms of the Purchase Plans the

Company grants participants an option to purchase shares of Company

common stock with an exercise price equal to 95% of market prices

Under the ESPP employees are permitted through payroll deduction to

purchase up to $25000 of fair market value of the Companys common

stock per year Under the DSPP directors are permitted to remit funds

on regular basis to purchase up to $25000 of fair market value of

the Companys common stock per year Participants incur no brokerage

commissions or service charges for purchases made under the Purchase

Plans For the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 there were

25321 shares and 22903 shares respectively purchased through the

ESPP For the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 there were

11497 shares and 7527 shares respectively purchased through the

DSPP At December 31 2010 there were 178022 and 33615 shares

remaining in the ESPP and DSPP respectively

17 BENEFITS

The Company has established 401k Retirement Plan the 401k

Plan for all qualified employees Employees are eligible to participate in

the 401k Plan following completion of 90 days of service and attaining

age 21 The Companys match begins after one year of service Vesting

in the Companys match contribution accrues evenly over four years

Pursuant to the 401k Plan employees can contribute up to 75% of

their compensation to the maximum allowed by law The Company will

match 50% of the first 6% of the base contribution that an employee

contributes The Company match consists of contribution of the

Companys common stock at market value The Companys contribution

to the 401k Plan was $641000 $682000 and $627000 for the

years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively The

Company expensed $33000 $56000 and $38000 during the years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively to administer

the 401k Plan These expenses were recorded in other expense in the

Companys consolidated statements of operations

In April 2009 the Company established the Directors Deferred Fee

Plan deferred stock compensation plan for members of its Board of

Directors the Directors Plan The Directors Plan provides Directors

with the opportunity to defer for tax planning purposes receipt of all

or portion of any Sun Bancorp Inc stock earned as compensation

The Directors Plan balance as of December 31 2010 and 2009 was

$234000 and $1 24000 respectively

In September 2010 in an effort to facilitate the succession plan

of the Companys Chairmanship the Company established Salary

Continuation Plan the Salary Plan to compensate the Chairman of the

Company for advising the incoming Chairman and the Board of Directors

as well as reward him for his many years of service to the Company

Under the Salary Plan for period of three years the Chairman will

receive monthly payment equal to his base salary in effect and due

to him at retirement The Company recorded $1.1 million in expense

during the year ended December 31 2010 related to the Salary Plan

18 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company from time to time may be defendant in
legal

proceedings related to the conduct of its business Management after

consultation with
legal counsel believes that the liabilities if

any arising

from such
litigation

and claims will not be material to the consolidated

financial statements

Letters of Credit In the normal course of business the Company

has various commitments and contingent liabilities such as customers

letters of credit including standby letters of credit of $57.5 million and

$67.9 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively which are

not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the

Company to guarantee the performance of customer to third party

The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same

as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers In the judgment

of management the financial condition of the Company will not be

affected materially by the final outcome of any letters of credit

Reserve for Unfunded Commitments The Company maintains

reserve for unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit which

is reported in other liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial

condition consistent with FASB ASC 825 As of December 31 2010

the Company records estimated losses inherent with unfunded loan

commitments in accordance with FASB ASC 450 Contingencies and

estimated future obligations under letters of credit in accordance with

FASB ASC 460 Guarantees The methodology used to determine the

adequacy of this reserve is integrated in the Companys process for

establishing the allowance for loan losses and considers the probability

of future losses and obligations that may be incurred under these off-

balance sheet agreements The reserve for unfunded loan commitments

and letters of credit as of December31 2010 and 2009 was $1.5 million

and $965000 respectively Management believes this reserve level

is sufficient to absorb estimated probable losses related to these

commitments

Leases The following is schedule of the Companys future minimum

lease payments under capital leases as of December 31 2010

FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER OBLIGATIONS

UNDER CAPITAL LEASES

Years Ended December 31 Amount

2011 776

2012 776

2013 776

2014 776

2015 776

Thereafter 9518

Total minimum lease payments 13397

Less Amount representing interest 5286

Present value of minimum lease payment net 8111
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The following table shows future minimum payments under

noncancelable operating leases with initial terms of one year or more

at December 31 201 Future minimum receipts under sub-lease

agreements are deemed not material

FUTURE MINIMUM PAYMENTS UNDER

NONCANCELABLE OPERATING LEASES

Years Ended December 31 Amount

2011 3924

2012 3548

2013 3101

2014 2492

2015 2321

Thereafter 10485

Total minimum lease payments $25871

Rental expense which is included in occupancy expense on the

Companys cOnsolidated statements of operations for all leases

was $4.5 million $4.4 million and $4.3 million for the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

19 DERIVATIVE INTRLJMENTS AND HEDGING

ACTIVITIES

Derivative financial instruments involve to varying degrees interest

rate market and credit risk The Company manages these risks as part

of its asset and liability management process and through credit policies

and procedures The Company seeks to minimize counterparty credit risk

by establishing credit limits and collateral agreements The Company

utilizes certain derivative financial instruments to enhance its ability to

manage interest rate risk that exists as part of its ongoing business

operations In general the derivative transactions entered into by the

Company fall into one of two types fair value hedge of specific fixed-

rate loan agreement and an economic hedge of derivative offering

to Bank customer The Company does not use derivative financial

instruments for trading purposes

Fair Value Hedges Interest RaW Swaps The Company has

entered into interest rate swap arrangements to exchane the periodic

payments on fixed-rate commercial loan agreement for variable-rate

payments based oh the one-month London Interbank Offered Rate

LIBOR without the exchange of the underlying principal The interest

rate swaps are designated as fair value hedges under FASB ASC 815

Derivatives and i-/edging FASB AC 815 and are executed for periods

and terms that match the rOlated underlying fixed-rate loan agreements

The Company applies the shortcut method of accounting under FASB

ASC 815 which assumes there is no ineffectiveness as changes in the

interest rate component of the swaps fair value are expected to exactly

offset the corresponding changes in the fair value of the underlying

commercial loan agreements Because the hedging arrangement is

considered highly effective changes to the underlying benchmark

interest rates considered in the valuation of these instruments do

not result in an impact to earnings however there may be fair value

adjustments related to credit quality variations between counterparties

which may impact earnings as required by FASB ASC 820 The fair

value adjustments related to credit quality were not material as of

December 31 2010 and 2009

The following tables provide information pertaining to interest

rate swaps designated as fair value hedges under FASB ASC 815 at

December 31 2010 and 2009

SUMMARY OF INTEREST RATE SWAPS DESIGNATED AS FAIR

VALUE HEDGES

December 31 2010 2009

Ba lance Sheet Location Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value

Other liabilities $39663 4721 $44440 3977

SUMMARY OF INTEREST RATE SWAPS COMPONENTS

December31 2010 2009

Weighted average pay rate 6.83% 6.81%

Weighted average receive rate 2.27% 2.22%

Weighted average maturity in years 4.2 4.6

Customer Derivatives Interest Rate Swaps/Caps The

Company enters into interest rate swaps that allow our commercial

loan customers to effectively convert variable-rate commercial loan

agreement to fixed-rate commercial loan agreement Under these

agreements the Company enters into variable-rate loan agreement

with customer in addition to an interest rate swap agreement which

serves to effectively swap the customers variable-rate loan into

fixed-rate loan The Company then enters into corresponding swap

agreement with third party in order to economically hedge its exposure

on the variable and fixed components of the customer agreement The

interest rate swaps with both the customers and third parties are not

designated as hedges under FASB ASC 815 and are marked to market

through earnings As the interest rate swaps are structured to offset each

other changes to the underlying benchmark interest rates considered in

the valuation of these instruments do not result in an impact to earnings

however there may be fair value adjustments related to credit quality

variations between counterparties which may impact earnings as

required by FASB ASC 820 The Company recognized $12.2 million

$53000 and $152000 respectively of fair value credit adjustment

charges during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively which are included in the derivative credit valuation

adjustment in the consolidated statements of operations as reduction

in other income

SUMMARY OF INTEREST RATE SWAPS NOT DESIGNATED AS

HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

December 31 20 10 2009

Balance Sheet Location Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value

Other assets $520921 56637 $60e169 52934

Other liabilities 520921 58779 608169 53137
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In addition the Company has entered into an interest rate floor sale

transaction with one commercial customer The Company entered into

corresponding interest rate floor purchase transaction with third party

in order to offset its exposure on the variable and fixed components

of the customer agreement As the interest rate floors with both the

customer and the third party are not designated as hedges under FASB

ASO 815 the instruments are marked to market through earnings As

the interest rate floors are structured to offset each other changes to

the underlying benchmark interest rates considered in the valuation

of these instruments do not result in an impact to earnings however

there may be fair value adjustments related to credit quality variations

between counterparties which may impact earnings as required by

FASB ASC 820 The combined notional amount of the two interest rate

caps was $1 7.2 million and $1 7.8 million at December 31 201 and

December 31 2009 respectively

The Company has an International Swaps and Derivatives Association

agreement with third party that requires minimum dollar transfer

amount upon margin call This requirement is dependent on certain

specified credit measures The amount of collateral posted with the

third party at December 31 2010 and 2009 was $78.0 million and

$74.9 million respectively The amount of collateral posted with the third

party is deemed to be sufficient to collateralize both the fair market value

change as well as any additional amounts that may be required as result

of change in the specified credit measures The aggregate fair value of

all derivative financial instruments in liability position with credit measure

contingencies and entered into with the third party was $63.5 million and

$57.1 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Items that gave rise to significant portions of the deferred tax accounts

are as follows

DETAILS OF DEFERRED TAX ASSET NET

December 31 2010 2009

Deferred tax asset

Allowance for loan losses 33988 $25028

Goodwill amortization 5437

Unrealized loss on

investment securities 4245 380

Impairments realized on

investment securities 687 3820

Fixed assets 169

Net operating loss carry forwards 20322 2588

Alternative minimum tax credits 1975

Other 3736 1723

Total deferred tax asset before

valuation allowance 70559 33539

Less valuation allowance 61892
Deferred tax liability

Core deposit intangible amortization 1987 2771

Goodwill amortization 6799

Fixed assets 701

Deferred loan costs 2075 2148

Other 360 399

Total deferred tax liability 4422 12818

Net deferred tax asset 4245 $20721

The Company has $38.8 million of federal net operating loss

carrytorwards at December 31 2010 all of which will expire in 2030

The Company also has $115.4 million of state net operating loss

carryforwards at December 31 2010 of which $3.0 million expire in

2015 $37.1 million expire in 2029 and $75.3 million expire in 2030

During the year ended December31 2010 the Company established

valuation allowance of $61 .9 million against the net deferred tax asset

after concluding that it was more likely than not that the full deferred

tax asset would not be realized Management considered all positive

and negative evidence regarding the ultimate ability to fully realize the

deferred tax assets including past operating results and the forecast of

future taxable income The valuation allowance was primarily recorded

because the Company is three-year cumulative loss company The

remaining $4.2 million deferred tax asset relates to the unrealized loss

on investment securities The intent of management is to hold these

securities until their recovery which may be maturity and ultimately not

realize the loss

20 INCOME TAXES

The income tax expense benefit consists of the following

SUMMARY INCOME TAX EXPENSE BENEFIT

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Current $11O2O 2855 $10772

Deferred 20342 13520 6346

Income tax provision benefit 9322 $16375 4426
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The provision for income taxes differs from that computed at the statutory rate as follows

Income loss before income taxes

Tax computed at statutory rate

Decrease increase in charge resulting from

State taxes net of federal benefit

Tax exempt interest net

BOLl

Nondeductible goodwill

Valuation allowance

Other net

Total income tax expense benefit

FASBASC 740 clarifies the accounting for income taxes by prescribing

minimum probability threshold that tax position must meet before

financial statement benefit is recognized The minimum threshold

is defined in ASC 740 as tax position that is more likely than not

to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority

including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes based

on the technical merits of the position The tax benefit to be recognized

is measured as the largest amount of benefit that has greater than

50% likelihood of beinq realized upon ultimate settlement ASC 740

was applied to all existing tax positions upon initial adoption There was

no liability for uncertain tax positions and no known unrecognized tax

benefits at December 31 2010 or 2009

The Company recognizes when applicable interest and penalties

related to unrecognized tax benefits in the provision for income taxes

in the results of operations As of December 31 2010 the tax years

ended December 31 2007 through 2010 were subject to examination

by the Internal Revenue Service the IRS while the tax years ended

December 31 2007 through 2010 were subject to state examination

The IRS completed its examination of the Companys 2005 and 2006

tax returns during 2008 which did not result in any material change to

the Companys tax position As of December 31 2010 there were no

audits in process by any tax jurisdiction

21 TROUBLED ASSET RELIEF PROGRAM

In October 2008 the U.S government began to take actions to

intervene in support of the credit markets which included the Troubled

Asset Relief Program TARP with an initiative to strengthen market

stability improve the strength of financial institutions and enhance

market liquidity In addition TARP includes the Capital Purchase Program

TARP CPP which provides direct equity investment of preferred stock

by the U.S Treasury in qualified financial institutions The TARP CPP

is voluntary and requires an institution to comply with number of

restrictions and provisions including limits on executive compensation

stock redemptions and declaration of dividends On January 2009

the Company entered into Letter Agreement with the U.S Treasury

under the TARP CPP pursuant to which the Company issued and sold

89 shares of Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock

Series and warrant to prchase 1620545 shares adjusted for

5% stock dividend declared in April 2009 of the Corflanys common

stock for an aggregate purchase price of $89.3 million in cash

In March 2Q09 the Board of Directors of the Company determined

that continuing to participate in the TARP CPP was contrary to the best

interests of the Company its shareholders and its employees Accordingly

the Board of Directors approved the repurchase of the preferred stock as

authorized under established amendments to the TARP CPP that were

part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 On

April 2009 the Company returned to the U.S Treasury approximately

$90.0 million which included the
original

investment amount of

$89.3 million plus accrued but unpaid dividends of $657000 and

received in return and cancelled the share certificate for the preferred

stock In connection with this transaction the Company and the U.S

Treasury entered into Redemption Letter Agreement dated
April

2009 Pursuant to the terms of the Redemption Letter Agreement the

Company notified the U.S Treasury on April 21 2009 of its intention

to repurchase the warrant from the U.S Treasury On May 27 2009

the Company completed the repurchase of the warrant from the U.S

Treasury for $2.1 million ending the Companys participation in the

TARP CPP

22 SEcURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENTS

On July 2010 the Company entered into Securities Purchase

Agreements with WLR SBI Acquisition Co LLC an affiliate of WL Ross

Co LLC WL Ross members and affiliates of the Banks founding

Brown Family the Brown Family certain affiliates of Siguler Guff

Company LP the Siguler Guff Shareholders and certain other

institutional and accredited investors the Other Investors collectively

the Investors On September 22 2010 the Company completed

the sale of 4672750 shares of the Companys common stock $1 .00

par value per share the Common Stock and 88009 shares of its

Mandatorily Convertible Cumulative Non-Voting Perpetual Stock Series

the Series Preferred Stock for aggregate consideration of

$106.7 million in cash and resulted in approximately $98.5 million in

SUN eANcoUp INC

RECONCILIATION OF FEDERAL STATUTORY INCOME TAX

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Amount

$19319

6762

Amount Amount

$176096 $335O6

61634 35.0% 11727 35.0% 35.0%

8514 4.8 2671 8.0 87 0.5

1233 0.7 1371 4.1 1149 5.9

726 0.4 787 2.4 1056 5.5

18980 10.8

61892 35.1

557 0.3 181 0.6 44 0.2

9322 5.3% $16375 48.9% 4426 22.9%



Shareholders held on November 2010 the Companys shareholders

approved the amendment to the Companys Amended and Restated

Certificate of Incorporation allowing for the conversion of 88009 shares

of Series Preferred Stock to 22002250 shares of the Companys

common stock at conversion price of $4.00 Upon conversion WL Ross

beneficially owned approximately 24.8% of the Companys outstanding

common stock the Brown Family beneficially owned approximately

29.0% of the Companys outstanding common stock and Siguler Guff

beneficially owned 9.9% of the Companys outstanding common stock

None of the Other Investors beneficially own more than 2% of the

Companys common stock

23 Loss EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Loss earnings per share were calculated as follows

LOSS EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE COMPUTATION

YearsEndedDecember3l 2010 2009

Netfoss income 185418 17131

2008

14894

Preferred stock dividend

and discount accretion 5351

Net foss income available to

common shareholders 185418 22482 14894

Average common

shares outstanding

Net effect of dilutive stock options

28258953 23134424 23647009

311215

Dilutive common

shares outstanding 28258953 23134424 23958224

Loss eamings per share basic

Loss eamings per
share diluted

6.56 0.97 0.63

6.56 0.97 0.62

Dilutive common stock equivalents

Average exercise pdce

Averagemarketpdcediluted

1976875

8.08

10.46

Weighted average common stock equivalents outstanding totaled

2.6 million 3.2 million and 859736 at December 31 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively which were not included in the computation of diluted

earnings per share as result of the stock options exercise prices or

stock awards value at issuance being greater than the average market

price of the Companys common shares for the respective periods Of the

3.2 million weighted average common stock equivalents not included in

the computation of diluted earnings per share during 2009 617138

common stock equivalents related to the issuance of the warrant under

the TARP CPP

24 REGULATORY MAilERS

The Company is subject to risk-based capital guidelines adopted by

the Federal Reserve Board for bank holding companies The Bank is

also subject to similar capital requirements adopted by the 0CC Under

the requirements the federal bank regulatory agencies have established

quantitative measures to ensure that minimum thresholds for Total

assets ratios set forth in the table below are maintained Failure to

meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory

and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that if

undertaken could have direct material effect on the Companys and

the Banks consolidated financial statements Under capital adequacy

guidelines and the regulatory framework for prnmpt corrective action

the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that

involve quantitative measures of their assets and certain off-balance

sheet items as calculated under regulatory practices

The Companys and Banks capital amounts and classifications are

also subject to qualitative judgments by the federal bank regulators about

components risk weightings and other factors The Companys and the

Banks risk-based capital ratios have been computed in accordance with

regulatory practices The Company and the Bank were in compliance

with these regulatory capital requirements of the Federal Reserve

Board and the 0CC as of December 31 2010 As discussed below and

elsewhere herein additional capital requirements have been imposed on

the Bank by the 0CC which the Bank was also in full compliance with

as of December31 2010

On April 15 2010 the Bank entered info the 0CC Agreement which

contained requirements to develop and implement profitability and

capital plan which will provide for the maintenance of adequate capital

to support the Banks risk profile
in the current economic envirdnment

The capital plan was also required to contain dividend polidy allowing

dividends only if the Bank is in compliance with the capital plan and

obtains prior approval from the 0CC During the second quarter of 2010

the Company delivered its
profit

and capital plans to the 0CC

The Bank also agreed to implement program to protect the

Banks interest in criticized or classified assets review and revise

the Banks loan review program implement program for the

maintenance of an adequate allowance for loan losses and revise

the Banks credit administration policies During the second quarter of

2010 the Company revised and implemented changes to policies and

procedures pursuant to the Agreement As noted earlier in this section

the Bank also agreed that its brokered deposits will not exceed 3.5%

of its total liabilities unless approved by the 0CC Management does

not expect this restriction will limit its access to liquidity as the Bank

does not rely on brokered deposits as major source of funding As of

December 31 2010 the Banks brokered deposits represented 2.8% of

its total liabilities

The Bank is also subject to individual minimum capital ratios

established by the 0CC for the Bank requiring to continue to maintain

Leverage ratio at least equal to 8.50% of adjusted total assets to

continue to maintain Tier Capital ratio at least equal to 9.50% of risk-

weighted assets and to maintain Total Capital ratio at least equal to

11 .50% of risk-weighted assets At December 31 2010 the Bank met

all of the three capital ratios established by the 0CC as our Leverage

ratio was 8.57% our Tier Capital ratio was 10.98% and our Total

Capital ratio was 12.25%

net proceeds to the Company after expenses At the Annual Meeting of Capital Tier Capital and Leverage Tier Capital divided by average

.1
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The following table provides both the Companys and the Banks risk-based capital ratios as of December 31 2W and 2DD9

REGULATORY CAPITAL LEVELS

December 31 2010

Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets

Sun Bancorp Inc

Sun National Bank

Tier Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets

Sun Bancorp Inc

Sun National Bank

Leverage Ratio

Sun Bancorp Inc

Sun National Bank

December 31 2009

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Sun Bancorp Inc

Sun National Bank

Tier Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets

Sun Bancorp Inc

Sun National Bank

Leverage Ratio

Sun Bancorp Inc

Sun National Bank

For Capital

Adeouacv Purooses

$350697 12.68% $221242

338196 12.25 220904

$353116 11.38% $248299

336831 1D.87 247986

To Be

Well Capitalized

Under Prompt

Corrective

Action Provisionst1t

Amount Ratio

Not applicable tor bank holding companies

The Banks deposits are insured to applicable limits by the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC As part of the Dodd-Frank

Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2W the Dodd-

Frank Act which was signed into law on July 21 2W the maximum

deposit insurance limit is $25DDDD In April 2W0 the FDIC adopted

an interim rule providing six-month extension of the Transaction

Account Guarantee TAG program for insured depository institutions

until December 31 2W Insured institutions that were participating

in the TAG program that wanted to opt out of the extension had until

April 3D 2W to submit their request For institutions that chose to

remain in the TAG program after July 2010 the basis for calculating

the current assessments as well as the interest rates on negotiable

order of withdrawal NOW accounts guaranteed under the program

were modified The Bank opted to participate in the extension which

expired on December 31 2010

In addition the Dodd-Frank Act amended the Federal Deposit

Insurance Act to provide for full deposit insurance coverage for non-

interest-bearing transaction accounts for two year period beginning

December 31 2010 This will apply to insured depository institutions

with no opt in or opt out requirements

In November 2009 instead of imposing additional special

assessments the FDIC amended the assessment regulations to require

all insured depository institutions to prepay their estimated risk-based

assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2W 2011

and 2W2 on December 3D 2009 For purposes of estimating the

future assessments each institutions base assessment rate in effect on

September 3D 2009 was used assuming aS percent annual growth rate

in the assessment base and basis point increase in the assessment

rate in 2011 and 2010 The prepaid assessment will be applied against

actual quarterly assessments until exhausted Any funds remaining after

June 3D 2013 will be returned to the institution If the prepayment would

impair an institutions liquidity or otherwise create significant hardship it

was able to apply for an exemption Requiring this prepaid assessment

did not preclude the FDIC from changing assessment rates or from

further revising the risk based assessment system On December 31

2009 the Company paid the FDIC prepaid assessment of $18.3 million

of which approximately $6.1 million applied to 2WD The remaining

prepaid assessment of approximately $11 .1 million at December 31

2010 will be recognized as expense over the course of the respective

periods covered
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Actual

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

8.00%

8.00

N/A

$276131 10.00%

315523

303074

11.41

10.98

110621

110452

4.00

4.00

N/A

165678 6.00

315523

303074

8.93

8.57

141351

141407

4.00

4.00

N/A

176759 5.00

8.00%

8.00

N/A

$309982 10.00%

314046

297810

10.12

9.61

124149

123993

4.00

4.00

N/A

185989 6.00

314D46

297810

9.08

8.58

138306

138809

4.00

4.00

N/A

173511 5.00



The Companys capital securities are deconsolidated in accordance

with GAAP and qualify as Tier capital under federal regulatory

guidelines These instruments are subject to 25% capital limitation

under risk-based capital guidelines developed by the Federal Reserve

Board In March 2005 the Federal Reserve Board amended its risk-

based capital standards to expressly allow the continued limited inclusion

of outstanding and prospective issuances nf capital securities in bank

holding companys Tier capital subject to tightened quantitative

limits The Federal Reserves amended rule was to become effective

March 31 2009 and would have limited capital securities and other

restricted core capital elements to 25% of all core capital elements

net of goodwill less any associated deferred tax liability On March 16

2009 the Federal Reserve Board extended for two years the ability for

bank holding companies to include restricted core capital elements as

Tier capital up to 25% of all core capital elements including goodwill

The portion that exceeds the 25% capital limitation qualifies as Tier

or supplementary capital of the Company At December 31 2010 the

entire $90.0 million in capital securities qualified as Tier capital

The
ability

of the Bank to pay dividends to the Company is controlled

by certain regulatory restrictions Generally dividends declared in

given year by national bank are limited to its net profit as defined by

regulatory agencies for that year combined with its retained net income

for the preceding two years less any required transfer to surplus or to

fund for the retirement of any preferred stock In addition national

bank may not pay any dividends in an amount greater than its undivided

profits
and national bank may not declare any dividends if such

declaration would leave the bank inadequately capitalized Therefore

the
ability

of the Bank to declare dividends will depend on its future

net income and capital requirements Also banking regulators have

indicated that national banks should generally pay dividends only out

of current operating earnings Following this guidance the amount

available for payment of dividends to the Company by the Bank totaled

$0 at December 31 2010 Per the 0CC Agreement dividend may

only be declared if it is in accordance with the approved capital plan the

Bank remains in compliance with the capital plan following the payment

of the dividend and the dividend is approved by the 0CC

25 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company accounts for fair value measurements in accordance

with FASB ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures FASB
ASC 820 FASB ASC 820 defines fair value establishes framework

for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value

measurements FASB ASC 820 does not require any new fair value

measurements The definition of fair value retains the exchange price

notion in earlier definitions of fair value FASB ASC 820 clarifies that the

exchange price is the price in an orderly transaction between market

participants to sell the asset or transfer the
liability

in the market in

which the reporting entity would transact for the asset or liability
The

definition focuses on the price that would be received to sell the asset

or paid to transfer the liability an exit price not the price that would be

paid to acquire the asset or received to assume the
liability an entry

price FASB ASC 820 emphasizes that fair value is market-based

measurement not an entity specific measurement and also clarifies the

application of fair value measurement in market that is not active

FASB ASC 820 describes three levels of inputs that may be used to

measure fair value

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

Level Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level that are

observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly

Level inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities in active markets quoted prices for identical or similar

assets or liabilities in markets that are not active inputs other

than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability

and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by

observable market data by correlation or other means

Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market

activity
and that are significant to the fair value of the assets

or liabilities Level assets and liabilities include financial

instruments whose value is determined using pricing models

discounted cash flow methodologies or similar techniques as

well as instruments for which the determination of fair value

requires significant management judgment or estimation

In accordance with FASB ASU 201 0-06 the Company is required

to disclose the significant amount of transfers in and out of Level

Level and Level fair value measurements and the reasons for such

transfers For the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 there

were no transfers between levels of fair value measurements FASB ASU

2W 0-06 also requires the Company to disclose its policy for recognizing

the transfers between levels which is to assume the transfer occurs at

the beginning of the quarter in which the transfer is reported

5uN BANCOAP INC



SUMMARY OF RECURRING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

December 31 2010

Assets

Investment securities available for sale

U.S Treasury obligations

U.S Government agency mortgage-backed securities

Other mortgage-backed securities

State and municipal obligations

Trust preferred securities

Other

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate floor

Liabilities

Fair value interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate floor

December 31 2009

Assets

Investment securities available for sale

U.S Treasury obligations

U.S Government agencies

U.S Government agency mortgage-backed securities

Other mortgage-backed securities

State and municipal obligations

Trust preferred securities

Other

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate floor

Liabilities

Fair value interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate floor

Level Valuation Techniques and Inputs

U.S Treasunj securities The Company reports U.S Treasury securities

at fair value utilizing Level inputs These securities are priced using

observable quotations for the indicated security

Level Valuation Techniques and Inputs

The majority of the Companys investment securities are reported at

fair value utilizing Level inputs Prices of these securities are obtained

through independent third-party pricing services Prices obtained

through these sources include market derived quotations and matrix

pricing and may include both observable and unobservable inputs Fair

market values take into consideration data such as dealer quotes new

issue pricing trade prices for similar issues prepayment estimates cash

flows market credit spreads and other factors The Company reviews

Category Used for

Fair Value Measurement

Total Level Level Level

47019 $47019

328487 328487

6137 6137

82397 82397

5642 5642

3182 3182

56637 56637

344 344

4721 4721

58779 58779

344 344

2007 2007

48274 48274

248594 248594

6880 6880

105689 105689

20874 20874

2420 2420

52934 52934

269 269

3977 3977

53137 53137

269 269

the output from the third-party providers for reasonableness by the

pricing consistency among securities with similar characteristics where

available and comparing values with other pricing sources available to

the Company

In general the Level valuation process uses the following significant

inputs in determining the fair value of the Companys different classes

of investments

U.S Government agency securities These securities are evaluated

based on either nominal spread basis for non-callable securities or

on an option adjusted spread OAS basis for callable securities The

nominal spread and OAS levels are derived from observations of identical

or comparable securities actively trading in the markets

FASB ASC 820 requires the Company to disclose the fair value of financial assets on both recurring and non-recurring basis Those assets and

liabilities which will continue to be measured at fair value on recurring basis are as follows
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U.S Government agencymortgage-backed securities The Companys

agency mortgage-backed securities generally include fixed-rate agency

mortgage-backed pools and adjustable-rate agency mortgage-backed

pools

Fixed-rate agency mortgage-backed pools are evaluated based on

spreads to actively traded To-Be Announced TBA and seasoned

securities the pricing of which is provided by inter-dealer brokers

broker dealers and other contributing firms active in trading the security

class Further delineation is made by weighted average coupon WAG
and weighted average maturity WAM with spreads on individual

securities relative to actively traded securities as determined and quality

controlled using 0AS valuations

Adjustable-rate agency mortgage-backed pools are evaluated on

bond equivalent effective margin BEEM basis obtained from broker

dealers and other contributing firms active in the market BEEM levels

are established for key sectors using characteristics such as month-to-

roll index periudic and life caps and index margins and convertibility

Individual securities are then evaluated based on how their characteristics

map to the sectors established

Agency collateralized mortgage obligations CMOs are evaluated

based on nominal spread and OAS values of securities with comparable

tranche type average life average life variance and prepayment

characteristics of the underlying collateral

Other mortgage-backed securities The Companys other mortgage-

backed securities consist of whole loan non-agency CMOs These

securities are evaluated based on generic tranche and generic

prepayment speed estimates of various types of collateral from

contributing firms and broker/dealers in the whole loan CMO market

State and municipal obligations These securities are evaluated using

information on identical or similar securities provided by market makers

broker/dealers and buy-side firms new issue sales and bid-wanted

lists The indiyidual securities are then priced based on mapping the

characteristics of the security such as obligation type general obligation

revenue etc maturity state discount and premiums call features

taxability
and other considerations

Other securities The other securities category is comprised primarily

of money market mutual funds Given the short maturity structure and

the expectation that the investment can be redeemed at par value the

fair value of these investments is assumed to be the book value

Interest rate swaps The Companys interest rate swaps including

fair value interest rate swaps and small exposures in interest rate caps

and floors are reported at fair value utilizing models provided by an

independent third-party and observable market data When entering

into an interest rate swap agreement the Company is exposed to fair

value changes due to interest rate movements and also the potential

nnnpertormance of its contract r.nunterparly Interest rate swaps are

evaluated based on zero coupon LIBOR curve created from readily

observable data on LIBOR interest rate futures and the interest rate swap

markets The zero coupon curve is used to discount the projected cash

flows on each individual interest rate swap In addition the Company

has developed methodology to value the nonpertormance risk based

on internal credit risk metrics and the unique characteristics of derivative

instruments which include notional exposure rather than principal at

risk and interest payment netting The results of this methodology are

used to adjust the base fair value of the instrument for the potential

counterparty credit risk Interest rate caps and floors are evaluated using

industry standard options pricing models and observed market data on

LIBOR and Eurodollar option and cap/floor volatilities

LevelS Valuation Techniques and Inputs

Trust preferred securities The trust preferred securities are evaluated

based on whether the security is an obligation of single issuer or part

of securitization pool For single issuer obligations the Company uses

present value cash flow models which incorporate the contractual cash

flow for each issue adjusted as necessary for any potential changes

in amount or timing of cash flows The cash flow model of pooled

issue incorporates anticipated loss rates and seventies of the underlying

collateral as well as credit support provided within the securitization

The cash flow model for the pooled issue owned by the Company at

December 31 2010 assumes no recovery on defaulted collateral no

recovery on securities in deferral and an additional 3.6% future default

rate assumption on the remaining performing collateral every three

years with no recovery rate

For trust preferred securities projected cash flows are discounted at

rate based on trading group of similar securities quoted on the New

York Stock Exchange NYSE or over the-counter markets which is

reviewed for market data points such as credit rating maturity price and

liquidity The Company indexes the market securities to comparable

maturity interest rate swap to determine the market spread which is then

used as the discount rate in the cash flow models As of the reporting

date that market spreads were 6.0% and 17.5% respectively for the

two trust preferred securities The 17.5% discount rate is reflective of

the single issuer that is currently deferring interest rate payments
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Under FASB ASC 31 collateral dependent impaired loans are

based on the fair value of the underlying collateral which is based on

appraisals It is the policy of the Company to obtain current appraisal or

evaluation when loan has been identified as non performing The type

of appraisal obtained will be commensurate with the size and complexity

of the loan The resulting value will be adjusted for the potential cost of

liquidation New appraisals are obtained on an annual basis until the

loan is repaid in full liquidated or returns to performing status

While the loan policy dictates that loan be assigned to the special

assets department when it is placed on non accrual status there is

need for loan officers to consistently and accurately determine collateral

values when loan is
initially designated as criticized or classified The

most effective means of determining the fair value of real estate collateral

at point in time is by obtaining current appraisal or evaluation of

the property In anticipation of the receipt of current appraisal or

evaluation the Company has provided for an alternative and interim

means of determining the fair value of the real estate collateral

The most recent appraised or reported value of the collateral securing

loan net of discount is the Companys basis for determining fair

value The discount is based on the age of the existing appraisal or

evaluation and on the nature of the property Values developed from the

discounting of real estate and equipment collateral will be subject to

further 10% discount for the cost of liquidation based on the net value

of the collateral

The following provides details of the Level fair value measurement activity for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS USING SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS LEVEL TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES

For the Years Ended December 31 2010 2009

Balance beginning of year 20874 $14482

Total gains losses realized/unrealized

Included in earnings 950 6764
Included in accumulated other comprehensive income loss 718 13156

Purchases

Maturities

Prepayments

Calls 15000
Transfers into Level

Balance end of year 5642 $20874

Amount included in net impairment losses on available for sale securities of the consolidated statements of operations

Certain assets are measured at fair value on non-recurring basis that is the instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but

are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances for example when there is evidence of impairment The Company measures loans

held for sale impaired loans SBA servicing assets restricted equity investments and loans or bank properties transferred into other real estate owned

at fair value on non-recurring basis At December 31 2010 and 2009 these assets were valued in accordance with GMP and the following table

summarizes these assets requiring fair value disclosure under the provisions of FASB ABC 820

SUMMARY OF NON-RECURRING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Total Losses
Category Used for Fair Value Measurement Gains Or Changes

Total Level Level Level in Net Assets

December 312010

Assets

Impaired loans $152263 $152263 $75903
Real estate owned 860 860 130

December 31 2009

Assets

Impaired loans 40017 40017 8854
SBA servicing assets 559 559 105

Real estate owned 8424 450 7974 950
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An evaluation report as defined by the 0CC is written report

prepared by an appraiser that describes the real estate collateral its

condition current and projected uses and sources of information used

in the analysis and provides an estimate of value in situations when an

appraisal is not required

restricted use appraisal report is defined as written report

prepared under the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice

USPAP restricted use appraisal is for the Companys use only and

contains brief statement of information significant to the solution of

the appraisal problem This report can be used for ongoing collateral

monitoring

summary appraisal report is defined as written report prepared

under the USPAP which contains detailed summary of all information

significant to the solution of the appraisal problem This report is more

detailed than restricted use report and provides sufficient information

to enable the user to understand the rationale for the opinions and

conclusions in the report

On quarterly basis or more frequently as necessary the Company

will review the circumstances of each collateral dependent loan and real

estate owned property collateral dependent loan is defined as one that

relies solely on the operation or the sale of the collateral for repayment

Adjustments to any specific reserve relating to collateral shortfall as

compared to the outstanding loan balance will be made if justified by

appraisals market conditions or current events concerning the credit

All appraisals received which are utilized to determine valuations for

criticized and classified loans or properties placed in real estate owned

are provided under an as is value Partially charged off loans are

measured for impairment upon receipt of an updated appraisal based

on the relationship between the remaining balance of the charged down

loan and the discounted appraised value Such loans will remain on non

accrual status unless performance by the borrower warrants return to

accrual status Recognition of non accrual status occurs at the time

loan can no longer support principal and interest payments in accordance

with the original terms and conditions of the loan documents When

impairment is determined specific reserve reflecting any calculated

shortfall between the value of the collateral and the outstanding balance

of the loan is recorded Subsequent adjustments prior to receipt of

new appraisal to any specific reserve relating will be made if justified by

market conditions or current events concerning the credit If an internal

discount-based evaluation is being used the discount percentage

may be adjusted to reflect market changes changes to the collateral

value of similar credits or circumstances of the individual credit itself

The amount of charge off is determined by calculating the difference

between the current loan balance and the current collateral valuation

plus estimated cost to liquidate

Impaired loan fair value measurements are based upnn unobservable

inputs and therefore are categorized as Level measurement

Specific reserves were calculated for impaired loans with an aggregate

carrying amount of $94.7 million and $23.0 million at December 31

2010 and 2009 respectively The collateral underlying these loans had

fair value of $73.6 million and $1 5.6 million including specific reserve

in the allowance for loan losses of $21 .1 million and $5.6 million at

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively There were charge-offs

of $16.8 million and $1 .2 million during the year ended December 31

2010 and 2009 respectively No specific reserve was calculated for

impaired loans with an aggregate carrying amount of $78.7 million and

$52.3 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively as the

underlying collateral was not below the carrying amount however these

loans did include charge offs of $38.0 million and $7.7 million during

the year ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Once loan is determined to be uncollectible the underlying collateral

is repossessed and reclassified as real estate owned The balance of

other real estate owned also includes bank properties transferred from

operations These assets are carried at lower of cost or fair value of the

collateral less cost to sell In some cases adjustments are made to the

appraised values for various factors including age of the appraisal age

of comparable properties included in the appraisal and known changes

in the market and the collateral During the year ended December 31

2010 the Company recorded decrease in fair value of $1 30000 on

two bank properties During the year ended December 31 2009 the

Company recorded decrease in fair value of $800000 and $1 50000

on commercial warehouse and residential property respectively The

adjustments to the residential property were based upon observable

inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets in active markets

and were therefore categorized as Level measurement The

adjustments to the bank properties and commercial property were

based upon unobservable inputs and therefore categorized as Level

measurements Total real estate owned at December 31 2010 and

2009 was carried on the consolidated statements of financial condition

at $860000 and $8.4 million respectively

The SBA servicing assets are reviewed for impairment in accordance

with FASB ASC 860 Transfers and Servicing Because loans are sold

individually and not pooled the Company does not stratify groups of loans

based on risk characteristics for purposes of measuring impairment

The following steps are taken to determine the fair value of commercial real estate secung loan that will be potentially subject to ImpaIrment

Loan Category Used for impairment Review Method of Determining the Value

Loans less than $1 million Evaluation or restricted use appraisal

Loans $1 million or greater

Existing appraisal 18 months or less Restricted use appraisal

Existing appraisal greater than 18 months Summary appraisal

Loans secured primarily by residential real estate

Loans less than $1 million Automated valuation model

Loans $1 million or greater Summary form appraisal
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The Company measures the SBA servicing assets by estimating the

present value of expected future cash flows for each servicing asset

based on their unique characteristics and market-based prepayment

assumptions valuation allowance is recorded for the amount by which

the carrying amount of the servicing asset exceeds the calculated fair

value The Company had valuation allowance of $23000 on its SBA

servicing assets at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

In accordance with ASC 825-10-50-10 Fair Value of Financial

Instruments FASB ASC 825-1 0-50-10 the Company is required

to disclose the fair value of its financial instruments The fair value of

financial instrument is the current amount that would be exchanged

Cash and cash equivalents For cash and cash equivalents the

carrying amount is reasonable estimate of fair value

Investment securities For investment securities fair values are

based on combination of quoted prices for identical assets in active

markets quoted prices for similar assets in markets that are either

actively or not actively traded and pricing models discounted cash flow

methodologies or similar techniques that may contain unobservable

inputs that are supported by little or no market
activity

and require

significant judgment

between willing parties other than in distressed sale Fair value is best

determined using observable market prices however for many of the

Companys financial instruments no quoted market prices are readily

available In instances where quoted market prices are not readily

available fair value is determined using cash flow models or other

techniques appropriate for the particular instrument These techniques

involve some degree of judgment and as result are not necessarily

indicative of the amounts the Company would realize in current market

exchange Utilizing different assumptions or estimation techniques may

have material effect on the estimated fair value

Loans receivable The fair value of loans receivable is estimated

using discounted cash flow analysis Projected future cash flows are

calculated using loan characteristics and assumptions of voluntary and

involuntary prepayment speeds Projected cash flows are prepared using

discount rates believed to represent current market rates

Hedged commercial loans The hedged commercial loans are one

component of declared hedging relationship as defined under FASB

ASC 815 The Interest Rate Swap component of the declared hedging

relationship is carried at their fair value and the carrying value of the

commercial loans includes similar change in fair values

CARRYING AMOUNTS AND ESTIMATED FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

December 31 2010 2009

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Assets

Cash and due from banks 36522 36522 53857 53857

Interest earning bank balances 150704 150704 5263 5263

Investment securities available for sale 472864 472864 434738 434738

Investment securities held to maturity 3039 3155 6955 7121

Loans receivable net 2453457 2223752 2609362 2393950

Hedged commercial loans 39669 44372 48332 48412

Restricted equity investments 17590 17590 15499 15499

Interest rate swaps 56637 56637 52934 52934

Interest rate floor 344 344 269 269

Liabilities

Demand deposits 1862940 1884033 1672233 1672233

Savings deposits 279086 281512 299322 299322

Time deposits 798434 810299 937713 944383

Federal funds purchased 89000 89000

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase customers 6307 6307 18677 18677

Advances from FHLBNY 3999 4287 15215 15666

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase FHLBNY 15000 16050 15000 16272

Junior subordinated debentures 92786 47730 92786 41660

Fair value interest rate swaps 4721 4721 3977 3977

Interest rate swaps 58779 58779 53137 53137

Interest rate floor 344 344 269 269

Ill Includes positive market value adiustment of $4.7 million and $4.0 million af December31 2010 and December31 2009 respecrively which is equal to the change in value of

related inferest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges of these hedged loans in accordance with FA5B Asc ai
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Restricted equily securities Ownership in equity securities

of FRB FHLBN and Atlantic Central Bankers Bank is restricted and

there is no established market for their resale The carrying amount is

reasonable estimate of fair value

Interest rate swaps/floors and fair value interest rate swaps
The Companys derivative financial instruments are not exchange-traded

and therefore are valued
utilizing

models with the primary input being

readily observable market parameters specifically the LIBOR swap

curve In addition the Company incorporates qualitative fair value

adjustment related to credit quality variations between counterparties as

required by FASB ASC B20

Demand deposits savings deposits and time deposits The

fair value of demand deposits and savings deposits is determined by

projecting future cash flows using an estimated economic life based

on account characteristics The resulting cash flow is discounted using

rates available on alternative funding sources The fair value of time

deposits is estimated rising the rate and maturity characteristics of the

deposits to estimate their cash flow This cash flow is discounted at rates

for similar term wholesale funding

Federal funds purchased The carrying amount is reasonable

estimate of fair value

Securities sold under agreements to repurchasecustomer

The fair value is estimated to be the amount payable at the reporting

date

Securities sold under agreements to repurchaseFHLBNY and

FHLBNY advances The fair value was estimated by determining the

cost or benefit for early termination of the individual borrowing

Junior subordinated debentures The fair value was estimated

by discounting approximate cash flows of the borrowings by yields

estimating the fair value of similar issues

The fair value estimates presented herein are based on pertinent

information available to management as of December 31 2010 and

2009 Although management is not aware of any factors that would

significantly affect the estimated fair value amounts such amounts have

not been comprehensively revalued for purposes of these consolidated

financial statements since those dates and therefore current estimates

of fair value may differ significantly from the amount presented herein

26 RELATED PARTY TRANSCATIONS

Certain officers directors and their associates related parties

have loans and conduct other transactions with the Company Such

transactions are made on substantially the same terms including

interest rates and collateral as those prevailing at the time for other

non-related party transactions Related party activity for the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 is summarized as follows

SUMMARY OF LOANS TO RELATED PARTIES

At or for the Years Ended December 31 2010 2009

Balance beginning of year $74495 $97171

Additions 6572 2241

Repayments 12808 24917

Balance end of year $68259 $74495

Certain office space of the Company is leased from companies

affiliated with the Chairman of the Companys Board of Directors

under separate agreements with the Company Terms of these three

agreements at December 31 2010 are as follows

SUMMARY OF LEASES WITH AFFILIATES TO THE CHAIRMAN OF

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

December 31 2010

Expiration date

October 2017 $1212 N/A CPI

August 2025 506 five-year terms Fixed

June 2029 12 269 five-year terms CPI

2010

Certain office space of the Company is leased from companies

affiliated with certain Directors under separate agreements with the

Company Terms of these two agreements at December 31 2010 are

as follows

SUMMARY OF LEASES WITH AFFILIATES TO THE DIRECTORS

December 312010

Expiration date

December 2011 $149 five-year terms Fixed

January 2027 155 five-year terms Fixed

The Company believes that each of the related party transactions

described above were on terms as fair to the Company as could have

been obtained from unaffiliated third parties

Annual

Rental

Payment

Renewal Option

Remaininq

Annual

Rental

Increases

This lease is recorded as $5.0 mition obligation under
capital

ease at December31

2010

This lease is recorded as $3.1 million obligation under capital ease at December31

Annual

Rental

Payment

Renewal Option

Remaining

Annual

Rental

Increases
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Operating activities

Net loss income

Adjustments to reconcile net loss

income to net cash used in

operating activities

tindistributed loss income of

subsidiaries

Stock-based compensation

Change in assets and liabilities

which provided used cash

Accrued interest receivable

and other assets

Accounts payable and other

liabilities

Net cash used in provided

by operating activities

2010 2009 2008

$185418 $17131 $14894

182849

2612

14352 18486

229

27 CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF

PARENT COMPANY

The condensed financial statements of Sun Bancorp Inc are as follows

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

61 1581 16217

555 713 1213

December 31 2010 2009

Assets

Cash and due from banks 12529 15821

Investments in subsidiaries

Bank subsidiaries 345791 430356

Non-bank subsidiaries 2786 2786

Accrued interest receivable and other assets 1838 1777

Total assets $362944 $450740

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Liabilities

Junior subordinated debentures 92786 92786

Other liabilities 1916 1361

Total liabilities 94702 94147

Shareholders equity 268242 356593

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $362944 $450740

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Interest expense 4117 4423 5714

Management fee 6936 5491 5277

Other expenses 6734 5320 5079

Loss before equity in undisfributed

income of subsidiaries and

income tax benefit 3915 4252 5516

Equity in undistributed loss

income of subsidiaries 182850 04352 18486

Income tax benefit 1347 1473 1924

Net loss income $085418 $07131 $14894

Preferred stock dividends and

discount accretion 5351

Net loss income available

to common shareholders $085418 $22482 $14894

Investing activities

Payments for investments in

and advances to subsidiaries 103173

Redemption of investment

in capital securities 155

Dividends from subsidiary 4262 10730

Net cash used in provided

by investing activities 103173 4262 10885

Financing activities

Redemption of junior

subordinated debentures 5155

Proceeds from issuance of

preferred

stock and warrant 88009 89310

Redemption of preferred sfock 88009 89310

Redemption of preferred warrant 2100

Payment of preferred stock

dividend 1104

Preferred stock issuance costs 7495 112

Cash received for exercise of stock

opflons 716

Excess tax benefit related to stock

options 90

Proceeds from issuance of

common stock 106839 765 765

Purchases of treasury stock 9637

Paymenfs for fractional interests

resulting from stock dividend 12

Net cash provided by used

in financing acflvities 99344 2554 13233

Net decrease increase in cash 3292 1223 9293

Cash beginning of year 15821 14598 5305

Cash end of year 12529 $15821 $14598
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SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED

The following table presents summarized quarterly data for 2010 and 2009 restated for stock dividends amounts are in thousands except per

share amounts

QUARTERLY DATA

During the fourth quarter 2010 the company recognized pie tax Dill charge of $379000 on one private label mortgage-backed security During the third quarter of 2010 the

company recognized pie tax 0111 charge of $950000

During the second quarter 2010 the company recognized goodmill impairment charge of $89.7 million

During the tourth quarter 2009 the company recognized pre-tax 0111 charge ot $351000 on one private label mortgage-backed security During the third quarter second quarter

and first quarter
of 2009 the company recognized pre-tax

0111 charges ot $1.9 million $4.6 million and $278000 respectively on pooled trust preterred securities

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented Consequently the sum of the quarters may

not equal the annual earnings per share

5UN Baxcoep cc

Three Months Ended December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31

2010

Interest income 35354 36572 36870 $36807

Interest expense 8081 8686 8690 9184

Net interest income 27273 27886 28180 27623

Provision for loan losses 35511 42429 13978 9600

Non-interest income loss
111 7797 2352 4416 5651

Non-interest expense 27949 29341 117686 26076

Loss income before income taxes 28390 46236 99068 2402
Income tax expense benefit 103 28757 17898 1640

Net loss income 28493 74993 81170 762

Preferred stock dividends and discount accretion 274 274

Net loss available to common shareholders $28219 $75267 81170 762

Loss per common sharebasic 0.67 3.14 3.46 0.03

Loss per common sharediluted 0.67 3.14 3.46 0.03

2009

Interest income 37867 37892 378W $37439

Interest expense 9799 11426 14017 15600

Net interest income 28068 26466 23784 21839

Provision for loan losses 19479 16237 6950 4000

Non-interest income 5541 4476 1732 5321

Non-interest expense 25733 26867 27650 23817

Loss income before income taxes 11603 12162 9084 657

Income tax benefit expense 5263 5620 4450 1042

Net loss income 6340 6542 4634 385

Preferred stock dividends and discount accretion 4146 1205

Net loss available to common shareholders 6340 6542 8780 820

Loss per common sharebasic 0.27 0.28 0.38 0.04

Loss per common sharediluted 0.27 0.28 0.38 0.04



Shares of the Companys common stock are quoted on the NASDAQ

Global Select Market under the symbol SNBC The following table sets

forth the high and low sale prices adjusted for stock dividends for the

common stock for the calendar quarters indicated as published by the

NASDAQ Stock Market

COMMON STOCK PRICE RANGE

High Low

2010

Fourth Quarter $5.45 $3.78

Third Quarter $5.58 $3.41

Second Quarter $5.80 $3.36

First Quarter $4.25 $3.33

2009

Fourth Quarter $5.48 $3.37

Third Quarter $6.33 $4.21

Second Quarter $7.37 $4.98

First Quarter $7.67 $3.33

There were 953 holders of record of the Companys common stock as

of March 2011 This number does not reflect the number of persons

or entities who held stock in nominee or street name through various

brokerage firms At March 2011 there were 50391 073 shares of

the Companys common stock outstanding

To date the Company has not paid cash dividends on its common

stock Future declarations of dividends by the Board of Directors would

depend upon number of factors including the Companys and the

Banks financial condition and results of operations investment

opportunities available to the Company or the Bank approval of the

0CC capital requirements regulatory limitations tax considerations the

amount of net proceeds retained by the Company and general economic

conditions No assurances can be given that any dividends will be paid

or if payment is made will continue to be paid

The ability of the Bank to pay dividends to the Company is controlled

by certain regulatory restrictions Generally dividends declared in

given year by national bank are limited to its net profit as defined by

regulatory agencies for that year combined with its retained net income

for the preceding two years less any required transfer to surplus or to

fund for the retirement of any preferred stock In addition national

bank may not pay any dividends in an amount greater than its undivided

profits and national bank may not declare any dividends if such

declaration would leave the bank inadequately capitalized Therefore

the ability of the Bank to declare dividends will depend on its future net

income and capital requirements.AIso banking regulators have indicated

that national banks should generally pay dividends only out of current

operating earnings Further per the 0CC Agreement dividend may

only be declared if it is in accordance with the approved capital plan the

Bank remains in compliance with the capital plan following the payment

of the dividend and the dividend is approved by the 0CC As result of

these restrictions the amount available for payment of dividends to the

Company by the Bank totaled $0 at December 31 2010

COMMON STOCK PRICE RANGE AND DIVIDENDS UNAUDITED
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STOCK PERFORMANCE UNAUDITED

The following table provides stock performance graph comparing cumulative total shareholders return on the Common Stock with the

cumulative total shareholder return on stocks of all U.S companies that trade on the NASDAG Stock Market and the the cumulative total

shareholder return on stocks included in the NASDAO Bank index as prepared for the NASDAQ by the Center for Research in Security Prices çCRSP
at the University of Chicago All investment comparisons assume the investment of $100 at December 31 2005 The cumulative returns for the

NASDAQ Stock Market and the NASDAD Bank index are computed assuming the reinvestment of dividends

Comparison of Year Cumulative Total Return

Assumes Initial Investment of $100

December 2010

December 31 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

CRSP NASDAD U.S Companies $100.0 $109.8 $119.1 $57.4 $82.5 $97.9

CRSP NASDAG Bank index 100.0 112.2 89.0 64.9 54.3 64.3

Sun Bancorp Inc 100.0 112.0 88.1 43.9 23.1 28.5

The cumulative return for Sun eancorp Inc reflects 5% stock dividend paid in April 2005 May 2006 May 2007 May 2008 and May 2009 and has been calculated based on the

historical closing prices of $24.33 $1 9.75 $21.07 $15.78 $7.49 and $3.75 on December31 2004 2005 2006 2007 200e and 2009 respectively

There can be no assurance that the Companys future stock performance will be the same or similar to the historical stock performance shown in

the table The Company neither makes nor endorses any predictions as to the stock performance

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K excluding exhibits for the fiscal year ended December 31 2010 is available without charge upon

written request to Sun Bancorp Inc Shareholder Relations 226 Landis Avenue Vineland NJ 08360
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY

SUN BANCORP INC and SUN BANCORP INC SUN NATIONAL BANK

SUN NATIONAL BANK

Directors Executive Management Executive Management

Bernard Brown Bernard Brown Thomas Geisel

Chairman of the Board Chairman of the Board President and Chief Executive

Officer

Sidney Brown Sidney Brown

Vice Chairman of the Board Vice Chairman of the Board Robert Growl

Executive Vice President and Chief

Thomas Geisel Thomas Geisel Financial Officer

President and Chief Executive Officer President and Chief Executive

Officer Bruce Dansbury

Wilbur Ross Jr Executive Vice President and Chief

Robert Growl Operating Officer

Peter Galetto Jr Executive Vice President and Chief

Audit and Risk Committee Chair Rnancial Officer Michele Estep

Executive Vice President and Chief

Eli Kramer Bruce Dansbury Administrative Officer

Compensation/Personnel Committee Chair Executive Vice President and Chief

Operating Officer Bradley Fouss

William Marino Executive Vice President and

Nominating and Corporate Governance Director of Wholesale Banking

Committee Chair

Edward Malandro

Alfonse Mafia GPA Executive Vice President and

ALCO/lnvestment.Committee Chair Director of Consumer Banking

Jeffrey Brown Thomas Townsend

Executive Vice President and Chief

Anthony Goscia Banking Officer

Anne Koons

Executive Committee

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Investor Relations Contact Transfer Agent Website

Robert Growl Gomputershare www.sunnb.com

856 690 4233 Stock Transfer Department

rcrowl@sunnb.com Ganton Massachusetts

800 568-3476
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SUN BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

LOCATIONS Sussex

Passaic

Bergen

Warren
Morris

Essex

Bloowlield
Hudson

County Line

55
Sranchburg Union
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Remington

Holland
Remington

1-lillsborough
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Somerset Edison
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Matawan

Pennington5 Jake Brown Plazas Holmdel

Laiwenceville5 shrewaburys
West Windsor Monmouth

Bucks Mercer Coltel4eck

Menelapan
Trenton

Freehold RIG
Freehold Orivethru

Freehold DowntownHamilton

Wall
Howelle

Wall Regional
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Riverside

Browns Mills

LanolaRoad
Mount Laurel

Toms River

Eveahaw

Cherry Hit Ocean

Collingawood

Lynoka Harbor

Glendom Medrord

somerdale
Burl ington

LogwTyup

Tumaravilleu
Camden

ceneyaPoinr
tulanahawkin

Gloucester
Hammoston

Tuckerton

Salem
Mystic Inland

Weyrsouth Atlantic
Brigantine

Altantic City

tJ Vtneland
Atlantic City Soelh

Brirfgetons 4th Landis East Landis NorthfleldS
Venlnor south

Linwood
5owern Points

Miliville

Tuckahoe5 Marwora

Cumberland

Cape May
Corporate Headquarters

Regional Headquarters

Community Banking Center CBC
Cape May Court Houses

North Wildwcod
Rio Graode5

Drive-Thru
WiIdwood Drive thru

Commercial Lending Center
cape May

CBC/Commercial Lending Center

CBC/Sun Home Loans

Sun Home Loans
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